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THIS IS WILH. WILHELMSEN

A leading international
provider of
maritime services

Wilh. Wilhelmsen ASA (WW) is a leading
international provider of maritime services.
WW has some 13 500 employees, which rises
to about 22 0oo when partly-owned companies
are included. The group has 389 offices in 72
countries, which cooperate with partners in an
extensive global network.

Listed on the Oslo Stock Exchange, WW
has its head office in Oslo, Norway. The group
ranks as one of Norway's foremost centres of
maritime expertise, and as an innovator with
its focus on forward-looking technological
development.

Founded on 1 October 1861 in the port of
Tensberg south of Oslo, WW has developed
in recent years from a traditional shipping
business with the emphasis on owning and
operating vessels into a global supplier of
maritime services.

Its organisation is based on partnerships
and is active in every continent.

SHIPPING

WW is one of the world's leading international
operators in the car carrier market, as well

as for high and heavy and non-containerised
cargoes. Together with its partners, WW
controls just over 150 of the roughly 470 car
carriers in the world, and transports almost 4.6
million cars per year.

WW's efficient and environment-friendly
fleet is primarily operated through three joint
ventures — Wallenius Wilhelmsen Logistics
(WWL - owned 50% by WW), EUKOR Car
Carriers (owned 40% by WW) and American
Roll-on Roll-off Carrier {owned 50% by WW).

LOBISTICS

WW has strengthened its position as a logistics
supplier in recent years, in part through Korea-
based Glovis (owned 20% by WW), France’s
Compagnie d'Affrétement et de Transport
(owned 40% by WWL), and US companies
WWL Vehicle Services Americas (owned

50% by WWL), American Auto Logistics and
American Logistics Network (both owned 50%
by Ww).

MARITIME SERVICES

The wholly-owned Wilhelmsen Maritime
Services (WMS) aims to become the leading
global player in the maritime services sector.
Acquiring Unitor in 2005 accords with that
strategy. Unitor has been incorporated into
WMS, helping to complement its range of
services and widening its potential customer
base.

WMS embraces such companies as Barwil
Unitor Ships Service, Barber Ship Management

and Barber Marine Consultants, Wilhelmsen
Bunkers and Wilhelmsen Insurance services
are also affiliated to WMS.

KNGWLEDGE-BASED SUCCESS

WW’s strategic investments in the shipping,
logistics and maritime services sectors during
recent years have created a foundation for
improving the operational efficiency of its
subsidiaries. Increased collaboration between
its companies in a strongly-industrialised
market will make a further contribution to the
group’s success.

Developing employee expertise represents
an important challenge for reinforcing WW's
role in the market and achieving necessary
change. Measures in this area include an
in-house educational institution, the WW
Academy, which provides a full range of courses
and management development programmes
for employees worldwide. i

Tamerlane recently recelved a new antifouling to prevent
imaring growth on its hull below the waterline. A dean hull
helps to increase efficiency because fuel consumption and
conseguent emissions of environmenially-harmful substaices
are reduced.

THIS IS WILH. WILHELMSEN 2:3
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KEY FIGURES CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

* u

Income statement
# QOperating income
* Primary operating income
* Net operating profit
* Profit before tax
Profit for the periode

Balance sheet (official reporting)
Fixed assets
Current assets

Equity
Interest-bearing debt

Total assets

= Key financial figures
Cash flow {1)
Liquid funds 31 Dec (2)
Liquidity ratio (3)
Equity ratio (4)

Yield {official reporting)
Return on capital employed (5)
Return on equity (6}

= Key figures per share
Earnings per share [7)
Diluted earnings per share (8]
Cash flow per share (9)
Average number of shares outstanding

Definitions:

faf '’

2005

USD mill 2207
USD mitl 397
UsD mill 232
USD mill 209
USD mill 191
UsD mill 1644
USD mill 619
USD mill 834
USD mill 998
USD mill 2263
USD mill 361
UsD mill 349
1.5

% 37

% 14.7

% 26.2

usDb 3.9
Uso 3.9%
usD 7.52
(thousand) 47996

Joint ventures in the shipping and logistics segments by proportional consolidation
Figures in accordance with Norwegian accounting standards {not restated)

2004

1831
362
207
185
171

1239
357

736
625

1596

319
263
1.6
46

14.5
245

3.51
3.51
6.66
47930

1} Profit for the periode adjusted for change in deferred tax, depreciation and write-down on assets.
2) Cash and bank deposits, bonds, certificates and shares (current assets).

3) Current assets divided by current liabilities.
4) Equity in percent of total assets.

2004*

1128

231
158
154
155

1168

481

666
692

1649

216
297
1.9

40

13.9
23.3

3.23
3.23
4.51

47930

5} Profit for the periode before taxes plus interest expenses, in percent of average equity and interest-bearing debt.
&) Profit for the periode before taxes minus payable taxes, in percent of average equity.
7) Profit for the periode after minority interests, divided by average number of shares.
8] Earnings per share taking into consideration the number of potential outstanding shares in the period.

9] Profit for the periode adjusted for change in deferred tax, depreciation and write-down of assets, divided by average number of shares.

Operating income =
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Net operating profit =
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Profit for the periode
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2003*

980
161
84
85
78

997
443

577
611

1440

158
258
2.1

40

13.7

1.62
1.62
3.30
47819

120 0 e

20 il S
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2001

2002* 2003* 2004

2002*

889
169
84
57
54

1021
468

505
730

1489

139
256
2.1

34

7.5
10.5

1.13
1.13
2.92
47 650

2001*

824
153
74
31
27

932
359

469
653

1291

108
218
23

36

6.6
6.1

0.5
0.51
2.20
48 898

R kA

17t

2004 2005
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WILH. WILHELMSEN ASA

DIREGTORS’ REPORT

Wilh, Wilhelmsen ASA (WW) achieved very
good results in 2005.

The WW group is a leading global provider
of maritime services. Its three principal
activities are shipping, logistics and maritime
services. Together with its partners, WW ranks
as one of the three biggest market players in
each of these business areas.

WW ASA, the parent company, is one of
Norway’s most international enterprises and is
listed on the Oslo Stock Exchange.

Its head office is at Lysaker just outside
Oslo. The group’s wholly-owned companies
had a total of 389 offices in 72 countries
at 31 December 2005. They have about
13 500 employees, including 8 700 seagoing
personnel. The group employs under 22 oco
people when partly-owned ventures in WW’s
partnership-based company structure are
included.

Operating income was high in the shipping
sector during 2003, reflecting the realisation
of synergies between group companies, high
capacity utilisation and great activity in the
market.

Active efforts have been made by WW to
optimise its fleet in combination with further
development of the global network of services
for car, ro-ro and static cargoes. In addition, the
group expanded its range of logistics services to
support the shipping business. The acquisition
of Unitor underlines WW’s commitment to
the maritime service segment. During the
year, WW developed a unique global maritime
organisation which provides a good basis for
continued growth.

WW expects its net operating profit for
2006, with ordinary financial items, to be on a
par with the year before.

Wilhelin Wilhelmsen (chair)

GRGUP ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

Annual accounts are based on figures in
accordance with International financial
Standards (IFRS). WW achieved a net operating
profit of USD 206 million in 2003, an increase
of USD 43 million from 2004. (Comparative
figures for 2004 will hereafter be given in
brackets.)

This progress partly reflects high capacity
utilisation for the fleet and substantial earnings
in a market characterised by very great activity.
On the other hand, the cost of supplementary
tonnage and extraordinarily high bunkers
prices substantially reduced the result.

The WW group’s total operating income
came to USD 690 million (USD 445 million).
Large volumes for cars, high and heavy and
non-containerised cargoes made a particular
contribution to strengthening overall earnings
in the most important trades.

Net financial expenses came to USD 5
million (USD 1 million). Adjusted for financial
instruments, WW'’s financial expenses were
extremely low in 2005 compared with the year
before. Low interest costs and good results
from financial management contributed to the
good outcome.

In total, this gave the WW group a profit of
USD 201 million before tax (USD 164 million).

The group reports a tax expenses for 2005
which reflects the effect of the introduction
of new rules for taxing unrealised currency
gains by companies in the Norwegian tonnage
tax regime. One of the group’s companies is
moreover due to exit from this regime. The tax
expense related to this withdrawal is reflected
in the 2005 figure.

Pursuant to section 4, sub-section 5,
reference section 3, sub-section 3a, of the

Leif T Laddesol (deputy chair)

Norwegian Accounting Act, confirmation is
hereby provided that the annual accounts have
been prepared under the assumption that the
enterprise is a going concern.

CAPITAL AND FINANGE

A positive trend in stock markets and a
relatively strong USD, contributed to a very
good financial result.

Interest-bearing debt, including leasing
obligations, increased by USD 373 million from
31 December 2004. New debt drawn down was
primarily applied to financing the Toledo and
Toronto newbuildings, refinancing the group's
US operations and the acquisition of Unitor
ASA in the summer of 2005. Unitor was
delisted from the stock exchange on 20 January
2006.

The average level of interest rates rose
during the year, with a consequent increase in
total interest costs.

WW has established an interest hedging
strategy, and makes active use of financial
instruments to reduce the effect of rising
rates on its net interest costs. The proportion
of interest hedging remained stable during
2005, and was just over 40% at 31 December.
This proportion will rise to about 50% in 2006
when existing interest hedge contracts with a
delayed starting point become effective. The
market value of interest hedge contracts at 31
December was about USD § million.

The group has long placed weight on
having access to several sources of borrowing,
and maintained its activity in the Norwegian
certificate and bond market. The group has
been given investment grade ratings BBB- to
BBB by key players in this market, which
reflects its solid financial position. WW
currently has a bond portfolio with maturities
varying up to 14 years. Outstanding certificates
and bonds totalled about USD 350 million at 31
December (USD 218 million).

Liquid assets were USD 349 million at
31 December. Undrawn committed drawing




Helen Juell

rights totalled USD 242 million, of which USD
70 million functions as backstop for existing
certificates and bonds with a remaining term of
less than 12 months to maturity.

Part of the group's surplus liquidity is
managed through investment in shares and
bonds and through interest and currency
trading. About 50% of this portfolio is placed
in shares, of which half are in Norway and the
Nordic region and the rest in other countries.
The upturn in stock and financial markets
contributed to a return of USD 22.3 million on
the portfolio under management in 2005.

Revenues and expenses in the group are
largely denominated in USD. About 40% of
expenses are incurred in other currencies,
primarily EUR, NOK, SEK, JPY and KRW. Parts
of this currency exposure are covered by hedge
contracts.

In connection with the group’s newbuilding
programme, a long-term leasing agreement
with a total financing limit of about USD 135
million has been concluded with Lloyds TSB
Leasing Ltd in the UK. This contract covers the
delivery of the first three car carriers, which are
managed by Wilhelmsen Lines Car Carriers Ltd
(WLCC) in the British port of Southampton,
During the year, WLCC took in 15 vessels on
bareboat or time charters from Wilhelmsen
Lines Shipowning. All these ships are operated
commercially by Wallenius Wilhelmsen
Logistics (formerly Wallenius Wilhelmsen
Lines).

The price of crude oil and bunkers
remained at a high level in 2005, with the
cost of bunkers in Rotterdam climbing from
about USD 140 at 1 January to roughly USD
2775 towards the end of the year. WW’s bunkers
exposure embraced 800 ooo tonnes of fuel,
of which almost go% was hedged. Some
40% of this hedging was through contracts
incorporating a bunker adjustment factor
(BAF). The remainder was hedged through
contracts in the market.

WW acquired 25% of Korea's Glovis
logistics company in November 2004. Glovis

QOdd Rune Austgulen

Diderik Schnitler

implemented a very successful share issue at
the end of December 2005 and secured a listing
on the Korean Stock Exchange. Exposing the
asset value in this company confirms that it
has been a very good investment. The Glovis
share price rose sharply in connection with the
listing. After the issue, WW’s interest in the
company was reduced from 25% to 20%.

A total dividend of NOK 8 per share
was paid by WW in 2005, spread over two
payments. The company’s policy is to pay
dividend twice a year.

The group owned 3.2% of its own shares at
31 December, and the management is author-
ised to buy back up to 10% of the issued stock.

Allocation of profit (NOK mill)
The board’s proposal for allocating the net

profit for the year is as follows:

Parent company accounts

Net profit 121
Dividend (248)
Other equity 127
Total allocations (r21)

Distributable equity in the parent company
totals just under NOK 1.6 billion.

Joint ventures in the shipping and
logistics segments are shown by proportionate
consolidation methode.

SHIPPING

The WW group ranks as one of the world’s
leading transporters of cars, high and heavy and
non-containerised cargoes. Together with its
Swedish partner, Wallenius Lines, WW controls
just over 150 ships through joint ventures, or
about 30% of the world’s car carriers.

Betting Banoun

Results for shipping improved from 2004,
which was also a very good year for the group.
Net operating profit in 2005 came to USD 238
million (USD 183 million). Profit before taxes
rose to USD 218 million (USD 156 million).
Operating income was USD 1.3 billion (USD 1.1
billion).

This progress primarily reflected improved
capacity utilisation in the most important
trades, greater operational efficiency and a
substantial reduction in net financial expenses.

Market developments

Car carrying

Global sales of vehicles rose by about 3.2%

in 2005, to 63.5 million units, while global

maritime transport of new cars and other light

vehicles was up 6% to 10.3 million units.
Korean car exports increased by just under

9%. This progress in Korea made a substantial

contribution to WW’s good results for the year.

High and heavy

Following exceptionally high growth in 2004,
global demand for construction and agricultural
machinery is continuing to rise. A high level of
activity in North America, strong demand from
China and the build-up of production capacity
for minerals in South America made particular
contributions to this expansion. Demand for
construction machinery is also good in new
member countries of the European Union and
in Russia.

NCC

Non-containerised cargo (NCC) is a collective
term for many types of consignment, including
production machinery, turbines, railway
wagons, boats, cranes, raw rubber, steel
products and paper reels.

et ot page ¥
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As in 2004, demand for this type of cargo
stayed strong during the year. There was a great
need for all types of static mining equipment,
railway wagons, and production machinery for
steel and aluminium works and for oil-related
production in resource-rich regions where
production capacity for infrastructure is under
development.

Shipping activities in WW

WW’s car, ro-ro and project cargo activities

are concentrated in the wholly-owned
subsidiaries Wilhelmsen Lines Car Carriers
(WLCC), Wilhelmsen Lines Shipowning (WLS)
and Wilhelmsen Lines (WL). These fleets

are primarily operated in commercial and
operational terms through the joint ventures
Wallenius Wilhelmsen Logistics (WWL

— formerly Wallenius Wilhelmsen Lines, owned
50% by WW), EUKOR Car Carriers (owned
40% by WW) and American Roll-on Roll-off
Carrier (ARC - owned 50% by WW),

WLS and WL controlled a fleet of 33 car and
ro-ro carriers at 31 December, of which 12 are
wholly owned, 13 owned 50% and eight held on
long-term bareboat charters.

To secure new and modern tonnage for
the joint ventures in which WW participates,
the group and its partners are pursuing an
extensive newbuilding programme. A total of
43 new car carriers are due to be delivered in
2006-09, including 11 for WW’s account. Four
of these 11 contracts were placed in 2005 - two
at Mitsubishi Heavy Industries (MHI) in Japan
and two at Daewoo Shipbuilding & Marine
Engineering in Korea.

Three of the newbuildings will be held on
long-term time charter by WLS.

Two newbuildings delivered in 2005 have
been taken on long-term bareboat charter. They
form part of WW’s newbuilding programme
at MHI Including these vessels, the series
embraces eight ships. One of these (Torrens)
was delivered in 2004 and two (Toledo and
Toronto) in 2005. The other five carriers in the
series are due for delivery in 2006-08. They
will sail for WWL.

WW reached agreement with Wallenius
Lines in December on the purchase of two of
the four extra-large car carriers ordered by the

latter from Daewoo Shipbuilding & Marine
Engineering. Able to carry up to 8 ooo cars,
these vessels will be delivered in 2008 and
2009, and will form part of the WWL fleet.

With a total fleet of roughly Go ships,
owned mainly by WW and Wallenius Lines,
WWL ranks as one of the world’s largest
operators in carrying cars and other rolling
cargo. WWL transports 1.5 million vehicles by
sea and roughly three million by land. It also
offers extensive services in addition to ocean
transport, including logistics, terminals and
land-based transport.

The result achieved by WWL for
distribution among the partners in 2005 was
on a par with the good result for 2004. This
performance reflects high capacity utilisation
for the fleet in the most important trades. High
prices for bunkers and for chartered tonnage
meant that the rise in income was offset to a
considerable extent by increasing costs.

Technical management for WW's ships is
largely provided by Barber Ship Management
(BSM). All the vessels operated well in 2005,
with minimal off-hire.

Korea’s EUKOR, which operates a fleet of
about 85 ships, achieved a good operating result
in 2005, It shipped 3.1 million cars (RT43) in
all, an increase in the order of 7% from 2004.
All the vessels operated with full capacity
utilisation and minimal off-hire. On the other
hand, the tight tonnage position meant that
the cost of chartered tonnage was high and
operating expenses rose.

Hyundai Motor Company has opened a car
plant in Alabama, which contributed to some

reduction in car exports from Korea to the

USA. However, this was more than offset by the
growth in shipments from Hyundai and Kia in
Korea to other regions as well as an increase

in consignments of rolling cargo from other
manufacturers.

BSM took over technical management of 11
EUKOR ships during 2005.

ARC increased its fleet in the course of
2005 from five to eight vessels and expanded
its service to the Middle East. One of the ships
was transferred from WW, while the other two
came from WW’s Swedish partner, Wallenius
Lines. This fleet growth is in line with the WW
group’s strategy of increasing its operations in
the USA.

After the award of four new licences, seven
of ARC’s eight vessels are included in the US
maritime security programme.

Other shipping activities

Wilhelmsen Offshore & Chartering comprises
Sea Launch Logistics, through which WW
handles the transport of rockets and fuel from
Ukraine to California, and Express Offshore
Transport (owned 50% by WW). The latter was
established in 2005 as a joint venture with
Maersk-owned SvitzerWijsmuller. It began
operations in February 2006.

The Dockwise heavy transport company
(owned 21% by WW) is still doing well because
of a high level of activity in the offshore market.
It contributed a profit of USD 9.6 million (USD
7.8 million).

LOGISTICS

WW's logistics services are primarily offered
and performed in support of the group’s
shipping activities. Transport solutions are
provided to customers for rolling cargoes

Lol o
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such as cars and mining, construction and
agricultural machinery. The service covers
door-to-door deliveries from factory to dealer,
including management of the whole supply
chain.

The group’s involvement in logistics is
primarily pursued through ownership of the
operating companies.

WW has strengthened its position as
a logistics provider in recent years, in part
through the acquisition of interests in
Korea’s Glovis (owned 20% by WW), France’s
Compagnie d’Affrétement et de Transport SA
(CAT - owned 40% by WWL), and American
Auto Logistics and American Logistics Network
(both owned 50% by WW). Through WWL,
WW also has interests in WWL Vehicle Services
Americas, formerly Distribution and Auto
Service (owned 50% by WWL), as well as
terminals and vehicle processing centres.

With the exception of CAT, WW’s logistics
activities delivered results in line with or above
expectations in 200s5.

CAT produced a very weak result because
of reduced transport volumes for Renault and
higher-than-expected costs. During the third
quarter, WW wrote down the book value of
this company by USD 14 million. The Further
measures have been adopted by CAT, and these
are expected to have an effect in 2006. Among
other moves, discussions are under way with
the company’s principal customer and lenders.
Internal steps have also been taken to taken to
reduce costs and improve productivity.

Net operating profit for the logistics
segment in 2005 was USD 15 million (USD 22
million). Operating income came to USD 531
million (USD 526 million), while pre-tax profit
was USD 10 million (USD 14 million).

Market developments

The market for logistics is expanding in line
with the development of the car market. The
logistics market is fragmented, and consists
of players who offer a broad range of services.
Some perform specific assignments in the
transport chain from factory to dealer, such as
land, barge, short-/long-sea and train freight.
Certain players expand the product range to

embrace several transport methods and/or

management of complete transport chains.

WWL is an example of this last category.
During 2005, WWL secured a number

of logistics contracts from car and ro-

ro customers. These make the company

responsible for outbound logistics from factory

to dealer. WWL is expected to win several more

assignments of this kind in 2006.

WW’s logistics operations
WWL pursues substantial logistics activities in
Europe, North America, Asia and Oceania, and
annually transports some 1.5 million vehicles
by sea and three million on land. The network
of logistics companies will be further developed
in coming years. WWL will develop its global
network in line with customer requirements,
allowing the company to offer its logistics
solutions on a global basis. Weight will also
be given to the logistics network’s ability to
manage global door-to-door transport chains
which incorporate maritime shipments.

Korea’s Glovis logistics company has
close ties with EUKOR'’s principal customers,
Hyundai Motor Company and Kia Motors
Corporation. Both are expanding vigorously,
with sales rising strongly and car plants being
established in Europe and North America.
Glovis is also expected to grow substantially,
primarily outside Korea. The company buys
in freight services from sub-contractors and
manages the whole transport chain from
factory to customer, both for finished cars and
for components used in manufacturing/after-
sales.

AAL and ALN manage logistics activities
relating to private removals and vehicle

WW has ovdered eight new car carriers from Mitsubishi
Heavy Industries (MHI), induding three delivered in
2004-05, two due for delivery in 2006 and the remainder
scheduled for 2007-08. 11 takes about 10 monihs on averoge
to build a ship from the siart of steel-custing, Alexander
Maresca (right), WW's site manager at the fapanese yard,
chats with Yasuhiro Hidaka, project manager for MHI

Toledo (below) was delivered in 2005 and named in
Sysdney, Australia.




ALEXANDER MARESCA

SITE MANAGER

WILHELMSEN MARINE CONSULTANTS
(FORMERLY BARBER MARINE CONSULTANTS)

Alexander Maresca from Dorach in Switzerland is site manager jor six newbuildings at the Mitsubishi Heavy
Industries (MH1) yard in Nugasaki, Jopan. He joined WW in 1066 as a ship’s boy and became a permanent employee
in 1972, Muresca graduated from Tonsberg Nautical College in Nonway. In addition to a long carcer at sea, he has
worked on or been responsible for 13 newbuildings ~ including the six at MHL

The tonnage position for car and ro-ro carriers is tight. “To serve WW's
customers and their future requirements, we need to develop and build new
ships,” reports Alexander Maresca.

WW and its partners Wallenius Lines, EUKOR and American Roli-on Roll-
off Carrier operated 153 car carriers or one-third of the world's fleet of such
vessels in late 2005. To meet the existing shortage of capacity and future
requirements, WW, Wallenius Lines and EUKOR have a further 43 vessels on
order.

A total of six MH! carriers are being constructed under Maresca’s
supervision in Japan. Torrens was delivered in 2004, followed by Toledo and
Toronto in 2005, Another two ships will be delivered in 2006 and the last is
due in 2007. WW has also ordered two additiona!l car carriers from MHI for
delivery in 2008-09.

“Cargo capacity on the new vessels is unique,” says Maresca. “Four
of the 12 decks are moveable, so that their height can be adjusted to
the cargo. And Withelmsen Marine Consultants (WMC, formerly Barber
Marine Consultants), which is WW's own naval architect, has made other
improvements, Capacity for cars and other heavy cargo has bsen increased,

manoeuvring cargo on deck is easier and loading/discharging operations
have been optimised to minimise part time.”

in cooperation with MHI, WMS has also incorporated a number of
environment-friendly advances in these carriers. The bunkers tanks are
positioned to ensure maximum protection against damage, for instance,
reducing the chance of oil leaks. A stator fin has been positioned behind the
propelier to gather energy from the latter along the ship's direction of travel.
Combined with an aptimised underwater hull, this helps to reduce bunkers
consumption.

“These innovations are important both for the environment and for
gconomics,” Maresca notes, and says he is looking forward to the delivery of
two carriers this year.

“Three of the six vessels I've been responsible for are named and in full
operation. The naming ceremony is an important milestone for me, not enly
because we've delivered a ship in cooperation with MHi but also because |
know that these vessels start serving WW's customers immediately. Without
efficient ships, we won't be able to confirm and strengthen our position as the
leading global supplier of maritime services.”
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SUNGHO PARK

SENIOR VIGE PRESIDENT

HEAD OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS
EUKOR CAR CARRIERS

Stungho Park from Secul in Korea is head of business operations at EUKOR, including optimisation and globalization
of this company’s activities as well as continuous development of its customer relations. He was with the Hyundai greup
Jrom g8z, and joined FUKOR in 2003,

EUKOR transported 3.1 miltion cars (RT 53, see page 107 for definition) in
2005, primarily from Hyundai and Kia and mainly fo the USA and Europe. That
corresponds to 17-18% of the market. Exports are rising to countries in the
Middle East as well as to Brazil, Russia, India and China (known 2s the BRIG
nations). EUKOR also benefits from steadily rising cargo volumes from Europe
to the Middle East and Asia, including China.

The company’s fleet comprises 85 ships. “That's got to be increased to
service growing car exports,” reports Park, and adds that EUKOR has just over
20 new vessels on order,

Despite very good results in 2005, he believes that cost conscicusness is
necessary.

“We're dependent on chartering additional tonnage. High bunkers prices
also boost our operating expenses. To cut costs even further, we'll continue
rationalising our operations in 2006 — partly by optimising routes and
standardising processes.”

One measure being implemented to limit costs is close cooperation with
Wallenius Wilhelmsen Logistics. A joint project team is now looking at ways of

utilising tonnage held by both companies to benefit the customer and at how
cargo can be allocated efficiently.

EUKOR has 10 offices, including the Seoul headquarters, and roughly 200
employees worldwide.

“Although we have a global organisation, it's impertant for us to be
part of a larger network with WW and Wallenius Lines,” says Park. “These
companies possess substantial maritime expertise. In addition to benefiting
fram their operational experience, we also use the services and products
available from the WW group — including shipbuilding, crewing and port
services.”

He believes that the route to further success lies through good and close
sustemer relations. “Such relationships are our strength. Everything we do
must be based on customer requirements, and our employees must constantly
ask themselves: ‘what have | done for our customers today?’. As head of
business operations, 'l be working to improve customer relations and
collaboration even further in 2006.”



EUKOR carries 3.1 million cars (RT43) annually,
mainly from Hyundai and Kia in Korea. The primary
desiinations for the company’s 85 vessels are the USA and
Europe.

transport for American military personnel and
government officials. About 70 coo vehicles
are shipped every year.

MARITIME SERVICES

Wilhelmsen Maritime Services (WMS) was
established on 1 January 2003, Its object is to
be an innovator and pioneer in the maritime
service sector.

WMS has the world’s largest maritime
network, covering more than 2 200 ports
and 116 countries. It has divided the planet
into eight regions, with regional head offices
in Oslo, Rotterdam, Genoa, Piraeus, Dubai,
Singapore, Shanghai and Houston.

Underlying operations in WMS are good
and results were in line with expectations. The
company made a net operating loss of USD 10
million in 2005 compared with a profit of USD
20 million 2004. This loss relates to USD 28
million in provisions for restructuring costs in
the third quarter. Operating income for 2005
totalled USD 339 million (USD 138 million).
The pre-tax loss was USD 1o million, compared
with a profit of USD 21 million in 2004.

Unitor was acquired by WW in 2005, and
its activities have been incorporated in WMS.
This acquisition accords with WW'’s strategy of
continuing to develop WMS into the leading
global player in the maritime service industry.
Unitor complements the range of services
provided by WMS and considerably expands the
latter’s potential customer base.

WW resolved on 2 January 2006 to
implement a compulsorily buy-out of the
remaining minority shareholders in Unitor,
which was listed on the Oslo Stock Exchange
for the last time on 20 January.

The integration process mentioned above
aims to realise substantial synergies. These are
expected to yield annual gains of more than
USD 30 million. Integrating WMS and Unitor
in a new umbrella organisation with a regional
structure resulted in workforce downsizing
during 2005. Plans also call for efficiency
gains to be achieved through increased sales
of products, improved utilisation of the global
network and integration of information
technology and accounting systems. The

synergy gains are expected to take full effect in
2007, but roughly half the amount is likely to
be achieved in 2006.

Market developments

Solid growth has characterised the market for
maritime services. The world fleet is expanding,
and high earnings in the shipping business also
means increased sales in every region.

The market for the Barwil Unitor Ships
Service business area was characterised in 2005
by a very high level of activity, with volumes
and sales increasing by up to 20% in certain
product areas and regions. Taken together, this
contributed to a better result than in 2004.

Strong competition and pressure on
margins are making their mark on the ship
management business area. The market
remains very fragmented, despite the
consolidation of larger players. Annual growth
of 7% is forecast in the market for outsourcing
ship management. Demand for qualified
seafarers is strong. Customers are looking
for long-term cost-efficient frame contracts
to safeguard against frequent changes of
management. Attention is also focused on
expertise development in response to a number
of demands by the industry and the authorities.

Operations focused on shipyards were also
characterised by a good market and a high level
of activity. Prospects for 2006 are promising
because of a large number of enquiries
concerning both newbuildings and conversions.

WW’s maritime service range

Barwil, the world's largest port agency chain,
is now integrated with Unitor in the Barwil
Unitor Ships Services business area. A total
of 51 0oo ship calls and 175 coo deliveries to
16 400 ships were handled through a network
covering more than 2 200 ports. Good growth
primarily reflects the introduction of new
products and services and the expansion of the
world fleet. Sales to existing customers also
grew well. The number of orders rose from
150 000 to 175 000. All eight regions in the

ToRt Il pags 18
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AMMAL ELEYA
QA AND HR DEVELOPMENT MANAGER
BARWIL UNITOR SHIPS SERVICE

Ammal Eleya from Alexandria in Egypr is responsible for hunoan resources and quality assurance in her local Barwil
office. This puts her in charge of employees, including personal development Lo the benefit of both individuals and
company, She is also helping to ensure ihat the offices in the Middle Fast/Black Sea region get 150 certification in

z005-00. Eleya has been with WW since 1997.

WILHELMSEN MARITIME SERVICES

Innovation and learning are prioritised core values in the WW group, which
invests in human capital through the WW Academy,

Ammal Eleya says she gained a better understanding of the group’s
business activities after participating in a shipping course organised by the
academy.

“With the aid of in-house resources, we gained detailed knowledge of the
shipping sector in which WW is involved,” she says. “Using examples from its
history gave the course a ‘personal’ slant which external programmes can't
supply.”

The WW Academy is unique becausk of its glehal scope and cultural
diversity. Its academic programme is supplemented by social activities to
build cross-national relationships, devélop multicultural understanding and
not {east boost knowledge about various business areas in the group.

“This allowed me to become acquainted with colleagues from various
companies in the group,” says Eleya. “It gave me a better appreciation of the
range of services and products we reprasent.”

She adds that the WW Academy also provides a golden opportunity to

increase understanding of the cultural diversity in the group. By allowing
people from different parts of the world to meet and |earn together, it creates
something new which can in turn benefit customers.

Once participants are back at work after the course, WW wants to see
specific changes in their behaviour and results from the lessons learnt.

“Although | don’t directly use shipping expertise in my daily job, the
course has taught me more about the industry to which we belong,” Eleya
says. “As quality assurance manager, it's also given me better understanding
of the requirements customers might express.”

The WW Academy offers courses directed at various groups of employees,
depending on how long they have been involved in shipping, where they are
in their career, and what job they do. In addition to a basic shipping course,
employees can learn about sales, project ant process management, safety
and leadership,

Since its launch in 1999, the academy has schocled many hundreds of
emplayees in WW and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. The aim is to provide
courses for about 500 people during 2008,



The WW Academy is the WW group’s strategic education centre, These pictures are from the shipping course in Singapore during November 2005 and a visit to Tampere,

global Barber Unitor Ships Service network
increased their sales. The biggest growth was
in east Asia and Oceania.

Barber Ship Management (BSM), one
of the largest players in the market for ship
crewing and management, provides maritime
personnel to about 300 vessels and has full
technical management for about half of these.
The number of management contracts has
increased.

Results in BSM are reduced primarily by
pressure on margins, particularly in ithe tanker
and gas carrier segment. New management
contracts and more customers contributed to
a growth of 19% for the group. The goal is to
expand by a further 10% in 2006.

In order to meet stiff future competition
over qualified maritime personnel, BSM gives
priority to facilitating a career for seafarers
and to ensuring that seagoing employees feel
an attachment to WW's organisation. BSM’s
international maritime training centre in
Mumbai, India, will play an important role
in future. Since it started work five y¢ars ago,
this centre has issued 3 600 certificates and
educated some 4 500 students.

Unitor Marine Safety, which supplies safety
systems and products for newbuildings and
vessel conversions, experienced 40% growth.
This reflects strong activity in Korea, China
and Singapore. The order backlog grew by 85%
from 2004.

TI Marine Contracting, a pioneer in cryo-
genic (low temperature) gas tank insulation,
currently has just over 70% of the insulation
market for large liquefied petroleum jas carri-
ers. Insulation of liquefied natural gas piping at
land-based terminals is a new priority area.

Barber Marine Consultants, WW's technical
and maritime knowledge centre, changed its
name in April 2006 to Wilhelmsen Marine
Consultants (WMC). This company assists
shipping companies with ship design and
drawing packages through to classification
drawings. Services relating to health, afety and
the environment were demerged as a separate
WMS-owned company.

Wilhelmsen Bunkers achieved very good
results in 2005. This company ranks as one of
Europe’s leading bunkers brokers, and offers
broking and sale of bunkers. It also facilitates
long-term bunkers contracts, Wilhelmsen
Burikers managed to expand its volume to
about five million tonnes of bunkers oil in
2005.

The WW group's insurance expertise is
concentrated in Wilhelmsen Insurance Services
(WIS), a wholly-owned WW subsidiary. This
company was approved as an insurance broker
in 2004 by the Financial Supervisory Authority
of Norway. WIS recorded no major claims of
significance in 2005. A good deal of legal work
is still under way in the wake of the total loss
of Tricolor, which was hit by container carrier
Kariba and sank in the English Channel in De-
cember 2002. A New York court found Kariba
liable for all cargo dlaims in January 2006, The
issue of culpability still remains to be tested in
court, with the case due to come up at Antwerp
in Belgium. Cooperation with Smit Salvage on
removing the wreck was completed at the end
of 2004 and formally terminated in 2005,

Other WMS activities

WMS sold its 82.5% holding in software
supplier BASS to the management of this
company in the fourth quarter of 2005.

Unitor concluded an exclusive agreement
in late 2005 on a possible sale of the shares in
TeamTec AS to a consortium comprising the
management team headed by president Erling
Holm, TeamTec Holding AS and Four Seasons
Private Equity AS. The final contract was signed
on 20 January 2000.

WORKING ENVIRONMENT
AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

The group’s three working environment
committees in wholly-owned subsidiaries were
merged into a single body with effect from 1
January. This committee held five meetings
during the year and was actively involved in the
reorganisation which followed the acquisition
of Unitor.

Five meetings were held during 2005
by the executive committee for industrial
democracy in foreign trade shipping, on which
the employees are represented.

WW is concerned to develop a good and
inspiring working environment both at sea and
on land. The group actively pursues training
and organisational development. Job reviews
and climate surveys to measure job satisfaction
among employees are conducted regularly.

The WW Academy, the group's strategic
education centre, tailors learning and devel-
opment measures for employees. Since this
organisation was launched in 1999, several
hundred personne] have taken its courses.

The goal for 2006 is to provide programmes
for about 500 employees and to expand the
target group to include partly-owned companies
in the WW group.

In addition, the WW Academy helps to
give group personnel a shared understanding
of the WW vision and its base values:
customer-centred, empowerment, learning
and innovation, stewardship, and teaming and
collaboration.

WW wants to be an attractive place to work
for both women and men. No gender-based
discrimination is permitted on such matters

Sind o g
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as pay, promotion and recruitment. Because of
the nature of its business and requitements for
expertise, however, the group has nevertheless
been compelled in a number of cases to draw
on a recruitment base where womer and men
are unequally represented.

Working hours in the company are
gender-independent. When supporting the
development of individual expertise, men and
wormen are assessed on equal terms.

The group had 574 employees ity Norway
at 31 December, of whom 37% are female.

The proportion of women in senior positions
continues to rise. WW ASA has two fernale
directors.

WW practised a system for performance-
related bonuses in the group for the fourth year
in a row. This is one of several instruments for
focusing on the group’s strategies, in which
innovation, motivation and profitability are key
elements.

Average sickness absence at hezd office
in 2.08% (2.62%). No accidents or injuries to
land-based employees were reported during the
period.

THE ENVIRONMENT

Regulations for international maritime
activities are provided by the UN’s International
Maritime Organisation (IMO). The WW group
influences this agency’s environmental work
through active contact with the inteinational
organisations, shipping associationi and
national government bodies represénted on the
IMO. WW supports international régulation
in preference to the growth of regional and
national requirements.

Working actively on preventive
maintenance is important for WW. 'Studies
concerning the environmental impact of the

group's operations are carried out regularly in
order to identify measures which can reduce
negative effects.

Barwil Ship Management and Unitor
Chemicals are certified to the ISO 14001 envi-
ronmental management standard, which helps
to ensure continuous improvement and super-
vision of work in this area. Under the standard,
WW is required to stay updated on all environ-
mental requirements in the industry and to
pursue its activities within specified limits.

Research and technological development
are essential for appropriate and cost-effective
solutions, WW maintains good contacts with
research institutions and specialists nationally
and internationally. Technological development
of environment-related products will continue
in 2006.

Work on emergency response to pollution
incidents includes training, preventive
measures, crisis management and regular
exercises.

Maritime transport is an environment-
friendly mode of transport in terms of energy
consumption per cargo volume transported
and distance travelled. However, a ship
consumes a lot of energy and thereby generates
environmentally-harmful emissions and
discharges. Where possible, the WW group is
working to reduce energy consumption and
harmful emissions/discharges. It seeks to
ensure that new ships ordered consume less
energy than existing vessels.

The WW newbuildings under construction
in Japan consume significantly less bunkers
than earlier ships. Cargo loading has also been
improved. This yields good transport economics
as well as a substantial environmental gain.
Improved protection of the bunkers tanks
reduces the threat of oil leaks in the event of
accidents. These carriers are equipped with
electronic charts for better and safer navigation.

In cooperation with its partners in WWL
and EUKOR, WW has a strong focus on
reducing emissions of sulphurous exhaust
fumes from ship propulsion machinery.

This has been a priority target since WWL
was created in 1999. The IMO has regulated
the sulphur content of marine fuel oil to a
maximum of 4.§%. That standard will be
tightened in 2006 to 1.5% in the Baltic area,
with the North Sea due to follow in 2007. The
average sulphur content in bunkers used by
the WW fleet in 2005 was 1.72%. Using low-
sulphur bunkers is the simplest way to reduce
emissions of sulphurous fumes, but availability
of this type of oil is poor and its price is higher
than conventional fuel. Its use also presents
technical and operational challenges.

The IMO requires the use of tin-free
antifouling from 2008. All ships in the WW
fleet are already coated in this way to prevent
marine growth on their hulls below the
waterline. WW is involved in a Norwegian
research project on alternative antifoulings.

Unitor Chemicals is certified to ISO
14001. This certification includes product
development, which means that the end user
of chemical products which could have a
negative impact on health or the environment
must assess whether alternatives are available
which reduce the risk of such effects. If so,
the alternative must be preferred providing
this is possible without unreasonable expense
or inconvenience. Unitor Chemicals has
consequently adopted a principle that all
new environmentally-adapted products must
be at least as cost-effective as the existing
alternatives. This is the only way to ensure
that these products are taken up and thereby
have a genuinely positive impact on the
environment. One example is the commitment
over many years to developing water-based
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Togesher will the Torvald Klaveness Group and the Norwegian Refugee Council, WW has contributed to the rebuilding of lwo tsunami-hit schools in Indonesia’s Aceh province.
These pictures show the laying of the foundation stone, building work, the temporary lents, and the opening of the schools in October 2005. Bjort P Karlsson laid the foundation stone
while Barn Tensherg performed the opening on behalf of WW. Karlsson and Tonsherg are pictured bottomn right with other partners in the project.




BIPRN P KARLSSON

WW’S REPRESENTATIVE IN IDONESIA
BARWIL UNITOR SHIPS SERVICE
WILHELMSEN MARITIME SERVICES

Bjorn P Karlsson from Gothenburg in Sweden is responsible for Banwil's operations in Indonesia. embracing 15
offices and 160 einployees. He joined Norwegian Specialized Auto Carriers (NOSAC) in 1993, and this compary
was acquired by WW the foliowing year. Karlsson stayed with Wilhelmsen Lines before joining Barwil ~ now part of
Wilheimsen Maritime Services - in 1999.

WW regards its social responsibility as spanning a number of areas, including
the natural environment, social issues relating to its own employees,
business ethics and social value creation. In addition, it feels a responsibility
for supporting various kinds of humanitarian and voluntary organisations
which make an extra commitment for various social groups.

As an example, the group joined forces in 2005 with the Torvald
Klaveness Group and the Norwegian Refugee Council to help rebuild two
schools hit by the Asian tsunami in Inflonesia's Aceh province.

“I've been fortunate enough to follow this project from the outsel,” says
Bigrn Karlsson, who has been responsible for the work at WW. “When we
asked what we could do to help Aceh province, the answer was unambiguous:
‘we need schools’. So schools if was.”

This was the first building project approved by the Indonesian authorities
after the huge damage caused by the'tsunami in this region, and the schools
were completed within four months.

“One of the most memorable moments for me was undoubtedly laying the
foundation stone,” recalls Karlsson.

“It's impartant for an international company to show that it cares. The
schools project shows that we accept a responsibility. It shows that we work
in a company which both has and demanstrates a broad involvement in the
local communities in which we're represented. And it shows that the values
and standards on which our group is hased also find clear expression in
acteal action.”

The schools opened on 13 October 2005. “That was a fantastic
day,” Karlsson says. “I was at the official ceremony together with other
representatives for WW, Torvald Klaveness, our local partner, the Refugee
Council and the Norwegian embassy. Two hundred children could finally move
from temporary tents to the new buildings. There were a lot of happy faces.

“In addition to making an important contribution to tsunami victims in
Aceh, the schools project also played an important role for the employers, We
feel proud of working for a company which involves itself actively in helping
pecple who're having a difficult time for various reasons.”
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environmentally-adapted cleaning and
degreasing agents to replace strong solvents.
All the chemicals in Unitor's product range
meet the new standards in the EU’s regulations
for washing and cleaning products, which
were introduced in October 2005. Intended
to provide better protection for health and the
environment, these rules set strictei standards
for labelling and biodegradability.
For further details, see WW’s separate
environmental report.

SECURITY

New demands and increased expectations for
security management have been imposed on
international companies by a global worsening
in the threats they face. To improve emergency
response in WW, planning began in 2005 to
prevent serious criminal activity directed at
the group. The goal is to protect its cmployees,
assets and business interests.

Security preparedness on the ships is
based on the International Ship and Port
Facility Security code and the Safety of Life
at Sea (SOLAS) convention. WW’s ¢perating
systems at sea and on land satisfy international
requirements and have been subject to the
necessary certification processes.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The WW group's most important centribution
to accepting social responsibility is to conduct
it's a good commercial business. It is concerned
to contribute to sustainable developiment, which
is partly reflected through its commitment to
the development of employee expertise via the
WW Academy.

To strengthen WW'’s work on the environ-
ment, an agreement has been concluded with
Norway’s Bellona foundation which will ensure
that the group focuses on important environ-
mental areas.

The WW group is also actively involved in
various local communities. One example is its
collaboration with the Torvald Klaveness Group
and the Norwegian Refugee Council to rebuild
two tsunami-hit schools in Indonesia’s Aceh
province.

Lysaker, 13 March 2006
The board of directors of Wilh. Wilhelmsen ASA

% %/Mﬂ/a{ é b /
Wilhelm Wilhelmsen I.mf T Latldegel
chair deputy chair
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Helen Juell

PROSPECTS

WW will continue to concentrate on industrial
shipping and maritime services. To secure and
safeguard its position as one of the three largest
players in its markets, the aim is to pursue
further development of:

« an efficient global organisation

» new products and expertise

« market synergies and cross sales.

Continued growth is expected in all cargo
categories during 20006. The fleet structure
in its operating companies means that WW is
particularly well placed to take advantage of the
growth in car, ro-ro and project cargoes. The
expansion in volumes from Asia is expected
to persist. Korean car manufacturers are
experiencing substantial export growth, and
WW is taking a large slice of this increase
through Korea’s EUKOR.

The tonnage position is expected to be tight
in 2006, with a high level of utilisation for the
world’s car carriers, Pursuing an active fleet
renewal programme is therefore important for
WW, both to maintain existing capacity and to
secure its share of the growth.

WW is making a strategic and long-term
commitment to logistics because this activity
will play an important future role in supporting
the group’s shipping operations. The logistics
business will be pursued through operating
companies in close contact with the largest car
and ro-ro customers.

A substantial build-up in WWLs logistics
network is expected in coming years, so that the
company is fully equipped to deliver door-to-
door services to its most important customers
on a global basis. Growth is expected to occur in
Asia and eastern Europe.

Glovis is expected to continuing its strong
expansion as a result of the growth at Hyundai
and Kia.

When WMS has completed its restruc-
turing in the wake of the Unitor acquisition,

Odd Rune Austgulen
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a good foundation will have been laid for
increased earnings. The work of securing syner-
gies and creating a more efficient organisation
began in 2005 and will continue into 2006.
Synergy gains are expected to yield their full
effect in 2007, while about half of them are due
to be phased in during 2006.

The value of bunkers hedging was USD 50
million at 31 December 2005. This hedging will
expire in 2000, with a correspondingly negative
effect on the accounts. Active efforts are being
devoted to alternative strategies for hedging
bunkers in future, and to other responses to the
rising cost of bunkers.

Combined with high earnings from
shipping, WW is committed to strong growth
in other business activities such as logistics
and maritime services. This will give the
group a broader and more robust commercial
foundation,

The board of WW puts its faith in the
Norwegian government and the industry policy
enshrined in its declaration on taking office
in the autumn of 2005, and hopes that the
political authorities will have the good sense
to see that shipping companies in Norway
need competitive terms which are comparable
to those enjoyed by their competitors in the
EU. This will be crucial for the opportunity to
pursue shipping operations of any scale from
Norway in the future.

WW expects its net operating profit for
2006, with ordinary finandial items, to be on
a par with the year before. &

EcYSau

Diderik Schnitler

Ingar Skaug
group CEO
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Proflt/[lossl before taxes ik
’iaTaxes i

S T4

{1

85
7.

-",Netproflt/(loss) S e : I e

of this”rni'nority,intereSts ' : )

Earnmgs per-share {USD) R 1

Dituted earnlngs per share’ IUSD] Pobate o T '
d

. INCOME STATEMEN

4. 323
B Vil

78

1.62
1.62
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_,:V,I,BALANCE SHEED
WILH, WILHELMSEN GROUP

CLusDmil R Note = 311205 311204

Fiitéd'iaSSets v
Deferred tax asset

b g
"Goodwnll and lntanglbte assets i Lol s e -   : e gs e gg
‘Vessels property; flxtures e y e b R ‘ difiin 842" AL 701
Pension‘assets R : SRR R CLT e 5 o 5

Investments in associates ‘ 814l o512 424 ,
“::0thér lqng;term.assets : : gl e : . N R I T .63 e ¢
Total fixed assets N e . , Y 1239

Current assets R : : 5Ty = RUFTIS O O T VI
. Other.current assets i S E IR e IR Y } 94
o inventory: o e & B 1 / ST R D
Sk term flnanmal investments: SR e Plnage ot 164 RN 121
"'Cash and bank deposits B e LT S Y S M43
: ‘,:"Tota_l current assets B : : o el RGN e 3B S,
' 2263 1596 o o

i

s Totalassets e s e i v ,
* il ’":_:f,( SARIAE A i S fiti i i 2 g [ [ S - HIEER & i : .
Equity . . . . : : e ‘ e fil

Paid-in capital Rl LU SRV
i1+ Retained arhings : R - S et 702 B 607
" Minority interests, s ‘ PR : S IR ;. g ] R
Jotalequity. - .- Lo S L s e B3 736

Provisionsfor liabilities N G TR TP P )
Pension liabilities - - Lo ey il 2 LT 70
ik A S gy A1
113 ' 81

Deferred.tax .«

i+ Total'provision for liabilities”

5;"':Long term llabnlmes : ; :
: Long -term |nterest bearlng debt - 758 © 5447
500 L 10

808t . 554

~+Other;longstermliabilitiesy:

“Total long-term liabilities- G

L ,Current llabllmes

~Tax: payable ;
- Public dutles payab e

14 . 14
491 210
... Total':current:liabilities e : : ; iy S oo 5087 225

Total equity and liabilities /..~ - i Com B ey 1596

"Other current llabllltles

.9/13 :

i

. Lysaker 'IGYMarch 2006 i

Ml ttitiaten 4 ém el Juildt - ok /w!m S B B Ly
‘Wilhelm -Wilhetmsen Lejf:T, Leds:!e {3k “Helen Juell:, Odd'Riine Au tgulen < F Bettlna Banoun ... Diderik Schnitler: Ingar'Skaug

chair deputy ci»alr : b ; ; ‘ i G © group chief executive

i
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C/—\SH FLOW STATEME NT -

WILH WILHELMSEN GROUE3 ;
7 EE
Y :
i

; : R 4
T i Sl 2008, 2004
“icash fléw%fi’om operating activities’ : o v . o
- Inicome béfore taxes ‘ : Ta01 164

~Taxe's'paid:in' the period, { 3] ' {7)
Loss/{gain) on'sale of fixed assets P (o) o
Depreciation and write-down S i e . : \ . “Eg 57
Changes in market value - trading portfolio: o i S R () r . {54}
Share of net result from asssciates 1. i ‘ ‘ S T e e (34)

‘ Changesin recelvables/habll|t|es/bunkers ' : i G [ L 124) S0 13)
Change in inventories Gt ey e ‘
Difference expensed pensmn and premlurn paid-. ; . : - “l.2| ' - o3
Change-in other perlodlc accruals Tt S e . : e 30 28 FRir
Net cash:provided by/(used in) opierating activities . by : L 159 . (LTI |
Cash flow from investing activities Sy
“Proceeds from séle o‘f‘ fixed assets ..+89 “oB

© 7 Investments in fixed assets and goodwill ! ;([;'1,811' . o h4)

Ulnvestments i’ subsidiaris and other companies - (240)- {100)
Changes in other’investments: 1", [ & e (10} . : L2
Net cash flow provided by/(used ;?m) investing activities D : A 5 (342). (207)

: _Cash, flow from finanicing actlvnms el o o e s
:v Proceeds from issuance:of debt o s - : sk e g BTy : 0 178
. v,Repayment of debt el L (93) T (8h)

X rchase own:shares o ; ~ o (2)
DlVldends paid T HEAREIE B e " L : [58) {36}

~ Netcash flow provided by/[used im] finan cing activities ’ ‘ PR L 208 - 52

' Net |ncrease/(decrease) in cash dnd cash'equivalents ™ = o By ey 40 11

~Cash'and cash equivalents-at-01. E1 L s o : e : ) : ‘ 143 151 .
Cash'and cash equivatents at 31.12 o e 183, .0 o 0160
Restricted bank deposits at 31, 1’ aa :
Payroll tax withhalding account ! T ' ) AR ! i 2 i } 3
Total cash and cash equwalents <It <k 12 e Lo 188 143 .

i

i
|
\
|
|
-
|
!
\
|
|
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WILH WILHELMSEN GROUP . = : ;

UL Attributable'to equity holders of thekcyompa by

" Share; Own Total paid- Other :Retained; ' Minority Total
: P - capital . shares in‘capital ‘reserves. | ... earnings _interests. equity
uspmitt e , e . : '

‘Balance at 01.01.2004

180 (8 L 606

S fuirrent year's change in equity: oo
Cgr,renl'c,y translation adjustments ' - ‘ (8
Acquisition of own sh‘ares‘ ey 1} =1 ‘ : Wby . (3)
Dividends to shareholders; paid " i . S ) R (38)
Options, employees, . i : 1 B g s P 1

“Net income . v‘ e . i 1685 p 3 SR b2 A

Balance at 31.12.2004 2:15) cla BB 507 g 7,36‘ .

- Own shares e

presented 3.4 per cent of the share capital in nominal value at 31 i‘[\),éce‘rﬁ)be - 2004

o 'Attributable to equity holders of the Compahy B P

E2 T T

hare

. , L own T;:'talpaidi i iDther. i i/ Retained - * . Minority . Total
capltal . inishares .. . in capital 'Z; reserves i earnings’ i “interests i raquity

‘USD mnll S e ‘ ’ » ’ B i
“‘Balance at'31.12.2004 ;1307 A8k 2B e b 0T e d dag
'010105|mplementat|oneffect S e T L T L . 1
of 1AS 39" e . , -

' ,§CUrrent yearschange in equny : T e - : . . ,
* Valation of financial instruments. 1. i R R e 2 i T i e : 2
 T'turrency tranglation adjustments’: . . o ‘ : Ay GRS PNV 7 1E
L0 Dividends to shareholders, paid ’ o {58) {58)
Options;.employees : 3

189. ., -3 191

‘_Ne,tylncom‘e T ; el
125 2 702 B 8L

Balance at 31,12.2005 "

i

Own.shares represented 3.2 per cent of the share’capitalin nominal valué atat December 2005, -

3t RES
Sl

D|V|dend pald in 2004 was NOK 1 ;per shafe in May.and NOK 4 pershare.in October The 2005 payments were: NOK- 4 per share.in May and -

- NOK:4 per share‘in November. Th‘e proposed dividend for flscal 2005'is'NOK'5 per share payable in‘May. A decision on this proposal will:.iy i S

:be taken by thé annual-general meetmg on 4 'May 2006. Suggested dividend:is. notincluded:in;the kyear end balance sheet, . *

W

_EQUITY WILA, WILHELMSEN GROUP
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““..ventures., :
{The'annual accounts were adopted by the board of directors

s

: Wllh Wllhelmsen “ASA [the company] is domlclled in Norway
The compahy’s conisolidated accounts for flscal 2005 embrace
the company.and:its subsidiaries [referred to collectlvely as:the
groupl and the group ‘s share of ase octated companies and Jomt

on 13 March 2006

- pasic PRINCIPLES '_f; L )
The consolldated accounts have been prepared in accordance &
'W|th the Internattonal Flnanctal Reportlng ‘Standards (IFRS), as

. spectfled by the European Union: ‘These are the group 's'first'cons

group s financial posmon fmancla results and cash flows
The group ‘accaupts are presented |n Us: dollars lUSDl
; .,rounded off thenearest whole milli |on ThlS lS ‘because the bulk

of: transachons(ln the group's inte nattonal Operatlons aredeno=;.
minated’in"USD.:[n addition; the bulk of the group ‘s fmanclng is: .

in'USD.and the required rate of Teturnis stated in this.currency:
The consolidated accounts have been prepared urder the
hlstorlcal cost convention as madi f|ed by the revaluatlon of

fihancial assets:and liabilities [mcludmg flnanmal défivatives)
.t fair value'through the income statement:’ :
Prepartng financial statement‘s in conformlty with

3

‘Internatnonal Financial Reportlng Standards requires the mana-

B "gement o' miake lise of estimates and assurnptlons which affect’

the application’of the accounting pnnaples and the reported

- amounts of. assets and lisbilities, revenues and expenses.
;Estlmates and. assocnated assumptlons are ‘basedon: historical .
experlence and other:factors regerded as reasonable inithe’ . ¢
circumstances. These caleulation’s form. the. basis for assessmg
the: capltahsed valueof assets and llabtlltles which.do not find

. clear expression from other sour< es The actual'result'can vary'

- from these: estimates. Areas which'contain a number, of these

o ‘assessments orare’complex, or areas where assumptlons and

estumates are 5|gn|f|cant for the <onsol|dated accounts are:

' described’in more detail below i the sectlon on |mportant

o ’accountlng esnmates and assumptlons

The accounting pr|nc1ples outluned below have been applled
:accounts and i |n the IFRS opening balance sheet ath. January ’
:2004 prepared:in connection with: the conversion to'the IFRS.

N

‘.)GONSOLIDATIDN PRINCIPLES

solldated accounts under the IFRS; and |FRS 1/has: been followed: :
“Noté' 20 speclhes the lmpact of the converston to IFRS on the‘

SUBSIDIARIES n :
Subsidisries are all entttles over wh|ch the group has the

‘power to govern the financial and operatlng policies, generally
“;accompanying a shareholdmg of more than-half of the voting

rights: Subsidiaries are consolldated from the date on which -
controliis transferred to the group They are de consolldated

s'from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accountlng is used to account for

the acqmsmon of subS|d|ar|es by, the group. The cost of an
~acqunstt|on |s measured as the faur value of the assets gwen

the date of exchange and costs dlrectly attributable to the
acqutsmon identifiable assets acqulred and liabilities and*-

~contingent llabllllles assumed m a busuness combination are .

[

‘measured |n|t|alty at thelr fair value at the date of acqunsmon
lrrespectlve of the extent of any. mmorlty |nterest The excess of .,

the cost.of. acqmsmon over the falr value of'the group ‘s share of-

Iy net |dent|f|able assets inithe subsndlary is capltallsed as goodW|ll

Inter company transacttons balances and unrealised gains

‘on transactmns between group cornpames are eliminated.

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
Associatés and joint ventures are entities.over: wh|ch the group

“has’significant influence or joint: control respectively-but does:

|
not-control alone:Significant influerice generally.accompanies

tnvestments where'the ‘group ‘has 26-50% of the voting rights.

|nvestments in assoctates and’joint'ventures.are accounted for

:.by. the equtty method Such investments are recognlsed at the
i date of acqussntnon attheir acqunsttlon cost lncludlng possible

(goodW|ll e o l_ i : ;
: The group ‘s share ot the |ncome statement in assoclates and

jointventures’is: recognlsed in the income statement andis’

: ‘added ta the capitalised valué of the investments together with.- ’
Caits share ot its share of:equity movements not'recognised.in the

mcome statement. . l
-Unreatised gainsion: transactions between the group and its

; assoaates/Jomt ventures are el[mtnated.

 MINORITY INTERESTS
po 'Mlnorlty |nterests have beenldlsclosed separately from the
consolldated shareholders equny and ltabulmes

i
fi
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i

i segment

o MARITIME SERVICES T

yngaged IN'provi=
r|sks and returns

o
the bu5|

. that dlffer from those of other busmess segments A geographtcal :

‘segmentis engaged iniproviding products or serv:ces wnthln a
particular geograph|cal area: which is subject to risks and.
returns:that differ:from those of <»egments Y
geographlcal markets.: bl o

' . The shlpplng segment: offers a global detvice coverlng major::

global trade- routes :and ports. Revenue is; allocated to geographlcal
segmen’ts on the basis of the cargo s loadmg port The group

does:not'provide other data broken down: geographlcally apart:ii
frorn révenue;; smce the rellabmty measurement crlterlon cannot -
be met: :

The group has three hus;i(n‘ess ségmentsi’

B

SHIF’PING ‘
his segment is engaged in deep iea transport'ofcars, roli:on

roll-off cargotand project cargo s main customers are globat
icar manufacture;rs'"a’nd manufacturers of: agr:culture and other
high and heavy equipmenit, The customers cargo is carrled in |

: worldwnde transport network This is the group ‘s capltal |ntenstve

LOGISTICS

This segment has much the samecustomer gr(oup‘s}as‘ shipping

Customers opera}ttng globally are offered,,sophi‘sticated logistics
services. The'segment's primary'l hssets arehuman capital
(expertlse and: systems) and customer cont: cts'reflected in longj
terrm relatlonshlps 4 i Ny

Wllhelmsen Maritime Serwces of{ers ship rr anagement crewing;
’ port agency and related: serwces througha worldw:de network of
“.more:than 280 OffICES in72 countllesv’/, :

HOLDING
This’ segment includes shlpplng actlvmes Wthh fall to meet the
definitioh for other core activities; These inclides the:group's
fleet of small offshore vessels in outh= east Asia and the Middle
East as'well as the Dockwise- N V. heavy transport company

.« [both- consslidated! by'the equity method] Corporate WW activities

and expenses,‘and.the effect of ellmlnatmg inter-company .
transacttons are also mcluded |n<th|s segment

' Ea,se;p‘arate equity, component

FDREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLAT!ON

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION: CURRENCY
The financial: statements of the. group s entities are measured

|n the primary currency of.the economlc erviconment in which

he entity operates (the funictional currency] The consolrdated
‘financial statements are pres,ented in Usp.-

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
Foretgn currency transactions:are translated |nto the functlonal

‘ currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the’

;transactions: Foreighiexchange. galns and:losses resultmg from

+ ' the 'settlement:of such transacttons and from the transaction at-

year-end exchange rates of mon

minated in foretgn currencies:are’r cognlsed in‘the income state-

ment If the currency posmon is regarded as'cash flow hedglng, :f o

value for llqmd securities in forengn currenctes classmed as

available'for sale are spllt ints translatlon differences owing to

ii;changes in the amortised cost 6f the securities.and other changes

in'the capitalised value of the sécurities. Translation dlfferences
are recogmsed inthei |ncome ‘statement, and other changes in.
capttallsed value are recognlsed dlrectly in equny

Translanon dnfferences on non: monetary ltems lboth assets”
and llabllmesl are reported as part of the fair-value gain or loss

iwhen; assessmg fair value. Translatlon dlfferences on.non-mone-

tary.items; slich as‘equities held at falr value through the | income .
statement, are-reported-as part of the fairivalue galn or loss
:when assessing fair value, Translat:on dtfferences on nion-moné:
tary items are included.in equny as.part of:the fair value re_serve. :

GROUP COMPANIES :
The results and financial posmon of all the group entities with a
functlonal currency d|fferent frém the presentation.currency-are
translated into:USD’ Balance sheets are translated at the closing
rate on the date of each bala nce sheet. Income and expenses for

eachi |ncome Statement:are t anslated at average exchange rates‘

and all resulting:exchange’ dlfferences related to:translation of -
the-balance shaet and'the income statement-are recognised_as

Goodwill‘and fair value adjustments arisln;g on'the acquisition :

i ofa‘foreign.entity.are:treated as assets and liabilities of the

foretgn entlty and translated at the'closing rate;

ry assets and llabllmes deno»" s



TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Property, fixtures and vessels are stated etnistorical cost.
Depreciation’is:calculated. 6na st alght ll’ile basis.

T

‘The carrying value of fixed ass

“léssaccumulatéd depre‘ciatioln“an i alny impairment.charges.

“The depreuatlon charge will: refle ct expected Fesidual value,
vaard payments and interést costs’ related to. constructlon loans
.are capltallsed Oth r borrowmg coslslar= expensed e

'Land is'not deprec ] d“Other tangtble f|xed assets are
“deprectated over the followmg ex; ec!ted’L seful llves,t

lPropertvyw g 10-50 years
+Fixtures:

f\/'é's'sels -

310years
25 a5 years (supply vessels 14 years)

» Each part: of a'fixed asset whr‘ R.is sicnifl'c:aznt forthe total
cost of the.item will be deprecnate’

i vslmllar useful tives will be included:ina snngle component

AR analy5|s of the group s fleet concluded that vessels based

“ona pure car trick’ carrter/roll on roll off design do'not:ineed'to:
‘be decomposed since there'is no>5|gn|f|cant differenceiinithe

: expected useful tife for the vanou:s components of these vessels

. over, and above dockmg costs Costs telatedito.docking and :
periodic maintenance will norrnally be deprectated over.the;:
period until:the next .docking: ’

.+ The esttmated residual value and. expected useful ltfe of long-
tived' assets are reviewed at each loalance sheet date'and; where
'they duffer su_;mflcantly from previbus estlmates depreciation
’charges;w,lll be changed accordmgly. b

l \HINTANGIBLE FIXED:ASSETS. :

Amortlsatlon of-intangible fixed assetsiis based onthe followmg
" expected useful lives; ja

Indefinite life
Esyears

l Goo wxll
Computer software
Other,lntanglble assets

GOODWILL " . : " ;
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acqunsntlon overi:
the faur value of acquired assets less llabllltles of .the acqutred
subsidiary: joint:venture or assouate at the date of acqulsmon

:Details concernlng the! accountmg treatment ‘of goodwull are ;o
‘ivesséls with a:similar de5|gn! orgamsed and operated as a fleet;

are evaluated for impairment|on the basis that'the whole fléet is

provrded in.the section: on consolldatlon prlnimples above.

sequals the histerical loss o

straight-line method overiits e‘xpected' useful life;

COMPUTER SOFTWARE
Computer software and start-up llcences are capitalised:in the
balance sheet.:Costs related to software licences, ‘development
or:maintenance are expensed as.incurred. Costs directly asso-;
cnated with'the development of identifiable software’ owned by -
the group with'an‘expected useful life of more than oneiyear,
are capltaltsed Direct costs embrace software development
personnel and a share of relevant overheads. Capttallsed
computersoftware developed[ in-house: is-amortised using.the

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS :
Capltallsed e enses related t other mtanglble fixed assets are

- amortised over the expected useful lives.in accordance with the =
) stratght line. method. e :

<. LEASES
separately Components wuth B i o
*.iLieases for property, equipment and vessels where'the group

carrtes .substantially all the risks-and rewards of ownership are
classnfled as finance‘leases. :

Finance eases ars capltallsed at! the mceptlon of the lease at
the lower offair.value'of the! teasedifemor the present value of

' agreed lease’ payments Each lease payment is allocated between

liability-and finance charges The correspondlng rental obllgatl-
onsiareiinclided in other long- “term llabrlltles The assouated
interest eleme tis charged to thel mcome ‘statement over the

lease perlod sito, produce a perlodlc rate of interest onthe i

remamlng balance of the, lrabmty
Fihafce teases ars depre
ofithe'gsset: or the lease: term

each period.
e over the shorter of useful life

Leases where a 5|gn|f|cant portlon of the risks and rewards

of ownershlp are retamed by.the llessor are classmed as:opera-

ting leases. Payments made; nder operatlng leases net of any
fmanctal |ncent|ves from the. lessor are ¢harged: to the income
statement oA a stralght llne" ‘asns over the perlod of the lease.

IMPAIRMENT OF NUN FINANCIAL ASSETS

Property, flxtures vessels and intangible assets are reviewed for :

potential tmpalrment whenever changes in-circumstances or
events indicate that the book’ value of assets may not be recove-
rable. For the purposes of’

essnng |mpa|rment assets are

: grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable: lndependent

cash inflows exist:{cash= generatlng units). Impalrment testtng of

.
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i

the lowest cash- generatmg unit. An Impalrment lossiis ihe :
amount by which'the carryirig ‘amounticfan assetexceedsits -

recoverable:amount::The. recoverable amount |s the-higheriof.its' |

fair value'less sales ¢tosts and its i/alue in Use. The value inuse
is the présentivalue of the future cash Inflows expected to be
. 'derived from theiasset;

sed if.a change has occurred:i in the estlmates ‘used to determlne
the recoverableamount ofthe asset;A'loss inthe evént of a -
change in'value is only reversed t('» the extent that:the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed ithe carrymg value which would
“have been determlned net:of depu eclatlon Sramortisation,

. had no |mpa|rment charge been recognlsed in‘prior pertods

‘ Impalrment lossesirelated. to goocIW|ll carnot be reversed

 -FINANCIAL ASSETS. s sler ‘

The group classmes its flnanmal agetein he following categories
tradmg financial assets.at fair valie through the income state- "
ment; mvestments held to maturlly, and flnancxal assets avallable
for sale. The classification depends on:ithe piirpose of the asset!
Managemen’t determines the-classification of financial ‘asset\s at;,
thei'r initial're’coghition., ' bt 4 I

i

Mg

) TRADING FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH THE INCOME

STATEMENT: i i i 3
This category conststs of financial assets held fo_r:tradmg. Al
flnanCIal assetiis cla55|f|ed in this category f achiredprincipally
for the purpose of proflt from short-ter ice gains. Derivatives
“-areialsoplaced:in this category unless designated as hedges,

’ "Assets in this category are classified ascurrent.

INVESTMENTS HELD'TO MATURITY il
: Investments hetd to maturity are hon derivative fmanCIal assets

W|th flxed or predlctable paymentl; and flxed maturltles which

management has-a‘real intention land ablllty to hold untll maturity:

i .

FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE-FOR SALE :
*Financial assets.available.for;sale are non denvatlves Wthh are
-either designated in'this:icategory or: not classmed in‘any:of the

other’ categomes Théyiarefinclided in tanglble fixedjassetsito the™
—extent that management ddes not intend'ta! dlspose of the: |nvest- '

ment within. 12 months ofithe balance sheet date:

i
P
biv f
o]
!
!
I
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7 statement are reco

An |mpa|rment loss recogniset in- pnor pertods will be rever- ~.andithe. transaction costs expensed

i

All fmanual assetsiarei

iti "lly recogmsed at falr value plus.; 7 l

e transact|on costs: Fmancnal assets carrted at fair value in-the
r’\mcome statement are recognlsed at the date of acqmsmon at fair

value andthe'transaction costs expensed. Flnancnal assets .
[
available for sale WI‘IICh are:carriedat fair valuei in the income.:

ed: at the date:of acqmsmon at.fair value

Unrealised changes in the value of eqmty instruments classi-
fied as available:for sale are charged directly to'equity. Reahsed

; galns andlosses are recognlsed in the income statement in the : St
) perlod they arise, b : . R A

BUNKERS AND INVENTORIES

Bunkers aré stated at cost which is. determined usmg the hrst |n
Hfirsts -out (Fifel method:

Other mventorles are:stated at the lower of historical cost
determined by the Fifo method or:market vatue. Historical: cost
for-goads.in progress and: goods of own manufacture are direct
production costs plus.a share of productlon overheads Other
mventorles are written down for estlmated obsolescence.

RECEIVABLES

;Recelvables are recogmsed at face value less provision for bad :

debts.,
Non mterest bearlng long term recelvables are measured at

““net present value

/GASH AND CASH EO.UIVALENTS

' :Cash and.cash equwalents mclude cash’i in hand, deposuts heid at

call with banks other shortterm hlghly llqmd mvestments with
original maturltles of;three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are shown:under: borrowmgs in current’ liabilities
on the balance sheet b

SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY. SHARES

Wher the’ cornpany. purchases its own shares the consnderahon
paid;- :ncludmg any attributable! transactlon costs net of income-

tax s is deducted from the equny attnbutable to-the parent com:=i

$

i panys sharehotdersiuntit the shares are cancelled; reissued of

sold. Should such shares subsequently be sold or relssued any

constderatlon recenved is: mclIuded in shareholders equny




DIVIDEND .

“Dividend payments to'the parent <ompany'e ehareholders are.
recognised asa llab|l|ty in the groupvs fman_lal statements from

the date when:the:dividend are approved by the general meeting.

LoANs i e

.Loans are recogmsed atfair. value when the proceeds are::

received; net of transactlon costs. In subsequent perlods loans
are stated atiamortised cost usmq the effectlv' yield miéthod:

:, Any dnfference between proceeds Inetoof A Factlon‘;c\ostsl and

the redemptlon value'is recognised:in the'
the term of the: loan
: Loans are classnfled as' currert llabllltles unless the'group
has an unconditional rrght to defe settlement 6f the llablll'(y for.
atleast 12 months after the balancersheet date Bt

DEFERRED TAX

‘Deferred tax.is calculated using the iability‘method onall
temp‘o‘rary differences arising betwe eriithe tax bases of assets::
-.and llabllmes and-their carrylng a‘mounts inthe consolidated
- fmancral statements. Deferred income tax is determlned usmg
Atax rates andlaws which-have been =ubstantlally enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected|to.apply when'the related
‘_fdeferred income tax asset is reall::el: or th deferred income tax
“ligbility settled.

Deferred incorne tax assets are recogmsed to the extent that
it'is probable that futire taxable proflt will be avallable and that'
the temporary drtferences an.bededlicted from thrs proflt

Deferred.income taxiis,calculated:on temporary ditferences. -

(arlsmg on mvestments in subsrdlarues and assoctates except
vwhere the tlmmg of the reversal olf the temporary dlfference s
,controlled by the group: (B T

“For ‘group compames subject to the Norweglantonnage tax

vreglme the tonnage tax'is. recognlsed as an operatlng cost.
£

A provts:on for.incame tax wxll ‘be.made'when:the anniial general'

meetmg has resolved: to pay a divi iend i .
Eor companles which are:sepa rately l|able for tax and which
are‘consalidated: usmg the;equity'inethod, the value recogmsed :

in‘the income statement and balanci sheet wlll’already be net of tax.

l»REVENUE RECOGNITION ‘ ~l

;:ome statement over

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

PROVISIONS

The group makes provisions for restructuring costs and legal
‘claims when a Legal or constructive: obligation exists as a result
<.of past events, it is! more l|kely than not that an cutflow of resour-

[

ces W|ll be reqmred to settle the'obllgatlon .and the amount can

be estrmated ‘with'a sufflclent degree of rellablllty Provisions are

not ‘made for future operatmg‘ losses:

Revenue from the sale of good ';and serwces is recogmsed at fair

iovalue; netof VAT, returns dlscounts and rejects Intragroup sales
fare ellrmnated Frelght revenue and ‘expenses relatlng tovessel ‘
‘k(voyages are accrued cn'the:basis of the number of-days that the
Jvoyage lasts before and after the end of the accountmg pericd.

Sales of goods and maritime ser\nces are recogmsed in the" 5

‘a accounting:petiod in‘which the sérvices are rendered basedon’ o

the degree of completion of the relevant transaction. The degree

\k: of.completion is.based on the actual services provided as'a
: proportlon of the total services to.be provuded ’

SHARE- BASED CDMPENSATIDN; i

The, group has an option prograrnme lor senior management.

)The 'granting date :was 1 January 2005. The total amount expen-
'sed over the'earning period is calculated ‘on the basis of the fair

value of the opttons granted *The counterpart entry is an increase
in equtty

Partlmpants in the programme ‘can elect to exercise the
optlons granted uncondltlonally, prowded they remain employed

’by the group, atany time up to 31 December 2007

¥ a
Derlvatlves are usually recogmsed at fa:r value on the date

a derlvatlve contract is entered into-and are: subsequently )
remeasured onia continous:basis at thelr fair value..The method.

~of recognlsmg the.resulting galn or:loss.depends’on whether the

derivative:i is desngnated asa hedgmg mstrument and if so, the

- nature/of the |tem bemg hedged The group: desxgnates certam

'derlvatwes as either ‘hedges. of fair value of recognised assets
, and; llabllltles {fair:value hedgel or hedges. of hlghly probable
forecast transact:ons (cash: flow: hedges]

g
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At:the date of‘the he,dging trarlsaotion, the group,doc,uments
““the relationship between heédging instruments and hedgeditems,
as well asithe object of its;risk management and the strategy .

i
underlylng the varrous hedge tran‘.actlons The group alse

documents the extent to'which the: derlvatlves used:: are effective ;.
in smoothing the changes:in real valueior cash flow. assocnated
with the hedge items. Such asses<ments e documented both
‘initially and on an ongoing basis. L
i The fair value of denvatwes u=ed for hedglng is shown in.note
15 Changes in'the hedging: equxty item.are: shown in.the equny
reconcnlnatlon a ; ; :

The fairvalue: of fmancnal mstr uments traded in act|ve
markets'is based on:guoted market ‘prices at the'balance sheet
“date..The fair;value of flnanaal mstruments not traded ih‘an

actwe market is determlned using valuation technlques such
as the d:scounted value of future cash flows' Independent
experts venfy thevalug determm:tnon for; instruments which '

. are constdered materlat Lihaay o B

i FAIR VALUE HEDGES
Changes in:the falr value of der|

i ves wh|ch are deSIgnated

Ha and qualafy as fa|r value hedges ate recogmsed in thesincome

statement, together with-any chariges i in fam value'whichican
be attrrbuted to the hedged assetior llablllty%

CASH-FLOW HEDGE N e v
The effective portnon of changes il the fair: value ‘of derlvatlves

destgnated as cash-flow: hedges are recognlsed directly,i in equity...;."

Galn and: (o< on'the: ineffective portion is' recognlsed in‘the:..
|ncome statement Amounts recoqnlsed d|rectly in eqU|ty are [
recognlsed a5 |ncome or, expense inthe i income:statementiin the '
perlod when the'hedged llablllty or planned transactlon W|ll
affect the‘income statement ; ‘ ‘

¢

: DERIVATIVES WHICH DO NOT QUALIFY FOR HEDGE ACCOUNTING
.. Certain derivative instruments do-not qualify for hedge accoun-
“ting: Changes in the fair-value of ‘any, derlva ive mstruments
which do not;qualify tor hedge ace ountlng are recogmsed m
the lncome statement

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES WILH. WILHELMSEN GROUP

PENSION UBLIGATIONS

,Group compames have various. penslon schemes These schemes e

are generally funded through payments toiinsurance compames
or pensnon funds on. the ba5|slof per:odlc actuarlal calculations.
The group has both deflned contr|but|on and defined benefit

'plans : e :

A defined contrlbutlon plan is one under Wthh the group pays

ifixed contrlbutlons to.a separate legal entlty The group has no

legal or constructlve obllgat|ons to pay “further contributions if

: the:fund'does:ngt hold sufficient assets to.pay. all employees the

beneflts relating to emptoyee serwce in the current and prior

‘periods

A defnned beneflt plan is ane whu:h is not adefined contrlbu- :

tlon plan Thls type of plan ty;lchally defines:an’ amount of.pension

‘\beneflt an employee wnll receive on retiremént; normally depen-

dent on one or more: factors such as 2ge, years of serwce and'
PaY- \ . '
1 The liability recognlsed in the balance:sheet in: respect of

- dafined benefit pension plans is the present value of the.defined
. beneflt oblxgatlon at'the balance sheet date less the.fair value of

plan assets adjusted for unrecognlsed actuartal gams orlossés

“and unrecognlsed costs related to pen5|on earnlngs in earlier

permds The pensmn obttgatlon is'calculated annually by inde-

: 'pendent actuarles usmg a stralghtfllne earn|ngs method. The
; . present value'bf the defined benefit

bligations:| is'determined by :
duscountmg the est|mated future ce sh outflows using interest
rates for high- quallty corporate bonds which:are denominated in

‘the currency inwhich the beneﬁts will be. gaid; and-which have
r'terms to'maturity approxlmatlng to the terms of the related
penston liability. :

Actuarialgains:and losses arising fromihew-information or.

‘ changes ta actuarlal assumptlons in.excess of the hlgher of 10%
-..of'the value of the penston assets or 10%:per cent of the pensuonl -
‘ oblngatlons are recogmsed |nlthe income statement over the -

expected average remamlng workmg lives, of the' employees
Changes in pensuon plan benef:ts are recognised immediately
in‘theiincome statement untess rnghts inithe new pensson plan

i -are condmonal on the employee remalnlng in servnce fora




i

4 specthc perlod of tlme lthe vestmg erfio’d). ln;:that case, the.costs

- associated with the. ichange in benefit are amortisediona .\ i
U straights line basts over:the vestlngperiod.» ] ' -‘V SR
: For defined contribution plans, ‘the group pays cofntriybution to
publlcly or. prlvately admlnlstered pehsior;'ir;sura:nce plans on"/'
an obllgatory, contractualior voluntary basis. The group hasino

) ~further payment oblxgatlons*once the ‘contributions have been.

pa|d The contributions.are recognlsed asa payroll expense when
they fall dus. Prepaid contrlbutlons are recognlsed as an asset to.

. ments is avaalable

E ‘IMPORTANT ADCDUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

5 ‘When preparmg lhe fmancnal statements and in accordance Vith

by(generally accepted accountmg prmclples the group’ must make”
. assumptlons and estimates.These estlmates are based orinthe :
: .actual underlylng business, its present and forecast profntabmty
over time,.and expectatlons about !external fagtors such.as
interest rates, foreign exchange ratesiand éil prices, which are

outside the group 's control.iThis presents’ a substantlal riskithat.

o actual condltlons will vary from the: estlmatre_s

ESTIMATED VALUE OF GOODWILL

' . The.group, performs:annual tests lo énsure that the stated value

can be jUStlfled Gogdwill'is: allocaied to;units which: generate "

- cash flows. and'the value'i in'the ballance sheet mustasa mmt—

i mum reflect.the fair value of these cash flows .The group has. .
“financial' models whlch calculate and determme the fair value‘ ¢
through a comblnatlon of actual ahd expected cash flow ;
_generatlon dtscounted to:present: !/alue The expected future
“cash:tlow, generahon and modelsuare based on assumptlons and
k ,estlmated B b

.The calculatlon of net present ‘value mcludes the followmg
asslimptions: ;
USD/NOK= 4.5

USD interest rates = 3.5 %

’CDMPARATIVE FIGURES

“INCOME TAX e o

The group is subject to mcome tax in many jUrlSdIthonS

e Con51derable Judgement must be exercised to'determine income.
; tax forall countrles taken together m the consolidated accounts;
< The final tax liability for many transactlons and calculatlons will

be uncertam The: group. recogmsed tax llabllmes assocaated with

future decigions.in tax cases/dlsputes based on estimates of the
i ’llkellhood that additionat. mcome tax w1ll fall due Should the' fmal
outcome of. these cases:vary from the amaunt of the or|g|nal pro=
iVision, this varlance wrll affect the stated tax.expense and prov15|-

on for deferred taxin the perlod to Wthh the variance relates

REVENUE RECOGNITION

“«,Revenues ahd costs associated w1th vessel voyages are accrued

‘ on the basis of the number of days: that the voyage lasts before ",

hd after the end of the accountmg period. Sales of goods and
maritime services are recogmsed in the accounting perlod in
which the services are rendered, based on the degree of comple:

“‘tion,of the irelevant transacllon The'degree of completlon is

baged onthe actual services prowded as, E} proportvon of the total ,

"serwces tobe! prowded This rnethod requires the group to

exercise its 1udgement in assessmg how large a'share of the total -
service Has been dellvered oni ithe’ balance sheet date.
l
RELATED PARTIES ; ;
The company has: transactlons with'its assoctated companies and

joint. ventures These contracts are, based on commercual market”

terms. They related to the charterlng of vessels .of ‘long-term

»charters

See note: 9 for loans to assouated compames and joint '

ventures, i, < : : .
‘See note. 2 in the accounts for W|lh W|lhelmsen ASAfor

; information relating to remdneration for'the directors; the
“working chair.andthe chief executlve as well as loans ‘and
securlty provided'to employees ; ot

‘When necessary, comparatlve hgures have been adjusted to
: conform to changes in presentatlon for the current year :

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPEES WILH.. WILHELMSEN GROUP~ 32 :
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Note 1 Inventoties: ST N , ' s s

Raw materials’ i7" TR Lo . S o S
: fGoods/pro;ectsm process i (S . s L [ 10 (R e
Finished goods (s ' ’ i k5
T

Total inventories i 5
Accrial obsolete inventory:

Bunkers.:

Note 2-,‘yva_'ge5'an“d remuneration ¢

Wages 0T LT

, deroll-tax .

13 ‘10

23 g a2
T e 10
AT 118

Pension cost
Wages and remuneratlon seagm

- personnel’

Other remuneration

b " Total wages and remuneration -

~_Number of employees: e e i ;

i 'Groupicompanies in Norway s i i s o ] 250,
Group companies abroad : N o S ' : L4 13 . : 3213 :
‘Seagoing persoifel Barber. lnternatlonal : TR : ‘ e , ; 3 870071 o v 414
Total employees:. . - i : i& e T L 348s 9877

f"A\’ierageinumb'e‘r"ﬁufé’t"m:'lo'ye‘es' i 117682, ) 10016

Audit ot T o 2005 2004
Audltfees o : (N ot ‘ S0 0.7
0.2

Consultants fegto audltors Agre\ad upon's ryi;:ésf“
L 0.2,

0.2
13

_ ‘Consultants’fee to audutors Tax ervnces
,Consultants fee to auditors:: Other

Total . "= i S

<

_aontonext gage
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Note 2" 'Wages and remuneratlon cort frorm previods page

,0pt|on programme for semor executwes

,,Programme for employees at management level in the company, and ln lts assoc|ated sub5|dlarles Thls

’mtroduced in:February 2000 and exptred in-31 December 2004

x

i

programme was orlgtnally

At the same. tlme the Board decxded to allocate 355 000 shares of: Class A shares in WW currently owned by:the: company, to
the programme and authorlsed ttre group chief executlve to decide'who should be offered an-option to purchase ‘shares under the

group of employees the opportunlly to partlctpate in the programme. .,

%

programme The groupichief.exectitive has dec1ded to'use:the authority granted; and ina'letter’3 December 2004 offereda select

The optnons must be exerclsed in the penod from 1 January 200531 December 2007 The strike prlce W|ll ‘be the: average market

pflCE for shares of Class A orithé Oslo Stock Exchange i the:morith of December.2004, which was, NOK 148 per.share. A new average

“.market prlce closer:to/theoption-grant date will be establnshed for personnel who join the programme at a later date:

At.01.01
“Granted- .,
Exercised

2005 S ’

“Average exercise'price
“in/NOK'per share

: g,foptlons

3207000
(81:000}

Number of "

.Outstanding.options 31.12

2035

239000

... The cost W|ll be allocated over the earmng perlod Smce the optvons granted can be exerused from day one USD 1:9-million has been

g recognlsed directly'in the accounts as the tolal cost:

A provnsnon of WSD.0.7 mllllon ha= been rnade at 31 December for. payroll tax on the dlfference between the fair value and the strlke

prlce of outstandmg optlons

5

SRR A
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- Note'3 -Combined’items, income staﬁefmen_t

usDmitt

Gain on sales of vessels 7 9 X
Gain on:sales of bther assets ;. i g 2"
Total gain on sales of assets . 10 S 3.
Other dberating revehue T
Ship Serviceirevenue 265" 97 .
'Shrps equipment revenue T ’ '
Mannmg . ' 7
Ship management i i : 4
- Consultangy revenue P L 6
Other'revende " o b .23
Total other operatlng revenue 38 1477
:LVéssel expens/'es) L ; o -
Luboul ; g ‘ 4 4
Stores [water safety, chemcnals rbpes etc] : : : ; 3. 3
Maintenance of the vessel . ? 4 13
Insurance : 5 5
“Others, 7 21
Total vess’élexpvenses e ; 35 31
Other expenses L R : :
‘Bad debt - i g 2 1.
‘Rent expenditires ’ f 14 7
'Commumcatnon and IT. expenses b 21 .20
Outside:services: : g 5.,
~Travel ang meeting éxpeﬁseé ‘ ; o 127 6
Marketmg ‘expenses TN LoE 1 I3 g 4
Other administration expenses ' il =31 ni22
Total other expensés : : b 94 b4
cém_t 141 pég_;é‘ L i
) o)
i
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#MNote 3 Combined items, income statement i rantfrom previo i :

% ki , ! 2005 . 2004
Financial income. - i iy . L . Lk
Interest income s gyl T N W e

Return on short- term flnanual unvnstment
Net currency galn

Other financial income:: i a e ey . S 1

Totalfinanicial ncome o N 72000 19
Flnanual expenses BE -
interest expenses - E S (34) ;i (17}
Other financial expenses i ! s (2} )
Total flnan_cli_atexpense‘s‘ L T SR AT (361 (18] :
Financial mstruments s g Pl e e ey ; ; i .
o Realxsed llossl/galn related to currency hedg‘ng e B gn s A S
“Unrealised (loss)/gain related 16 evaluation of interest rate hedges e : A 6
"+ Unrealised [l_oss)/gayln related to evaluation of cUrrén‘c&:jandﬁinterest rate’hedges e (49) o ;
Total financial instruments ; A G &1} s e 0
.Netfinancial items’ e N i g - ' P (s} :
The grqup’s,f‘i;nanci’al‘instru‘rnents tedge tiiab lities.and assets whlch do nét quahfy for hedge accountmg :
“?Qhanges in the fair'value of derivatives whicr do not quallfy for hedge accountlng are recognlsed in the income statement. -
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Note 4”Texes i

U,SDvr'niu” "; L S p

L2005 2004

D|str|hut|on of tax expenses for the year o - . o R
- 'Payable taxes” 5 3
. Change in deferred tax ‘ ‘ 5 {10

Tnlel taxes .00 . ﬁ L e om0 om

~-Basis for tax computatlon :
lncorne before taxes
8% tax,,.: ; i

01 . 164
56 s

Tax effect from:. i
Permanent dlfferences i v . :
Non- taxable income; & i » [29) (28]
Share of prafits from associates and Jomt ventures . ' i i 29y 21
. Differences intax ratés - e R : O E Oy +(2)
Calculated tax for the group- . - FEE I : g A 10 7.

+Translation adjuslment effect

~Effective tax rate for the*g‘r’oup L “ T e S §5-1‘7% pe o He0%)

;

Untaxed equlty at'31 December was USD ‘I 138 m|ll|on Tonnage tax was: USD 0.4 mllllon for 2005 l2004 USD 0 7 mllluonerl
and is classxhed asan operatmg expense : e

Deferred tax. | : - « ,
Deferred income tax assets and llcbllmes are offset when there |s 3 legal enforceable rlght to offset: current tax assets

agamst current llabllltles and wheh the defe‘red |ncome laxes relates to theisame fiscal authorlty l
: . ‘ l

B e L e Gl Uiiob0s 0 2004
Deferred taxassets : S e T e : Lo (RO LT DR L 22
- deferred tax assets to be'recovered after mére‘than 12 month D SR 51 16

: o deferred tax assetsito be recovered within fZYn)pnth’. Db e L 5. TR

Fmore than 12imonth ™o 0 [T Ve b0 » )
- deferred ‘tax to be recovered within 12 month L, pt EONE TETEE R R 2

’Deferred tax
ie deferred tax. to'be recovered«al

Net

R T

L S e . o i 2005 e 2004
Net changes in deferred fax assel 01,0k o T S § Nl e I R )
“.Exchange dlfferences S Lo Y CHOEA L i 1 S R A

"‘v‘Ach|51tron of:subsidiary i i, L E R _ S o y : ’
Tax charged to equity - BN i e sad () i S

v-lncomestatementcharge TR : S RN R : S wlB) =10 -

. Balance'at 31,12

cunt next s
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- i:Nibte ‘4, Taxes

coatiirom p

Movement in deferred tax assets ajnd!ii‘ablitiebs:

‘Deferred tax :

. 01 0t. 2004

101012004 ©
" Credited to the income statement
Exchange differences’

L

Fixed

‘assets

Fihén:cial,;
instruments

ci Current,u i
assets/llabllltles

Total

' 22.

- 5)

1 12:2004
Credited to the income statement

Tax charged dlrectly to'balance sheet

Tax connected to acqu15nt|on of subSIdiary ;
: Exchange dlfferences‘ ;

29
(3.

31.12.2005

*. Deferred tax assets -

Credlted toithe'i income statement

L Exchange dlfferences it

visions;’

g Current -

. assets/liabilities
it
13

23

Taxlosses
‘carry-forward

25

~Total

13

12

131.12.2004 ¢ ‘
i Tax charged directly to balance shﬁet:
Credltgd foitheiincome’s ;
Tax connected to acquisi

atement

ion-of. sut5|diary

15

12

Ty
{2)

“12)

4

‘ e

m

30

{8)

14"

31.12.2005

Deferfediincome tax assets are recognised fo
through-the fiture 'taxab,le)’prcfit's‘ i5 probable,

Ry

!

A

20
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|
USD mill
Cost prlce 01 01.2004

ddltlons B 1 : x
Disposals. k

<. Currency translation adjustments
. ‘Cost'price 31.12.2004

. 'Accumulated depreaatlon and |mpa|rment
; Deprecnatlon S L
; Reversal anidispesal”” ; : :

‘ :" Currency transtation ad]ustments .

) V»Accumulated deprecnahon and |mpa|rment

i Carrying arnounts 2004

AT Januaryit
At 31 Decemlﬁér“m; .

.. Cost price 01 1012005 -

,Addmons o
o Acquisitions through busmess comblnatlon

Disposals g

Currency. translation’ ad]ustments
Cost price 31.12; 2005

5

‘Note 5 .Goodwill, intangible assets.and fixed assets

-

Accumulated depreciation and |mpa|rment losses 01. 01 2005

Depreuatlcn
Reversal-on disposal 4
Currency translation adjustments

Accumulated depreciation and |mpa/|rment losses 31 12 2005

i

: Carrymg amounts 2005
At1 January
At 31 December:

'.:EEOnomic lifetime 1
Depreciation'schedule, "

The group has algaseback agrééheht'for*n
“:317 December of USD 228. 6 mlll|or;, and. depl

termn liability. See Rate 13 !

Straight tine

i

()it

Bl
i
80

22)

w(zo) .

"

. Properl)ii e Fixtures.
75 31
2. Ay
{7} (3]
3 -
76 33
losses 01.01.2004 ae o)
el (3l (3)
‘ 3 2
osses 31122006 (19) (22}
TR7
§7.b
' ‘76 33
38 52
e
Sz
e19)
2 6
S3 ‘
L 1B)
e7
IS 60
Upito 50 years 3410 years

Straight line

[FREE

Vessels

990
.63
(5)

1 (468

568 .
iiigg

165

1088,

[468]
A41)

48

580

‘ 14-‘[25 years.
Straig‘ljg,‘l;ine :

Finaciyal'expense‘s of:USD 1.8 milllon relati‘n;g ta newybuilding ‘6ontracts WEere capitalised in 2005.

|
| 1501.8
B

' » l48| 3

1048

s

g6 ‘

827

Newbuilding

contracts

23

49
(20)

.53

23

53

53
40

" 32)

6.

53

&1

: Total
‘fixed assets

1119

119
(34)
6
1209

(459)

(54)
)

e
1509). .. b

659

701

1209

209"

90
162
(5}

1341 57

. 1509). ¢
)

52

(s00)

701
842

e vessels in-the sh|pp|ng segment Those carcarriers covered by the lease had a book value at
euatxon for the.year.came to Usb 13 6 million:* The leasmg comrnltment us classified as'a long-

".To secure new and modern tonnaqe for. the ]omt ventures in WhICh ww partlcnpates the group and lts partners are pursumg an extenswe fv
_:inewbuilding programme “Atotal efid3néw car carriers.are dueto be delivered:in 20062 09, |nclud|ng 19:for- WW’s account Four of these
171 contracts were placed in 2005 =two at Mitsubishi Heavy Industries (MHll in‘Japan and.two at Daewoo Shlpbmldlng & Marine Engmeerlng

i
“in-Korea. i

i l
& l

f

i

i

!

cont next pagé
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r which 'idgr'mfiéble”indebenéé
ritimeigar - '




Noté 6 :investmentsin associates = .

" Equity method is applied for consglidation of associates. :
”‘Compan’y’@ R L i e SR = . : “A‘Businégs office/ ...« Voting/control share

[k E YL o country - ©2005 0 2004
Logistics segment =" 5 B g R T g9 Iy e ‘ :
Glovis Co.Ltd.. P HH| 6 Republicof Korea. 00 20.0% . 25.0%

‘Marltlme servnces companles wvlh materhlorw’nershi’p' e F i e

’Alghanlm Barwil Shlpplng Co. WLL i il ’ Kuwa’it’;; : 40.0%. . L 40.0%

. Almoayed Barwil Ltd. _ et " Bahrain ... 150.0% 50.0%

‘Barber Moss Ship Management ASo e Gl g NorWay S B0.0% 50.0%
Barber cs Marine [Slngapore] Pte: Ltd v‘ Sl j. Singapore i 50.0% i 50.0%

“Barklav (HKILtd, . 0 S e .. HongKong .l . 50:0% - . . 50.0%

Barwﬂ <"Nationat Marmme Shlpplng Serwces Ltd S ' v : o Syrla o : 5010%. 50.0%

" Barwil - QC Agencies Ltd; L G fe s Bangladesh s L 5000%

> Barwil AbtiDabi Ruwais LLe e . : LU T United Arab Emirates il 50.0% o 50.0%
Vi ~Barw1lAgencves Lebanon SA L B i P i AT e ibanon “'A"I}’.D% ' T 69:0%.
.+ Barwil'Agencies SA.. o [ Pt _Panama e 350% 35.0%

~'Barwil DubaiLLC : Sl v United ArabEmirates o0 50.0% oo 49.0%
Barwil Farbes Shipping Serwces sl i s India g 50.0% -50.0%
-Barwil:Georgia’ o CnL T e e P Georgia 5010%: " - 750.0%
‘Barwil Huayang Shlppmg Serwces Co Ltd : el China' "7 e 50.0% 50.0% "

~.Barwil Hyop Woon-Agencies'Ltd. E N “Republic of Korea | 50.0% 50.0%
Barwil Ship Services'Co (UAE) LL.C, Fljaira e ey “United "Arab Emirates’ SN A28% L 62.8%
‘Barwil 51 MAR. SIRIL: e D : italia S e 0%t e T 49.0% .
Barwil Smith Bell . o « : ) Filippinene'ti % 50.0% ] 40.0%

“Barwil Star Agencies SRL | Sh e e DiRomania L 50.0%. e 50.0% ‘

Barwil TehranLtd. © = = AN . N lran" 50.0% . 50.0%
BarwilUnimaster Ltd. 0 e e ot Bulgaria o 500% e 50.0%,

',.Barwd Universal Agencies Ltd' s T i T B Tyrkiar LUU500% . 50.0%

“Barwil’ Zaatarah Agenaes Tt B DL Jordanir sl 4B.7% 48.7%

' “Binzagr Barwil:Col Ltd, Jeddah: /1 o spEte ‘ Saudi Arabiai . 50.0%. .0 . 50.0%

":Baasher BarwilAgencieé'{_’td., G fa sudanisr. 0 50.0%. 50.0%

" CMACOM SeandinaviaAS ot i Norway A9.0%, T 49.0%
CMA CGM, ANL(Talwan] Lol 08 b L e L Taiwan 4000% . 40.0%
Deniholm.Barwil Ltd. ; Sl ey Ly - o United"Kingdom* * 5 40.0% s + 40.0%
Knight Transport LLC £ R L o UsAL i eLlE 50.0%

“ilonemar S, A. o D ; 0 Panamayi 47.0% 47.0% i
~Nagliyat Al Saudla Company Ltditii ‘ i ‘Saudi Arabia’ 49.6% S A9 6%
“Seawilh'Limited ' R : : ;Hong angw ST 5000% e 50.0%
Shanghai Barwil Huayang Shlppmg Agenmes Cottd: 3 Chinaii i it 50.0%: : 50/0%
“Towell Barwil Cos LG, b 1 LR R e e Oman il 30.0% . 30.0%

" Transocean OY.AB "' i i i Finland HoB00% 50.0%

‘Holding~ - e . e

Dockwisé Transport N.V: gt . Nethertands . 21'.34% : v 21.3%
= |
Ccontnexd page
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Note 7

-USD mifl

Not‘e‘,BA Shiort=term financiél

wilnvestments in assoclates  ¢o

nEfrom plelibus pagsl

Summary flnanmal mformatlon on aésoci'atss

s - acording to the Grbup;s 6wnerysh‘iﬁ:~ 5

TéamTec AS is'sold per-31.01.20086.

b
i

“i.The Group éccount:s‘incl‘l.idé the follov'»/ing' am

Total assets -

© ‘Totat labilities - : oz
T P,rofit/lloss) for det period : :

ounts related to Team Tec AS: 1/

g

G 2008, 2004
Assets L « 373 327,
Liabilities E e : 202. 166

Equity iy - 7% 161
‘Operating income - l 526" 153
Profit / [loss)’ ' 30 13
N , Ll ;
Share 'of profit/{loss).in-material associates:
..~ Glovis Co:Ltd , e | 12
;. Dockwise Transport,NiV, 10+ 8
Glows Ce Ltd acqmred a stock market llstlng en 23 December 2005,
- and the group ‘s equity mterest had a stock market value at 31 December of Usb 447 mllllon
Specmcatlon of share of equlty and profit/loss: e Lo
Share of equny 01.0% b i F16T 58
Share of proflt/[loss] forthe permd ; 30 G A3
Addmons Marmme Servu:es ey ;‘I:'-' *I.f<) 105"
Dlsposal Logistics (1] ' -
Disposal Maritime Serivce:s."» (8 7 ;
- Dispesal Holding G L N
Curréncy translahon/equnty ad]ustments 8 sl e
Share of equity 31.12 : ' M 2161
Investment held for sale

i
|
12
|
|
|
%
i

e In addmon BASS Group and Wllh Wnlhelmsen termlnat [R|ga are dlsposed of in: 2005 Net result is: USD 1 mllhon

Total'short-term financial investrients

investments ’, .
“usbmill i ..Market vatue
o : f 2005 2004
Norwegian listed stocks 1% 37
Foreign listed stocks " - R ; : 13"
BondsNOK ' b 32 437
Bonds USD e ‘} S :
~-:Structured prodicts NOK. ‘ ‘ 4 S7
. Structured products.USD 1
Other financial:instruments : : 6 a3
! 121
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S Note 9 Combined items, balance sheet.

UsDmil . 2005 . 2004

Ott{er long:term assets” i g G : ) o
i Loans 1o joint ventures A el ' SR s A
‘Léahs,t to associates et e G Dl LR P 8 R 8

«"Loans to employees shareholders etc : . . iE A ;
. Other lorigitermassets . o i I e . : L e : .13

Total other long-term assets e ; i LR D e T g T 63

Of‘vs‘/'h:i:ch (dngjgerm debtors favll,inggkduéfpr;paﬁyrri(enty latér than one year:.

Loans to ;omt ventures i i i 1 37

Loans to assogiates .« Hh s ey : , ; y
- Long-term share lnvestment B e NS S A A = A SN
. Other long-term assets; iy N e . e L 13

L,Tota{ other long-term assets duesafter one year¢ 5

Other cuurrent assets RERSL A R R O R e
Bunkers, o : o . ' St -

.Acéounts receivable i v PR O LAY
* Financialinstuments 0 oL B L R g DO

‘Other cufrent receivables R a2 T {1 60 e 4B

‘Total othencurrgnkt.assets;,3«-:: g Sl ao LLhy el 94

:f"Other current llabmtles W
Accounts payable B . ; :

100 59

‘Next yearsmstalment on mterest bearmg daxbt a s o o s : 151 o o J: T
Long-term-interest-bearing debt - reclasslfed due to breach.of covenant 31.12" : i S 89

Financial'instruments = : e ab ' 24 o B

‘Oiher'currept liabilities* B i St g e R e 126 ST
““Total other current.liabilities ., i v 0 S Rl G 491 210

it

Note 10 “Réstricted bank deposits arwd uncilrav;/hb,cor’nmitteddr‘avying,ri'g‘hts

3

o L R e e T e R 2008 2004

Payroll:tax withholding accoﬂnt RV . 3

Undréwn"commit‘ted drawing'rights” ; i : i 2 e S R . 1 L . 130
Unitor:AS, Unitor Chemicals AS and Maring Contra¢ting AS/do noytﬁ have:an payroll'tax '\’N'it'hhold'ing accbuﬁt, but & barik guarantee
for USD 1.4 million.. T g ' A A S LI in 5

HE

n i Noté 71 ‘Provisio'ns" ‘ S
,Restructuring costss il L e oY L LTt o
As a resultof the acqunsmon of Unitor, & provnsnon of USD 28 mllllon was made in the third quarter for restructurmg costs.
"The estimatedicosts are based: on a specmc plan Thts restructurmg is due to be. effectuated by the end of 2006. The remaining .
‘ prowsuon at 31 December 2005 was NOK13.7 mllhon

. $ : TR i
: i : Bk M A

: i :
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Note 12 TP\en’sions ‘

‘Number of peopleln penston plan*;ai 31 12 o ‘ " “Funded SR o Unfunded
: / o T 2004

200502004

o Rt 2005
«Employees(mcludmgd|sabledl o ST eg 573

& L
Retired’employees: B i B L Bg9 L7870 S 737

293¢
692

Total Lt 888 OB e e 1.007

kT ‘ot

R e ; ' : [ H s Do b
Financial’asst'Jmption,syfor\the pension calculations: i PR A ey e ©'2005°

Bl

Expected:rate’of return.onassets in pensionlblans’ ‘ . . e 5.00%
~.Discount rate” - R ' i - S = 400 %

Lol e - . 3.00%
. Annual regulation of National Insurance bas amodnt;i i i S e e 300 %

Annual-pay:regulation:.

'Annualregulatlon ofpensmns L T sy i k g 2,00 %"

vSpemflcatlon of penslon cost
“UsSh mlll

.Net present value of current year's serwce expense ko o s j Sl 8

Interest expenses related to service expense ,‘ et s RS Ll : e 9

Return‘on assets:in pension plans S i Vi R ST (sl
Recognised changes in‘estimates.iand vananges S5 NN TR A

Costs of defined contrlbu_tuon‘ plan

H e B B LT e0s

985 -

2004

5.50 % -
4.50 %
3.00 %

300% L
C2.00% s

2004

(3

“Netpension expense 5l % TR TR e e e 130

i
s ;

h . "Specnflcatlon nf net pensmn habll’ltles reflected inthe balance sheet at 31. 12 Sy
TUSD mill el ~ : 12005

Presentvalue of funded obllgatxons @ i T e : ‘

Faurvalueofplanassets B et ‘ ,””’x* (’

‘Present value of Unfunded, obhgawons 2 R R TR T4
“‘Unrecognised actuarial lossés Bl ’ : Lo ‘ﬁ’ DR IR S “(24)
‘Accrued payroll tax . Caint :

g
108

10

72004

401

TeTL L

83
(28)

i iNet: recognlsed pensuon llablllt|e<s [ il i sy (T

L L
i i L

i

Liabilities acqu1red ln business comblnatlon o [ R e R

Totalexpense <'as shown above: . Lot e i '\ b »1‘3
Contributions paid, S ST o i i -9

h e LI : e » G i i, 2009
Balanceat01.01 0" i . : B FRREE SRRy
.Exchange differences LT it : : 8)

.65

2004

:62
‘H)

10
(el

Balanceat3n12, e R e e TR

65
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o Of'the (_:jroup's'total leasing commi

Note 13 Long-term interest-

hearing debt

the b‘alance sheet from’ ‘long-term |
;,so thatthe orlgmal term/maturity
“in'the balance sheet:

“The'overview above shows the actL
under other current l|ab|l|t|es

Bank loane ac‘c‘ounted for roughly
the Norweglan certmcate market:a
drawmg rlghts whlch amounted 1o

o

|ab|l|t|e :

emaining. commitments cover lea

USD 248 mlll|on at 31 December

£

USDmill 2008 2004
: 'Long term ihterest- -bearingdebti i : : g B
o Mortgage debt 201 241
... Leasing commitments , 231 (RRE
- -Bongs o : 325 2085
* Certificate loans e Pl ' 25 10
"Other long-term interest- bearlng debt 216 59
=+ Total'long- term.interest- -bearing debt: 998 625
... Book value:of mortgaged assets: (
i 'Property ; 1
" Vessels 609 U494
Total 609 495,
Repayment schedule for long term|nterets't-bearin‘9'de'b‘t‘:_m‘ : 13 [Ty
- Due i in year 1 ; : Pl S i 151 i8] i
Die'in year 2 103 st
Due-in'year:3:. 145 80
; Due inyeard ) 137 87 i
: Due in'year'5 andtater ] i 462 147
Total long-term interest bearlng (leht‘f 998

625

o other current llabllltles The company received.a walver from the banks in early 2006
iate and other terms of the loan are unaffected As a result the reclassn‘lcatlon has only been made\

;al maturity structure with the amountdue in year'one as the first year'siinstalment classiffed

il per cent of total interest: bearlng debt in the group in 2005 Ley smg obligatlons and borrowmg in
ccounted for aboutié0:per:cent:A; key part of the liguidity. reservet

s the form of ‘€ommitted -

'ments; USD: 227, 7 million relates to ‘a sale/leaseback agreementl for elght car:carriers, while the

r _.mg ofleqmpment The leasing agreement for two car carriers runs until 2008 wrth optlons ‘for )
y repurchase/extensmns whlle the leasmg agreement for. three car carrlers runs untit 2011 () and 2012 (2l with'an optlon for extensnon.;’j o

The charter for five icar carriers has a flxed |nterest rate [flxed annual nomlnal charter rate whlle the charter for a further three

vcarrlers has a floatmg |nterest rate

RN

[ L‘o’anfa'greem‘entéxehtered‘into byt
The group.was in compliance witht

* Guarantee:commitments .

;- Guaranteés for group companies

cantne

- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS WILH. WILHELM§E_N GROUP. =

(varylng annual nominal charter rate)

g

these covenants at:31 December 2005

G
i

i

e group contaln flnancral covenants relatlng to value ad]usted equny, free lqu|d|ty and cash flow




Tﬁe'carlrying‘ amounts pt‘the)Groe:‘pfs’;borrbw

ings are'dehominaied«in,ihe fcllowingﬂ,cerr'en,c'i'és: ; At
: i3 EAEL Y 908

2004

-Usp e AT 364
NOK:- 353, 218,
eBP . L BT 43
*..Othet currencies e o 26... .
: = i 998 625
The e’)"(b‘o'smeybf the Group’s borrowings to |nterest rate changes and the contractual FREREoE -
repricing dates-at'the balance she ot date areias follows : ; ‘ o ;
12 month.or less : 893

‘ See otherW|se note 15 for mformat jonon finariciat instruments

!

e (|nterest rate nd currency hedges] relatmg to |nteres 'bearmg debt.

No,t'e,1:l‘+ Ih‘\)’esyt'm'entsy in joint ventures:

UsD il

[ The followmg companles are ]omtly controlled

RS

: .Company :

i g iy
Business office; couﬁtry :

RN

560:

contmexdnaye
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~* Voting share/ownership -
. Shipping: . _ : v ‘ 2005 2004
o Wallenius Wilheimsen Logistics group S Lysaker; Norway I ‘50.0 % "~ 50.0% -
C Madk I Shlppmg Pte: Ltd: : - Singapere L 50.0% 50.0 %
’ARC LLC : L : New Jersey, USA 5 50,0 % 500 % .
- Fidelio I P . New Jersey,',USAjg, R0 % +50.0 %5
Fideljo. levted Partnershlp i New: Jersey, UsA i ’50 (7 : 50.0%.
) EUKOR Car, Carr!ers inc. ' : Seoul Republuc of Koreazz’ - 400 % 40.0.%
EUKOR Car Carners Slngapore Pte. Ltd. Slngapore iy 60.0% 40.0%
' EUKOR Shlpownlng Singapore Pte.Ltd. Stngapore;, : v 40.0.%: +40.0 %
‘ Loglstlcs _ S ‘ S
g . Amierican’Auto Loglstlcs Inc Gl New Jersey USA 49.9-% 49.9%
Amierican Logistics:Network LLC: - ‘ b ‘New Jersey USA ' 49.9% 499 %
s Loglstlcs Coordlnators Llrmted CINew Jersey, USA y 49,9 Y% » _‘ 499 %
e e . S RRTNN o 1 12)
' Simmarised financial inf'o'rm'ationf{ e L
i Tt 20080 2004
Sh,ar‘"e of.opératingincome 1591 1439
Share of operating ex;‘:enses" e (1 491)% (1'342)
Share of net, f|nancnal |tems . (18], (23} .
Share of tax ~ (8- {21)
Share of proflt/[loss] for the perlod : 74 53
Share of fixed assete ‘ ‘ 858 863
‘Share of currént assets: X i 448 361
+/'Total assets 1130670 1.224

INTS WILH. WILHELMSEN GROUP. 46 ; ‘47




Note,14 Investments in joint ventures. .

felv} 4

e

rarn/previcUs page

Y +2005"

2004

‘Share.of equity from joint venturgs and‘assc

kWalLemus Wllhelmsen Logastlcs AS has.written down the value of the underlylng mterests in the French Jomt

venture company Global Automotwe Loglstlcs {owner of the Compagme d Affretement etde Transport SA loglstlcs cumpanyl
j'The group ‘sishare totals UsSD1& rmlllon . ; il o

- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS WILH, WILHELMSEN GROUP

+

T

. Share of equnty o1 01 : ] 264 224
" share of profit/{loss) for the per|od ! SLTh 53
Change in eqity ‘ AT
~Receive dividend' o 122} {22
Currency translation adjustments: . {22) 9
Share of equity.31.12 367 264 .
 Share of long-term liabilities oesa 676
+Share of current liabilities Vi 285
“Total liabilities .. - 3 964 961
Total equity and Liabilities : - ‘ 1306+ 1224
: Share of profit/{loss) from joint ventures L 1, T4 53
7. Share of profit/[loss) fromiassociates, see note 6 1530, 13
“='Share ofpro(ht/llossl from 1onnt vgntures andassociates’:: .. P04 D B 1
Share of eqmty from jaint: ventures ‘, 343 264
Share of equity’from associates; see note n i AT : e
ciates | b 512

424



Note 15 Financial risk:

The grou‘p's:ordinary operations ex| pose; the companyto risks i
associated with'fluctuations:in exchange rates; interest-rates‘and
the pnce of bunkers Hedging strategies have been established to
i ‘reducethe effect an results of fluctuations in these markets
Compames own - less by WW hedge their own
Viactivities: These are recorded in the accounts’in accordance wuth

e.equity method sc that fmancral mstruments in: these compa-
:appear on.a separate line:in twe accounts

. FOREIGN Excumss RISK
“"CASH FLOW HEDGING - TN e
The group 'S forE|gn exchange stralegy isito h:edge 25-75 percent

of its expésure’on a rolling"12-monthily ba :ls:‘ The:butk of the
: group 's foreign. exchange exposure isito N JK but exposure’also::

eX|sts t6 other currenctes such as the SEK the EUR and:the JPY...
Group accounts are comp|led in:USD. The forelgn exchange expo-fzn

sure is primarily hedged through forward: ‘contracts and option
structures, but welght is also glven to balancmg revenues and:

. expenses in'each currency ‘Most cash;flow hedges mature within.:

'a 12- month period from the'date they are establlshed
< The group: realised a:loss,of USD 1 8 million on. these hedging

f’funder 70 per cent ofithe exposurewas hedged at'31 December
when'the hedgmg portfollo had:a negatlve market. value of ..
USD-3.8 million. 0f this, USD0:7 mllllon related to.currencies
other than:the’ NOK Wholly-owned subsrdlanes hedge alarge
part of their NOK exposure against.the parent company.
‘ Contracts between the parent company.and subsud|ar|es are
'irecorded net'in the' consolldated accounts..: i
‘ At 31 December the hedge porttoho in Unrtor AS comprlsed
"the sale of USD agalnst the/ NOK: These contracts had a negatlve

contracts |n 2005 bedause of 3 Tising.USD! durmg the period. Just _

market-vatue of'ju’st over.USD 2 million’at:31 December. New .
hedging contracts will b‘e'concluded iniaccordance with the group's

‘currency strategy, and admlnlstered by the parent company. .-

BALANCE SHEET HEDGING

The parent company has met a slgn[fucant part. of |ts flnanual
requtrements in'the Norweglan bond market {just'éver USD 350
mllllon) Since the: parent company has the USD as.its functnonal

’currency the'bulk of this debt has been’ hedged in/USD. The
rising USD exchange rate hasi rneant a negatlve change in value

'ofjust over USD:30:million on[these currency contracts. At 31

: December thecontracts had a negative market value of UsD 7.8
. biltion: Firthermore, Wilhelmsen Lines Car Carriers 1:td. con-
‘taing'currency hédges [GBP/USD] tied'ta the USD- denominated -

tax leases for three car carrlers Collectlvely, these contracts

had a negative market value: of UsD 68 mllllon at 31 December,

compated with a: positive USD 21 million at 31 December 2004
{ainegative change in value for the year of USD'8.9 miltion):

The group has opted: for'the moment not to hedge |ts invest-
ments. in Korean won [KRW) )

: INTEREST RATE*RISK :

The group’s long -term mterest rate strateqgy is to ensure:that at

" least'25 per cent of the |nterest bearmg debt portfolio takes the -~

form of fixed- term.debtii in excess of12 months. Interest hedge
contracts held by the group corresponded to'about 40 per cent of

Cits: outstandlng long- -term liabilities; at 31 December 2005. The
Jiihedged proportlon w11l |ncrease to ]USt under 50 per ‘cent, in that -

contracts have been concluded which commence ata later date:
At 31 December; the overall portfollo ofloan hedglng instruments

i had an addmonal value of USD 3.9 mllllon

contnext page”
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CNote 1 5 Financial risk’. conl lfom prv\\r;«,w pEge
.

 USD 20" millish in- Hedging instriments fallidué in 2006, USD

130.million in.2008 and USD 45 million in 2011, To replace inte-

rest hedge contracts falling due, the group has securediabout
USD-400:million in-such-instruments.which: commence atia future
-date: Theseiinstruments commence:in the. perlod frcm 2006 to

°2008, and run to the pericd from'2011:and: 2016 ThIS means that .

the:group expects to maintain-a hedged proportlon of‘about 50

per cent overithe-next few years. Most of the underlylng loans

#have a term.of 5 to 10 years. :
:At:31:December, Unitor: AS had an |nterest hedglng portfol|o

with.a positive. market value of USD 12 mrlllon New hedglng

" contracts will be'concluded:in accprdanycﬁe wlth.the group’s

" interest rate.strategy and placed vfftityh_‘th‘e:parent company.

CREDITRISK

The shlppmg segment is considarad to have a low credlt risksNo

spec1al hedging:was. Undertaken for this type:of risk durmg 2005._

in Wilhelmsen Marltlme Services [WMS] the customer riski

relates primarily. to the, ships;service, sh|p s equipmentiand:

bunkers activities. The companies have strictcreditiroutines . FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT E

which reduce the risk. Continuous: pr‘oviSibhé are made for bad

debts,:and the proportion: of ‘bad debts has hlstorlcally beenilow.

“No special hedging was undertaken for th|s type of risk:ini2005:
The proportlon of bad debts Has hlstorlcally been low because

in contracts of affrE|ghtment held by Wallenius Wilhelmsen, ;
Logistics [WWLI and EUKOR Car Carrlers (EUKOR); and through ,

-various derivatives (futures, optlons and S0 forth] in the :

~.commodity. market.

Just under:80iper cent of the rough[y 800 900 000 tonnes iof
bunkers consumed annually by the WW group is hedged for 2006

" ‘and.about.40:-per cent for 2007,

Bunkers:consumption:in WWL has been hedged during. 2006

‘ through forward contracts totalllng MA 000:tonnes atan average

price of USD: 190 per tonne The ww group ’s share;of these.
contracts will be about 50 per cent, corresponding to its share

‘of earningsiin: WWL An addmon gome two-thirds of EUKOR s’

bunkers ccnsumptlon for 2006 has been hedged m the form of )

+forward contracts at an average price of:USD 130 per tonne. o
The WW group S share of’ the capltahsed value relating to bunkers :

= i
wcontracts held by WWL came to:USD 11 'million at 31 December

»whlle the correspondmg share of capitalised value relatmg to

bunkers contracts |n EUKOR was USD 40 mllllon

’The group’has centrallsed its lfmancnal management in the parent
‘company. Management offunds’ conlalned inthe shipowning’

: ,compames has been spl|t off-into a: separate management area .

of good follow-up routmes and the: strong: remedy provided by.the -,

ablllty to arrest shlps

i

".BUN KERS EXPOSURE

20-80 per cent oflits:
reqmrement for the cornlng 24 manths, T'i'liS is done through:a

{The grouip’s;strategy for bunkers i to hecjge

cofrbination ot various bunkers'adjustment ¢ clauses lBAF/EFAF)

i

'NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS WILH. WILHELMSEN. GROUP-

T

-iwith'a' low risk:profile. The portfollo in the parent company will

be managed witha higher risk proflle with shares and bonds

"accounting f’or;;the bulk:of,its holdlngs. The company also takes

tpositions inthe currency and linterest rate markets through the
- useof derivatives: These posmons are llmlted by a “value at risk”
[VAR): mandate Almost'50 per cent of the portfollo is placed in

the Norwegian market: Through icorrect posmonlng in financial
markets, the:group:achieved a total yield of just under USD 24
mllllon in:2005.

cont next page
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wNote 15 Fifnancial risk' " cont fromipray :
Py i (i i
= e ;

Market value nf :apltallsed fmam:lal mstruments i i e AR
Ysb mill B U e i 2008 o o
i S e o . Assetst . Liabilities . -

Interest rate hedges i S

- Wilh: Withelmsen ASA | o
“Wilthelmsen Lines Shlpownin‘g‘éxs : . : 49
; thhelmsen Lmes AS hanee it R A f L , [ v o
“Wilhelmsen' Car Carrrers Ltd, 3o ¢ 1 L L R o G 14
.. Unitor AS ‘ Sl Bt e ‘ ‘ e
Tntal lnterest rate hedges '

s

T el o ada

] Cu’rrency cash flew‘hedges‘ e
< With: Wllhelmsen AS A
Unitor’AS '

‘Totalcurrencycashflowhedges S ST e e B T PERAY X I

3.8

Currency real value hedges [basns swaps] e : , Lo :
~ 'With. Wilhelmsen ASA G T e 1‘ o 78

Wilhelmsen Car Carrlers Ltd R P RO EFs SR T R Y.
Total currency;reat value hedges’ [basis swaps] SEAL L r e 5 146
Total & s CENR e b vt 837 1 23.8

:
=

" Note 16 :Events aftér tne“b"a_[an‘ce she‘e't‘dlate”” i ; sl e

Tearn Tec AS'i is,sold per 31:01. 2006 ) o i 1 “The size and “global actlvmes ‘of the WW group dlctate that
No‘additional events occurred laetween the balance sheet date companies:in the group will be'involved from time'to time'in .
and'the date when'the.accounts wvre presented which provnde new disputesiand tegal actions. However the group'is: not aware of any»,_ : o
- mformatlon about, condmons prevallmg on the balance sheet date: _“financial risk assocnated wrth dlsputes and:legal achons which.are
i not largely covered through insurance arrangements Any such

: : ‘dnsputes/actlons which mlght exist’ are'of suéh'a nature that they'
pEpE o wiltnot srgmfucantlyyaffect the, group ‘s'financial position.

1
i
|
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oo usDmit

. Opera’nng mcome other -

" Note 17 Key figqres, busi”n’e's‘sfare'as'.;

) Tdfla

: 'iu’1‘.’o‘1. . 31.12f

Income statement

business areas i b R
“Operating:income éxternal cdstomers
Share. of profits of. associates and Vs -

2006

 Shipping (1)

2005

239

as

Logistikk =

nos

208

[a7

2005

2004

 Maritime
. services
12005+ 2004

s

3 0

i

7, Holding (3] . -

© 2005

o)

26
10

2004

@y
£1

‘Total operéting income:

Prlmary operatmg proht
Deprecxatlon & amartisation

322

o 2820
ERG0)

255

200
[46)

1339:1

228

Lo e

138

26

el

5]

46

"i13)
5)

“Net operating profit :

 Netfinanicials 0o ) q

222

114)

154

1100 20
i

(10}

117
12

- Profit/ [loss) before tax ..
CTax o i

2164

ot

143
. 13)

Tne 2
4 (3l

o

(3)

(s1
13

~"Profit /. (loss) for the period .

SMinority interestst oot BE 0

‘ Balance's'h{eet‘ i 311204

- Fixed assets

: lnvestments in associates: and Vsl :
136 0
,('6:19“,;

Long -term recelvables/mvestments "
: Current assets

725
Coaah
90
35700

;208

-, 311208
68»3":5‘«'
269
186

132

140

e
625
e

45

it

107

183

311205 311204

190

. 185
O

311205 311204

264 hh ol
16 20
LT40

. (12)

31.12.05

(103)
153

311204
860
AL N

RS

2263 1596
s34
19210

508

Total assets

Equity
- Longsterm liabilities
“:Short-term liabilities

S736:: 0

1270
621

551

98

951
459
410

g2

183
183

190 |
1900

L

238
Bl i

1300

144

69

(6)"
81y

13

7 Totat equity.and liabilit)i(,e, 1 ;263"‘

1 594

©1:270

951

183

190

238

L1646

Lo

* 1 Investmentsin'fixed assets’ . . 369.

L

[T

109

213 e

i

!

L 1) Sales gains related to vessels of USD 8 2 mllllon in thnrd quarter 2005 from the: sale of Resolve lformer Tanabata).from Wilhelmsen

Lings AS) (100%):and Takasago from Wllhelmsen Lines Shipowning 'AS [100%] to: Fidelio Ltd: Partnershlp (50% ownershnp]
“2} ‘Sales gains related toithe operahons of termmals are included'with USD!1.4 miltion in forth: quarter 2004:
)| ,Sales gams related to crew. vessels are mcluded with yspia:9 m;lllon in forth quarter 2004 and Usp 0 7 mlll|on in forth quater 2005

ceepntrextnages
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© Note'17 Key figures business areas
. :RESTATEMENT

“Change from equity.method t‘o‘con :oli:latioin
units:in:Maritime Services. segment (Barwill,

This chan‘ge s the result of a revision of all io

i the prev«ously reported f:gures for 12004 have

“ 7 'Equity - minarity interests
Other current liabilities
" Total.equity.and liablities

. Depreciation & amortlsatlon :
‘Net Flnanclals

Mlnormes

i 'Note '17**'Kéﬁy’;’ﬁgu'ré:s blsiness areas?

£USD millsre : Europe

i Total'‘Assets : !
Segment assets are based on: the c|eograph|cal locatlon of the assets

B

nethod applied}t:o'subsidiaries ’for 29 re‘)po‘rtln)g ’

int ventures in the Barwil grouo that has ldenti‘fied‘changes in the groups actual

controllmg interests of 29 JVs: As'a résultof changed consolidation'method during'third quarter: 2005 for these 29-Barwil JVs,
been restated Presented below are the: changes from 2004 35 reported.to 2004 restated: "

- Profit.& Loss

Loy

MUSD iy g

Total operating‘income
Wages and remunerations
Other expenses

Net’ operatlng profit

Profit / (loss] before tax”.. -

SRR , /2008 2004
Operating income Pasiliies

Total assets .

2004
L7207

3250

etz

2004
)
21

Total

e
e
k Ul::.: e

Amerlca
2005 12004
4928

g Ca'pital exoenditure_“‘;«@}n ki 198 : 13 e

’5t‘xly

’;‘ 407166

i

2l

:Asia &Africa Oceania..iii: Other. .~ Total

12005 2006 . 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
235 414 1310239 208 690" 4451
20007 445 db e 1270 956 2263 1596
12

. Assetsiand investments for shlpping -related activities are not allocated:to geographlcal segments;since these assets constantly

move between the geographical segments and a breakdown would not provide a sensible-picture. '

Russua is:defined:as'Europe; - '

‘ Operatmg income

Segment operatmg income:is based onthe geographlcal location of the company

) Charter hire'income received by shipowning companies cannot be allocated to any geographlcal area
Th|s is‘consequently-allocated undl=r geographu:al area - other.

The shareof income from assocnates and Jomt ventures is allocated in accordance with:the location of the relevant company s head

correct plcture when consalidating in accordance Wwith'the equity method.

Investments m flxed assets :

i

+ office. This does not.necessarily reflect the gecgraph|cal d|str|but|on ofithe underlylng operatlons but |t would be difficult to give a
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- "Note E1‘B‘V‘Busihes;s combinati

) Unitor isa lead’ing global provider

. countries. Umtor ShIpS Equ:pment supplles

: usp mill -

Net |dent|f|able assets

: servnces in-WMS.through its, leadmg posmon
;sales of-USD 185 million: and.a net proflt of L

:If the Shares had been acqmred wnh effect f

‘Minority interests (9%)
‘Net assets acquired’

WW ASA reached agreement on 19 June 2005 on acqumng 90, 4% of the shares in Umtor ASA:This agreement means that ww can ’
"secure the remalnder of the shares in the company The: purchase price: for allithe Unltor sharesii IS about UsD:209 mlltlon

of Service
t products

Ships Service delivérs services an

materlats to the global shlpbundm; mdustry

USD 392 mlthon and d'net profxt of USD 3 ml

Assets and liabilities related to the acq_uyisit’

r

and products for the marmme mdustry The company comprlses two d|v1s1ons Unitor,
to:ships in service through a network of 70 ofhces of its own and 154 agents in 75
qunpment and systems forifire: protectlon safety equnpment |ncmerators and |nsulat|on
At 31 December the company.had 1439 employees Umtor;Wi[l complement the range, of
|n the chemlca[s safety;maintenance and repair product areas Unltor ASA contrlbuted
S0 3 mllllon far'the period from 15 July 2005:t0:31 December 2005.

i

om:1 January 2005, the group would have secured a total gross operating income of k

lton

Fair vatue it : Acqu(i'ree's carrying
k o e L " amounts
Deferred tax assets ‘ : g . i 9.
~Goodwill and |ntang|ble assets 1"1\ ' ’, 267
< 'Plants, property, f|xtures . .90 T o & 84% .

i +'Other.long-term assets L R . 9.0 e
Other current assets 76 e s SN 7T o i
Inventorles } : 66 g 86 o
Cash.and bank deposnts = 200000 200

“Other provisions (3]
Othier long-terrm debt. . (97) 97 -
Other long-term: liabilities: (87} (87)
¥

94 - 106

16

Goodwill.on: aquisition : i 5
Consrderatlon pald satlsfled in’ cash' 209
Cash and cash equivalents.in sub5|d|ary acqmred 15 P
v ‘Net cash outﬂow ‘ LA e - R [

i ’flncluding/legal fyees‘:anj\_ounting to

Fmancmg i

Interest bearlng debt
Drawn on liquid:resources

USD 0B 'million = e

Total* "~

:

There were rio other materiat aequisitions in

[N

i

|
1

NOTES TO THE«ACCOL‘J‘N'TS«WII‘.H.' WILHELM‘

EN GROUP S




'Not'e 19 Proportionate) method: per busniess%area*«

o

%To present a'more complete prctur> of activities in ‘Vt’h{e grqub, joint:ventures.in the sl:jipping andlogistics segments
are-shown with proportlonal consolidation: P 5 Gl L
s .

X

usomit . .0 Tl . shippingl1) . Logistics ' - Maritime Holding [3)
ek : e e i BUAT services e b
2005 12004, 2005 2004 . 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Income statement el Fa SINTE Y o
Total operatingiincome ‘ +:2:207"1:831 173301137 531 526 | 339: 0138 730 -
Primary operating profit** 397362 357312 L6300 3T 2. .26 (6] {13)
Depreciation & amortisation. . (165) (156} ' 1120] (129) Ll T N (O R (N CF
Net operating: profit 232207 123877183 15 22 110)" 20 o) (n
“Netfinaneials*s © © o (gl g0y (4) VT )BT 4112
Financialinstriments==** 5 T48 0 s 48 o e woy
Profit/(loss} before tax- ' "\ " 209 1 185°1" 2181156 10 14 (10h o219 (8)
Tax o gl A e 13 e e e 3] (317 a3
.Profit / (loss) for the period Deioe 191 1T 1205140 B 6 T e) A8 1) 8
; Mirjority irterests i R {3 g s ; i r ‘ e {8) L (3)

1} Sales gains related to:vessels of: USD 8 2 mllllon in third:quarter 2005 from the saleiof Resolve (former Tanabata] from Wilhelmsen
Lines'AS [100%] and Takasago from: W|lhelmsen Llnes Shipowning AS (100%L.to F;deho Ltd Partnershlp l50% ownership).

: :i 2) Sales gains related to the ioperations of, termlnals aresincluded with USD:1:4 million'in forth quarter 2004

.3 5ales gams related:to crew ves<els are) mcluded W|th USD 0.9 mnlllon in forth quarter 2004 “and, USD 0 7 mitlioh in forth quater 2005

i Proportlonate method used for: jmnt Jentures

** Cash'setteled portion of bunker hedge swaps is mcluded in. pr:mary operatmg proflt v
: SR Net financials.excluding changes.in market valuations of financial! instruments

: ,‘*“* Fmanaal mstruments chan;;es in market valustisns of bunker hedglng, mterest and currency swaps

:
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.x i Financials’ ni

- Tax:,

" Note 20 Transition to [FRS

income ‘statement.

+ "The.overview, i‘s based: on figures a

i

Seeinote 17 for line-by-line restatément of the figures.

USD milt

" Operating income !
b iFreiét{fjrgvén;ue ‘ :
. Other opeérating revenue L
. Share of profits of associates and joint ventures '

Galnon sale of assets G

| NeAAP
S Y2006

i

746

358
42
3

ér the:c‘hi'angre in.consolidation meih:odyf,‘()rQ‘? units'in the mvar’itiftjne s'g'rv'ice’s’segment.

- b i
Adjustments
2004

G

L
i de
Ve ndS

-IFRS

2004

«‘ o59.""

147
66

_Total operating income

..Operating expens,gsj Fe
Voyagelexpenses Sl
Vessel expenses '

" Charter expenses. "0 ]

Wageé and'remunerations v

Other:expenses, '
Depreciation and amortisation

" Yotal operating éxpenses.

1148
)

[s9)

(369)
(74)
(986}

445

(3}
{31)
9)
(118)
(64)

- (87)

{282)

" Net-operating profit -

'Fi‘nancial’incomé : i
‘- Financialinstruments
Financial expenses::

(1)

1

gt

163

19

SRR L) kP

Net financials

T

: “Profit / lloss).before tax

T

. 164

:Profit:/ (loss).for.the period: -
' Of Which minority interests. '\

o Earhihg‘s‘bper share (USD)"

: ‘Diluted earnings per share (USD}: .

[

cont nextipaye

b
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:"N'ot‘e_i :VZODT‘ra,n’s’ition to IFRiS" '

. Balance sheet

The ovyerly;vie‘w.i:s based:onifiguresb

for:line-by-line.restatemenitof the

USH mill

. Fixed a‘s‘s‘ets
‘Deferred tax asset d
qudWill and intangible assets::

Vessels, property, fixtures: i, i

: 'Pensionb/a:ssets”
Investments'in‘agsociatés’
'Lon'gv—tgegrr‘n‘ share i'nvéstmien’tsb
Other long-term assets

Hentirem

fore'the ¢

252

.20

1 'NGAAP : Adjustments
01.01.04:

les)

=33
18]
4h

IFRS

“01.01.04

651

220
22

(1285

64

NGAAP

" 31:12:04¢

S

L 38T

 “21“ :

i Adjustmentxsvv

.431.12.04

Kange in consclidation method for 29 units in the;“rjr;éfi:t'ime‘\sberv\icbe‘s segment. S_eé‘rﬁo'te‘yﬂ T
igures: " ; R ' st : ‘

| IFRS

- 31.12.04
697
430

62

Total fixed assets

sCurrent.assets: 0,

.- “:Other currentassets
Short-term financial investments

C3sh-and bank deposits

997

85

. gl

4151

o (1og)
S
(39)

1048

LBl
67
51

1168

LaTs

1242

84
121
131

AR

L 1148)

1481

- 336 |

. Total currentassets .. .
. Total'asset L

< Eqity, P

- Paid-incapitat ¥}

Retained éarnings
Minority int}erestsv

FLigs)

451

B LAA S A

(93)::

e 2990 0
o 13670

477

125

125

‘540

AN -1

-1'579

125:

Total equity -
..;Provisions for.liabilities. :,
Pension liabilities :
‘Deferréditax;

#:-577

B
i

603

67
Echi

666

400

67

30

11

733

170 5 RS i i

1

Total provision for tiabilities

‘" Long-term liabilities
Long-terminterest:bearing:debt
Other long-term-liabilities..

47

L 597

8

4937

- 7680
15

41

(136)
(5

81

. 544
10

Total long-term Uabilities

-Current liabilities i

" Tax'payable - - et
. ‘Public duties payable i
i\ Other cufrent liabilities

404

5

197

696

495

s 1a1)-

S

T gs)

554

14
196

' Total'current liabilities,.

212

248

e

210

‘Total:equity:and liabilities: oo

“) At 31:12:2004 the group owns 1

nont nextpage:

170).

1579..

56" 57




s

Seanttin

Note 20 Transition toiIFRS'

Balén"i:'e

s pages

lu‘so'm'iu;, ff.,

I Goodwnltandmtanglble assets 123
Vessels, property, fixturesis = i i 99

"4 NGAAP
£731.12.03

Fixed asse‘t's
Deferred tax asset '

Pension assets
Investments:in assoc1ates
Long-term, share |nvestments

- Other long -term ssets SR s 20

Lt

22

h];ﬁ

~lag)

33

)

Adjustments:' :
01.01, %,

e

44

- IFRS
01,0004,

L

S bh |

.NGAAP' Adjustments

34204 311204

AFRS "}

31.12.04

220

25
2701

424

62

- Totalfixedassets | 994

' Current assets’

- Total assets

; C'urren"tf‘(li“abilities

IOther current Gabilities e f"721\2 R
“Total current tiabitities Gl g2
»* Total equity.and liabilities, ‘

. cont next pags SRR VRS

Other current assets L ; e :" 194
. Short-term fmanctalmvestments Lo 0 68

Cashrand,bank deposits ..ot Lt 202

(194)
()

(RN L [

{39)

90,

67

,163»: i L

21 045"

v 1168,

i {
193
S22

vy

: 2(1001:
(T
g 4w

239,

-

94 =7

121

Total current'assets . 464

[144): |

320

i 502

" (es)

.1 458

Equlty Mt :

Paid-in capital *) " o 128
o e Prlias1
»~,. Minority interests o P e e

Retained earnings

T

1365

1250,

w77

g -t

b2,

540

667, )

170)

Y

-

125
607"

. ‘,;(Total e‘quity‘ e iy iR 580

Provmons for llabllltles i :
Pensmn liabilities ~ oot s3]

~Deferred tax’ i S e

38
s

1026

606 | -

7.0

3

649

Y

30

i

736

70
1"

‘ Totag provlsmn fbr liabilities e R

Long-term llabllltles :

+ilong- -term interest: bearmg debt
Other long- “term tiabilities

597

51

(o4l |
W

98

1493

e

(5)

81

544
10,

Totaldong-term liabilities 1 Ll a0k

- Tax'payable’ i
Publlc duties payable

"‘f’(joal,

(59)

@),

496 f

12
183 it

s

{161y

ol
2
:5:(35)

554

4.
210°:

162]

165

" 23

@8l |

225

G

] At.31:»12.'2004 the gfoup ‘owns ~'I} 669 176 own 'shares’at'a'nominal'\‘/'sklhe”o‘f approximately USD 'aniillion.

1458
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o IFRS 31.12, 2004

. USDmill

" 'Deferredtax -

Noté‘_‘2"\“0f Transiiionlto IFRS; mt ‘m’n pzw DS page

‘\E'quity and income statement recqnciliafiow

y

[

:The,o:\/erview is based onifigures after'the; change in consolldatlon method for 29 umts in the marltlme services segment

.Sere note‘17 foh[ihe:by—line resfate ment of the flgures

i i

: USD mill : Equity i
NGAAP 31.12.2003 i i ‘ 580 0 |
"Depreciations S i : f’:,ﬁ’ Ly 56 :
Goodwill /intangible assets o B
‘ ;Pensmns } {39} ‘ !
Lty DlVldend accrual; 7
. 'Def(e‘rred tax gyt o 10 g
Other ~" = s oo
1FRS adjustments opening balanca 26
IFRS 01.01.2004 - . 606
Profit 2004 | 168 e
) ;‘;,Currency translatlon/uther adjustments“ i
“'Purthase own ‘shares’; "’ [3)§ :
" Dividends * 3

NGAAP resultat 2004
Depreclatlcns

" Goodwill / intangible dssets : .
- Pensions e BRI
Dividend accrual o

Other

73600

IFRS adjustments 2004

. IFRS income:statement
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o _Equny

“Note 20 'Tr‘é‘néi‘t’ign«to 1FRS r.'or.g fror pr

L

Key figures income statement pe‘r'*‘businéssarea e

: ‘The overview.is based on flgures after the: change in; consohdahon method for 29 umts |n the marltlme services segment
See note 17 for line- by line restatement of the flgures :

USD mill PR
2004 ; CTOTAL
' 1 NGAAP Adjust. IFRS
Income statement e e
L1147

Total operating jncome
234

* Primary operating profit
. Depreciation & amortisation

SHIPPING

f NGAAP Adjnst. IFRS.

+1753 [499]
204.13) )

-.200
As7y e

255

TATHERE

- LOGISTICS
'NGAAP Adjust.

20
.[5)

1226

(220)
(e

1
e |

MARITIME SERVICES
/I NGAAP Adjust..IFRS

38
28

HOLDING .
NGAAP Adjlst. IFRS

3016 4b
18)

74 7
“*.Net-operating profit 150 '
Net financials: . 1)

1470 77154

{13)

i

15

2

AT 20 )

‘ (19)/;;' 2 |17)
10 2x

Profit/ (loss) before tax : 1565018

Tax. ' . : S T

1367
{4]

143

23);

13
)

BB

9. 4 (5"
140 13

“* Profit/ {loss) for the period ' 158..

ijAinOr‘itiyinterests' e By

USD mill - e
2004 o o T )
- pa ' NGAMP Adjust. IFRS

“.Balance sheet . o
" ‘Fixed assets. 1364)+ 725
43424

789
Investrentsiin: asscc1ates and Vs 381
" Long-term receivables oel2nt

Current assets’ UEQ2:

TOTAL

) 357

0= 0| —

130

SHIPPING

NGAAP Adjust: IFRS

666 1391

16013 0173

251 [144)

%0

s

6 391 a5,
107 (i

ST

LOGISTICS
NGAAP Adjust

160

IFRS

{

i
L
e

s

: 'MARlTIME SERVICES
" NGAAP Adjust. IFRS

S0 40

20 20
34 34

&

@ @

- HOLDING ‘
NGAAP Adjust. IFRS. |

5402 B
AR Y
(18):0 26, 11
A 1) 1190

(71] 1596

67x 736
(101
{3711 7225

1667

669
736
262

- Total assets

“Long-term lrabrlmes
‘Short- -termy liabilities :

635”')

10811130}
437 22
536:.1126)

108"

951,
s

4100
‘(26) ;82"

160

160 .

30

30

190

190

23577 3238

86y ul2). " B4 :

L9 5.0 24
130 130

191 26 217
BNEVARE B |
1817 . 20--20]
267 (1) .13

Total equity and liabilities ~ 1667 (7111596

. N B . o : ; b -1“" "'( . it
Investments in fixed assets . - 148 = [20)1:128

contnext page

17081 {130) . 951

129 (20 b
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Note 20 General infqrmkatvi‘oyr")

The With: Wilheln{sén groﬁp'Will convert from Norwegian gene- )

- Financial Reparting Standards (1FRS] s 2605:

5 ,‘jsThé"=in‘te‘r)fi'6'hfof this transition report'is to provide/users

the WW. grbup"yé"\fivﬁ'afng;'i
" ‘converting from NGAAP to the IFRS; affects Ww's consolidated

'finahcial\staﬁg'ménts. ‘ e S RAnE L

g ‘lFRSV1'proilidbéé,’g'didelih'es for '!first‘-timkev adopters of th

o

ot

: e 1#!?5,\
and.requires the WW.group'to: : :

repare aniop

i ning kbalance:sheeut at Januaft‘y'ZDdlf,"ihe«date
of conversion t the {FRS, : Ty

3 ‘select suitable accounting p.
' 'spectively to all the periods

financiat statements

hC S.aﬂdapp{y theSEetro. i
preented.in the first (¥

i#. consider whether‘"t‘o;éﬁib‘ly‘a‘ny of the 10 exemp_ﬁbns from n
| i retrospective application’ : g

L IR N
apply the four‘,mandatory’exem[)tions from retraspective::
application 50 "ol farn s AR
% explain.the transition and changes from NGAAP'{s (ERS

fig_”r"es{;;: : e o e :

-+ vIn addition to :the\abq’\/é,:'(:ﬁ‘e‘ group has brepared an incame
w0 statement for 2004 andan openi
2004, 5 o

i

' IMPLEMENTING IFRS 1 Pt
- EXEMPTIONS FROM RETRO‘speéri\?E APPLICATION OF THE IFRS”

: Thegroup hias :apblied:the,)fb
exemptians in 1FRS:1 .

*.: 0t has decided 10 restateiall bus‘mééfs,c‘on{binaytions dating.: i

¢ “back'to 'J:én'uéry: ZOO?,yfrhéi‘h[‘y;tcf: re=measure ‘twoimaterial |-
share acquisitionsiin the CAT/GAL and EUKOR tomipanies:

'« all'significant group commpanies are c‘on\‘e‘rting to the IFRS at""t,',
the same daté : : i :

- fix sets willbe teasured &t historical 'Vc‘osyt‘,re’aylh’er,than
fair value at the conversion‘datiy =i ‘

alistatements with a guide to the effects of

L WW s consolidated finanéial statem’yent_s( ;

ng balance sheet at 1 January

“““under the (FRS:,

t . . deferred recdénitionf:of‘actuéria( gains and losses deriving
rally accepted accounting standards NGAAP) to the International . -

o from the group's dafiney be‘neﬂﬁtpe}n’s'iqn‘ plan (corridor) at the L
conversian date‘and: the etfect of adjusting the Market valus,of i

pension assets and obligations are Trécognisedin equity

e :cqmqlative translatio’n‘é’djﬁfs‘t'ménté are set to zero' and

« . reclassified to other equity in the accounts

“IAS 32 3nd 1AS 39 will be'adopted at 1 January 2005, without. .

: res’t;,ayti’ng"cbmﬁé'rative‘figures fcr;.ZijOylg;re(até‘dr‘ld financial
instruments ’é’ndf,h'édging«tn'aynsa(c'tions. ' G

Exémptions"avail le: IFRS 1 which are h‘otjébééifical(y
mentioned above sre either not applicable ts 57 mmaterial for.

lww GROUP ~ NOTES T0 THE IFRS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= MATERIAL IFRS GHANGES CO

R

[ it
MPARED WITH. NGAAP

’

JTheietfect of the chafigg in: accounting stahdards‘jncludes the-’

accountingiprinciples outlineydf?bé(o)gv. :

1. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS i
G CAT/GAL AND EUKOR ACQQ'S!UONS;RESTATED’};:V ' :

» Féts"ﬁmust apply IFRS'3 tatransac-
. tions after the cpn;'\'/e'ljsioryi'fdété‘,yﬁbt‘ have a choice"of'whefher to: it
restate prior acquisitions in accordance with the standard: The
~optionis available for all acquisitions from the earliest date
“iselected for réstatgment‘ Lot S
Al acquif'edassets,’jnclud‘ing intangibledhes, in'a businass 3
combination must be ‘idéntifie)d and valued. The pufchase pricgis . .
ithen allocatad across the fair value of these dssets and liabilities;.

: ,'Fi‘r‘st;'t'i‘me adopters of the

Ex e R inwithiany residualivalye aylyiécétedt‘o'goodwitl. Goodwi'llfis deemed
llowing voluntary and,mary‘ld'at,ory, e ‘ " :

to have an indgfin}i'e Useful life and will Qyot-'b"‘e' amortised under '

o the IFRS.

_The purchases,of;"‘CyA\T/GAlj. and EUKOR are'the twa materiat :

acquisitions which have been made by.the group'in the past.few,

. years, The groﬁp~h§sg§ecideq to capitalise onthe‘opportunity ts

| restate acquisitions made from January 2002 A'substantial part
of the! NGAAP goodwill will [rectassified to customer contracts. |

Becalise customer contracts. \ave d definite life, an-annual linear

amortisation ‘expense will bé rg§ d tothe income statémerit

Rt

tont next page
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e 4 SEGMENT REPORTING

2 J0INTVENTURES
EQU‘ITY Accoumme METHOD CHOSEN

lAS 31 permlts both equnty and proportlonate accountmg met-

.- hods to be {sed. The chosen mathad must be. applled con5|stently Holdmg

to all jomt ventures. Under NGAAP' the WW group has mlxed the

two methods : T i
- The equtty method prowdes a fair summary of the group ‘s

fmanaal position: The group has d*uded to apply the equity

method for consohdatmg Jomt ventJres n day -to-day’ operat|ons .

management uses the propcrt_lona re-method.as a basis:for.
financial deC|5|on -making. E : o

Ani |ncome ‘statement based on proportionate consolidation,

Jicovering the ]OH'tt Venturesiin the s»tlppmg and loglstlcs seg-:

_,ments will be mcluded as supplementary mformatlon when
;presenllng lnterlm reports to the market. L

3. FINANCIAL lNSTRUMENTS
- HEDGE ACCOUNTING VOLATILE lNCOME STATEMENT

As part of the day -to- day busmess the group 's results are

‘exposed to' fluctuatlons in exchangle rates, interest rates and bun-'; :

"kers prices.-Financial hedglng strategles have been’ established
to reduce-the overall effect.of fluctuatlons m‘the financial mar:,
kets. Some of these hedging |nstruments such as bunkers hed-~
ges do'not; meet the hedge accountmg crlterla under IAS 32/39

_): Unreallsed fluétuations in market valuatwns for thess instru-

ments Wil be recogmsed immedia; ely in'the. mcome‘statements

i NEW SEGMENT DEFlNthONS

i‘Shcpplng . R
:This segment is engaged ini deeps »a transport of cars, roll-on

roll- off cargo and prolect cargo. Its main customers are globalk |
icar manufacturers and manufactu'ers of agrlculture and other
hlgh and heavy equlpment The cubtorner's cargo is.carried:in a
‘ worldwnde transport-network. Thts is'the group ‘s: capital- mtenswe
segment

Logtst|cs . i

This segment has.much the'same customer groups as shipping.

Customers operatlng globally-are offered so 7hlstlcated logistics
" services.. The. segment’s primary.assets are human capltal

(expert:se and'systems) and customer conta_ts reflacted:in long-"

' term relatlonsh|ps S LT

“NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS WILH, WILHELMSEN GROUP

: Marmme services

Wilhelmsen: Marltlme Serwces offers shlp management crewmg,

i1 portragency and retated servuces through a:worldwide network of

maore; than 28(] offlces in.72 countrles

o
i

This segment |ncludes shlppmg actmtles whlch fail to. meet the
definition for other core actwmes These |ncludes the-group’s

- fleet of small offshore vessels jin south east Asia aid the Middle
East as welt as the Dockwnse N V. heavy transport company {both .

- and expenses, and the effect of elcmmatmg inter: company transs..

actlons are also |ncluded in thls segment

[

5 TAXES

i
©-NO CHANGE FROM NGAAP DEFERRED TAX ON SHIPPING INCOME
SETATUSD U .

No proviSion has beenf de)fdr deférred tax in group companies

:subjecl to the Norweglan tonnage taxregime,. A-provision for

incomextax in these companies will be made when the annual * .~
general meetlngthas resolved,to pay a‘dividend.

6. REVENUE RECOGNITION

NG CHANGE FROM NGAAP |
I

l

The revenue recogmtton prlnclple W|ll remam the same. The.

percentage of completlon method will beirétained for the ship- '

C.oping segment under the IERS. This means that revenues and

expenses related to vessel voyages afe accrued on the basis of
the number of days that the voyage lasts before and’after the
end of'the accounting! perlod

'7 INCDME STATEMENT PRESENTATIDN SET-UP

- NEW.SET- UP SEQUENCE OF ACCOUNTING LINES CHANGED

L principle‘ the income statement has the s.ame accounting
lines; Expenses are classified’ by thelr nature’ [depreclatlon
veseel expense, wages and sot forthl and-are not realtlocated by
function[cost of sales methodl A.few accounting:lines specific. -
to'the shlppmg |ndustry have: been Included in the IFRS set- ~up

\[charter expenses ‘vessel expenses and voyage expenses) Payroll
costs. for seafarers, amountmg to USD 22:mitt-in 2004, have been i

reclassnf;ed from cther operatlng expenses to wages and " -
remuneratlon ‘ i :




s

- VOLATILE INCOME sT’Aﬁyre’ME}(

rewewed at each balance sheet dale and;where they differ sign
v f|cantly from prévious estimates, dleprecratmn charges;will be
changed accordlngly The cost of ma]or renovatlons and.periodic
maintenance of vessels is capitalised'and’ depreuated overthe i
.expected useful literof the' partsireplaced: Normal vessel docking
| .expenses will be depreuated over 'lhe usefiit ;fe usually untitithe'

“/Share of profits from associate’ ‘and jointiventures s
rectassified from net fmanmal |tems andiis:now includediin net
“opérating profnt : : ;

8. ~r|xsn'Assns i

.=, DECOMPOSITION .OF FIXED ASSETS
- VESSEL RESIDUAL VALUE IMPLEME’\JTED iN DEPRECIATION PLAN

- USEEUL LIFE/RESIDUAL VALUE ASSUMPTIONS CHANGE ANNUALLY
'~ DOCKING EXPENSES “INCLUDED IN' DEPRECIATION

'/?:Each part of a'fixed ‘asset whlch is S|gn cant for the'total

an ;ly5|s of the grolip’s fleet concluded that vessels based ona:
pure car-truck ‘carrier/rollzon: roll l)ff deSIgn do not need ta'be
decomposed SINEN B | gl

The estimated residual value and expected useful life are:

next docklng

9 |NTANG|B|.E ASSETS S R
= GOODWILL RECLASSIFIED 10 CUSTOMER CONTRACTS

Capntallsed expenses related to mlang|ble hxed assets are
amortlsed over.the expected useful llfe in accordance with the

stralght l|ne method AT

10 IMPAIRMENTS

- IMPAIRMENT IMMEDIATELV FOR FALLIN ASSET VALUE
= VOLATILEINCOME: STATEMENT

Property, fixtures yeséels and‘intangible asSels a"re‘reviewed for

potentialimpairment whenever changes in c1rcumstances or,

events indicate that'the:book value of assets may. not be' recove-

rable For.the purposes ‘of assessmg |mpa|rment assets are
grouped at the lowest tevel: for-which ldentlflable lndependenl
‘cash inflows exist. Imbairment testlng of vessels with a‘similar

desngn organised and operated as a fleet are evaluated.for:
%

lmpalrment on the'basis'that'the whole flee s«the lowesticashs - .

generatmg un|t

o

T cost of the item. witl be deprematecl separately Components. with B
5|m|lar useful-lives: W|ll be mcluded in-a smgle component.An

- and liabilities.:

;11 .PENSIONS
" +'CORRIDOR'RECOGNISED AGAINST;EOVUITY, ™

i R LA
i

" Cumulative actuarialgains;and;losses at the conversion date to

. the-lERS are recognlsed d|rectly against other equny

12. CLASSIFICATION IN BALANGE SHEET
- RECLASSIFICATlON OF NEXT YEAR S.LOAN lNSTALMENTS

i~ DIVIDEND REMAINS EQUITY UNTIL APPROVED BY-AGM

= RIGHT TO OFFSET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES LlMITED UNDER

CTHEMFRS i b

Next year s instalment.on long term borrowmgs is
recla551f|ed to ‘a‘current liability. :

Dmdend dlstrlbution contmues to be treated ‘as equ1ty
s until approved by AGM. :

i general the IFRS does ot allow offsettmg ‘of assets

L
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INCQME STATEMENT

NOK mill

‘Ohevr'ating in’come; ‘

| Wages and remuneratlons .
Depreuat!on

Other operating expenses

Operatlng expenses e At

20050 o 2004

85 oM

omme e opse

(s) 0 Bl

e s

2003

7

981
(7)

“{104)

Total operating expenses . =i, |
Net operating profit/iloss] "
Flnanclal income and expenses

Flnanc«al |ncome
Flnanc:al expenses

" Financialinstruments S oy

213 . (313

‘(l158T ol e

“634

i ok
- 188) P(203)
, (258)"" 112

(209)

(132} .,

640
(31)
{119}

. /Netfinancial items..

Taxes

Profltl(loss] before taxes [ . e

"‘zssf, T

130 f.ﬁx‘/f-f?¢159l..
L 88

490

358

(40)

Transfers and allocatlons
{Tol/from’ equnty S
“Dividends™.

Proflt/[loss) aftertax i UL i

27

a2 b e

i 1361
{248) . i(390)

318 -

{119}
(1991

Total transfers and allocations.

INCOME STATEMENT WILH. WILHELMSEN ASA"

ey 1)

i
i
i
i
¥
i
4 2
i
i
i
.

" (318).



BALANCE SHEET

WL WILHELMSEN ASA

BT
i

CNOK mill

Fixed assets. ‘ ;
Deferred tax asset’ o PR
" Intangible assets’ 0
Fixtures
Investmentsin subsidiaries:"""
Inyéstments,in,,asysociatesy', o B
Other long-term assets |

TroNote I 31:12.05

R S

311204

13
1M

146

1571
L1026

31.12.03
59

1852
963
885

Total fixed assets

. Current-assets
Other current assets
S;Hort'-‘te’rvm iin_aricial investments
Financialinstruments .
Cash and\bankv: d'e,posits b

i
|
1
i
|
i

4668

3775,

+530
388
42
M

Total current assets

1071

" Total assets.. . -

4 846

322

‘Equity ' o . ; .
Paid-in capital’ . e Ly g TR 993, . 993 993
. Own shares " LA L L s2) (33} ~ (34
Retaired éarnings: o : : 1456 2.019 112393
© Total equity T 2617 2979 3352
L : ! o AN
" Provisions for liabilities ‘ bt o
. Pension liabilities' "~ o 2 320 3220
" Total.provisions for liabilities' " 320 326

" Long-term liabitities - -
*Long-teljm‘*iyn‘tyerers\,‘t\;bga”rihg debt’
T Other long-term liabilities” -

““Financial instruments

e
il e Il OV

985

Total tong-term:liabilities

'Current liabilities
Public duties:payable .

‘Payable taxes ‘ v '
Other current liabilities S,

992

14
14
152

Total current liabilities

180

Total equity and liabilities

Lysaker, 13 March 2006

N é’/ Bl oW i, i

i I
: Wilhelm Wilhelmsen Leif:T; Leddegal: Heten:Juell E Odd Rune.Austgulen Betting Banoun!

§

chair : depoty eRyir

G P gt T

1

|
s =
5 BALANCE
: !

Y

4846

Diderik Schaitler

" ‘Ingar Skaug

 chief executive,f [\
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CASH FLOW STATEM INT
WILH WILHELMSEN ASA

HiE

“NOK mill L

2005 . 2004

“Payroll tax withholding account::' ../ i

CASH FLOW STATEMENT WILH. WILHELMSEN ASA

Al

2003
Cash flow from operating acti,vitileéy i
“Income:befére'taxes’ : | :199): '358
Taxes paid in th)é‘be'ri'od : (15) )
Tap/[gevmstl ved'salgav. driftsmidiar 12 2
. DepreCIatlon and write-down bl YA
"“Changes in market value : trading portfolio. : Ij)ytjvl’[')"]]{ S 150)
Changes in recmvables/llablhtles e (38 (474):
 "Difference expensed ipension and premlum pald ; jo o 16
"~ - Change.i |n other perlodic accruals i : ',"137 24
“Net cash provided by/(used in) operatmg actlwtles : .:[58) (130)
Cash flow from investing activitics. 7
Proceeds from‘saleiof fixed’ asset> 2
<investments.in fixed assets, o : : 8
. Proceeds from investment in subsn:harles and other companles ! © 530
Payment to investment in subsndlarles and other companies : < {9)
Changes.in other investments ’ 8
Net cash flow provided byl(used |n] |nvest|ng actlvmes [24) ! (244) 523
Cashflow from flnancmg activit i T : o R o
Proceeds from |ssuance/[repaymr>ntl of debl ‘ ‘ 819 h 583 {212}
Purchase of own shares: i . Ty SR e [23). 18}
“Paid:inequity * ‘ it e 10 7
. Dividends paid : (390) S (251} {285} :
Net:cash:flow.provided by/lused m) flnancmg acthltles . A0S 39 (498)
“Net'increase/(decrease) in cash ,and cash equivale‘n,ts"f 231 b T (105}
Cash and:cash ‘equivalents at 01011 e 128 o T+ 216
; Cash and cash equivalents at-31 .v12’ 359, [, 128 111
“ Restricted bank deposits at 31,12
: ; 7 8 5




‘*”ACCOJUNTING PRINCIPL
WILH.Q WILHELMSEN_ ASA

Wllh W|lhelmsen ASA [the company] is dorrraled in Norway:
The reportmg currency is the Norweg|an krone [NOK]

'on 13:March 2006
~iThe.annual accounts have been pr pared in accordance with

‘lhe Norwegian Accountlng Act and generally-accepted accountlng)'

v ’prlnCIples lNGAAPl e iy
The accountshave been’ prepared undaf the historical5cost

\llabllltles lincluding:financial defi /attves)vat fair value through the‘l

mcome statement ; g

; Preparlng financial statements in conformlty wrth NGAAP
“requires the management to-maks Use 'of e<t|mates and assump-
' ‘tions. which affect the application of; the accounting prmcnples and

?the reported amounts “of assets’ and llabtlltles revenues: and :

”expenses Estlmates and assocnated assumptcons are based on

the: circumstances: These calculatlons form: he basns for 8sses:
sing the capttallsed value of assels and llab|lmes w 1 ch ‘do ot

find clear expression:from other =ources The actual result can.i
vary fromithese estlmates ORI ; i

The. accountmg principles outtlned below Rave: been applled

: conststently for all the perrods presented ‘ ,cc'ounts.

FOREIGN CURRENGY TRANSLATION

* TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCE SHEE T TEMS e :
' Monetary items'and market-hased finandial current assets are’

stated-at the.étrrent rate:of.exchange; and-fixed assets are transs"-

lated at the exchange rate prevatllng on the transactlon idate.'The
',average exchange rate-for the: percod is Used for translatmg reve:
nues and expenses Unreallsed and realised currency gam orloss
g recogmsed |n the income statement ‘

i
i

‘ 'TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Fixtures are stated at h|stor|cal cost Deprecratlon is calculated
on‘a straight- l|ne basis. ! !
S The carfying value of-fixed as<.ets equals the hlstorlcal loss
less accumulated deprecratlon anid any |mpa|rment charges;
The depreciation charge will feflect expected reS|dualvalue

Other tangible:fixed assets are deprectated overthe followmg

: expected useful lives;

:’lVFixtures ; 3310 years

.INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

: %Amorhsatlon of |ntang|ble flxed a<»sets is based an-'the followmg

R

"qi,‘:ey?(pect‘ed useful:lives:

»Therannualiaccounts were adopted by the board}‘of dlrectors el

"hlstorlcal experuence and: other factors regard d ‘as, reasonable N

Comiputer software -
: Other intangible assets

3-5 years!
.'5-10 years

COMPUTER SOFTWARE
~Computer software and. start<up llcences are capltalnsed in the
balance:sheet..Costs related to software licences, development or

*'’'maintenance are’expensed.as incurred. Costs directly associated
conventlon as:modified by the revaluanon of f|nan<:|al assets and:

'wtth the development of-identifiable software owned by the com-
‘pany;.with aniexpected useful tife'of more than one‘year, are’ :
‘capitalised. Direct costs embrace software development person-
- neliand a share of relévait overheeds CapitaliSed computer s'oft-v o
ware:develdped in-hoUse'is amort|sed usmg the stratght lme
method over its expected useful’ ltf’e.'

OTHER lNTANGIBLE ASSETS : ; R ;
Capltallsed expenses related to olreriintangible fixed, assets are

amortlsed overithe expected u A
straight-line method.

itilives:in:accordance with the

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

P

‘Fli'x'tures and_intangible’assets are reviewed for potential impair-

ment whenever changes in;circdmstances or eventskind‘icate that
f,ithe) book value of assets may“not be recoverable: For thelpurpo-
- ses'of assessing impairment, assets are groupedat the lowest
levelfor which |dent|f|able mdependent cash inflows exist:[cash-

o 'generatmg units):: An |mpa|rment loss isthe amount by which'the

1
carrylng amount of antasset -exceeds.its. recoverable amount..The’

recoverable amount is the hlgher of its falr value less sales costs
vand its value |n use. The value |n use is-the' présent value of the

future cash mflows expectedto be derlved from the asset. ;

"o AR tmpalrmenl loss recog[msed in prior perlods will be rever-

lsed'ita: change has:occurredin the estimates used to determine .
--the recovérabte amount of the asset. A loss in the event of a,

‘change in.valueiisionly rever'sjed ltoithe'extent that the asset’s car-

rying amountidoes not exceed: the carrying value which would

have been‘determined, net of depreciation.or amortlsauon had

s "‘ no tmpa|rment charge been recognlsed in prior 'periods.

 FINANCIAL ASSETS i

+The company class:hes its fm’anaal assets in.the following cate-':
igories: tradlng tmanaal assets at fair value through the.i income’ ;"
statement, lnvestments held to maturity, and financial assets
available for sale. The class:ftcatwn depends on the purpose of

the asset Management determmes the classmcatlon of financial
aséetsat the|r initiat recognmon : : :

i
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;SHARE BASED COMPENSATION

““The company ‘hasian optton programme for senlor management

The' grantmg ‘date was 1 January 2005 Thet amount expen-

sediover-the earntng perlod is calculated on the basts of the fair e

"value of the optlons granted The counterpart entry |s an increase
Coinequity i i .

ons granted uncondttlonally, provtded they remain employed by
“the group atiany tlme up #0.31; December 2007

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

‘ Derlvatlves are usually recogmsed ‘at fair value on the date a derl-
vatuve contractis entered intosand are subsequently remeasured
on-a continuous: baS|s at their fair value The; method of recognl- )

sing the resultmg gain or loss depnnds on:whether the derlvatlve

L ‘VIS designated as a hedging instrument; and |f so the nature-of

the itém' being hedged. The group desngnates certaln derlvatlves
as’ elther hedges‘of fair value.of recognlsed /asséts‘and tiabilities
ltalr value hedge] or hedges ot hlthy probable forecast transac-
‘tions [cash- flow hedges) :

Atithe date of the hedging transact!on the group documents

. the relat|onsh|p between:hedging. mstruments and: hedged’items.;

...as:well-as'the ob)ect ofiits risk management and the:strategy.

'underlymg thevarious hedge transacttons -The group also docu-. ‘

ments the'extent to ‘whichithe derlvattves used are effective’ in

smoothlng the changes.in real value or cash: flow assocvated with °

‘the' hedge ltems Such assessmen‘ts are documented bath mltlally
and onian ongomg basisiil:

THe fair value of tlnancnal mstruments traded m actlve mar-
“kets is based on‘quoted market prlces at the balance sheet date
The fair-value of.financial |nstrumi=nts not traded:in‘an active

U itnarket is deterrmined usmg valuahon technlques such’as the
discounted valueiof; ffuture cash flaws: lndependent experts vertfy .
- “the value détermination forsinstrulnents whlch are con5|dered

material; L i il
FAlR VALUE HEDGES
Changes in the:fair value of derlvattves whlch ‘are de5|gnated and
i qualify‘as fair value hedges are recognlsed ln the |ncome state-
‘ \‘ment together with.any changes in:fair value whichican be attri-
..buted to the hedged asset of: l|ablltty ;

1N

CASH FLOW HEDGE
:The effective portion of changes |n the fair value of derivatives 4

designated as cash-flow hedges are recognlsed directly in equrty
Gain and loss on:the ineffective portion'is recognlsed in the inco=
me statement. Amountsrec’dgnised directly’in equrty are recogni-
sed as"income or expense in the iticome statement:in the perlod

“when the hedged ltablllty or planr ed transa :tton,wnll affect'the.
“income statementf o ‘ -

- PENSION osusmo‘ns:
Partlcrpants in: the programme can elect to exercise the optl-; SEE A i It :
) Group companies;have vari ous penston schemes These schemes

‘are generally funded through payments 1o msurance companies

‘ -,pay.

DERlVATlVES WHICH DO NOT OUALIFY FOR’ HEDGE ACCOUNTlNG

Certain derlvatwe mstrumentsldo not quallfy for. hedge accoun-

»tmg Changes inthe. fair valuelof any derwatlve instryments

which do-not quallfy for hedge'accountlng are: recognlsed in the
income statement S :

or pension funds on: the ba5|s of perlodlc actusrial calculatlons
Theigroup has both deflned_contrlbutron and defined benettt
plans. e : A

A dehned contrlbutmn plan is one under, WhICh the group pays

flved contrtbutlons tola:separate legal entity. The group has no: .

legalor constructlve obllgatmhs to pay: further contributions if

“the fupd:does.not hold: sufftctent assets to pay “alt employees-the

benefits relatmg to employee serwce in the current and prlor
periods. /- i :

“A defmed beneftt plan is one Wthh is‘not a defmed contrlbu-
tion plan This-type. of plan typlcally defines.an; amount of pension

benefit-an employee will recetve 6n'retirement; normally depen-.

dent on'one.or moretfactors‘s,uch as age, years ot service and

=:The llablllty recogmsed |n the balanceisheet in respect of

defmed beneflt penslon plans is the 'present vatue of the defined
benefit obllgat:on at the balance sheet date'less the fair value of
plan assets, adjusted for unrecognlsed actuarual gams orlosses

and unrecogmsed costs related to-pension earnlngs in earlier

periods The pension’ dbligation is ¢alculated annually by inde-
pendent actuaries using.a straight:line earnlngs imethod. The-
present value of the defmed benefit obltgatlons isidetermined by

‘b;dlscountlng the estimated future cash outflows usmg interest
rates for hlgh quallty corporate bords whlch are: denommated N

the currency in whrch the ben fits will be pald and-which have.

“iterms to maturity apprommattng to ‘the terms of the related'pen-

sion lzab|l|ty B l e i
Actuarval galns and losses arlsmg trom new: lnformatlon or

changes to actuar:al assumptlons in excessiof ‘the higher.of 10% ¥
af the; value of the pensoon assets or 10% per cent of the pensnon
;obllgatlons are recognlsed in the income statement over the
gexpected average remajning:workinglives of the employees.

Changes in penston plan benefits are recogmsed |mmed|ately

in-the income statement unless rlghts iri the:new pension-plan
"are conditional:on'the employee remamlng in service for a speci-

ficiperiod.of time (the vesting perlodl In‘that case, the costs

‘associated with'the change:i if benefit are amortised on a
stralght line.basis'over.the. vestmg period.

For deflned contrlbutlon plans the group pays contribution to. -
publicly-or. prlvately admmtstered pension insurance plans on an
‘obligatary; contractual or. voluntary basis..The group has no
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“furthef:payrment dbligationsbonce;t'he centri butions have been
pald The' contrlbutlons are recogmsed as a payroll expense when

! ,_;they fall'due. Prepaud contrlbutcons are reccgmsed 35 an.asset to

-the.extent that:a cash:refund:or, al reduchon Jin‘thefuture-pay--
ments is &vailable. ;
IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMAT_;ES AND ASSUMPTIONS
The company prepares estimates and makes assumptions about
thefuture. By definition; the accolinting estimates derived from’
thesewill:seldom:accord: fully wit%h the finalioutcome.:Estimates.
”and assumptions ‘which represent a'substaritial risk for signifi--
cant changes in the stated value of assets in the balance sheet
durlng the next flscal year are dlscussed be ow,
] INCOME TAX..: ’
Tax is recognlsed as.an expense when it fal ls due Ir1 other words,

the tax expenseis.retated to.the dccountmg prof:t/loss before tax; i
The tax expense comprises tax payable and change in‘netidefer-:i

\fed taxi Deférred tax and deferred tax assets are presented net in
-the balance sheet RS E Y T i B

ACCOUNTING‘PRINCIPLES WILH. WILHELMSEN'ASA

RELATED PARTIES

The company | has transactlons with: |ts assouated ccmpanles and

joint ventures These contracts are based oh commeraal market
terms.

2E

See note 2 for information relating to remuneration for'the

“directors; the-working chairiandithe-chief executive; as well as

loens and security provided to 'employees.. ;

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Where necessary, comparatlve flgures ‘have 'been adjusted to

conform wrth the presentahon for. the present year.
rih J
|

v




NOTES T0 THE ACCO INTS
WlLH WILHELMSEN A';SAf

- Note 17 Gross‘revenue

| : _
NOK mill ‘ : 2005 00 20040 . . 2008
Operating income ;
lntercompany income 60
:Other. external mcome _ 17
Co Total'other.operating l‘nco'rne 77
S E5
: :Note 2 Wages and remunerl’linn :
g ’NOK,mill;» 2005 : 2004 s 2003
" 'Wages Pl e . .58 44
“Payroll'tax o e T 18 ; 12
““'Pension cost’ : 2 : : Sl e L 26 - 330
Other remuferations: " 10 Y el L Gz 9
Total.wages and remuneration 'L wi e s 17 98-
Averaée num'b‘er of employees l v NSA o 60
: ,.,;R‘e‘myynerathnﬂlﬂQK«1~000)" i ; Board ‘,’( Executive “ " Chief
BINRNET e ; i e chair - _executive
Wages/fees " 1 dLE T R 28561 Ui 4222 4387
Pehsidn premium L e ‘ Sy . : g c 2267
Other.rémuneration LT : I W9 i iy, o 1120 i 204y,
Total U e e L ! 26700 L0884 - 6858

L

The chief executive-has’a bqnus ‘cheme which gives.him the right to & ‘maximumiof:é monthly salary payments in bonus.

The chief executive has the rightjto a:life- long pension, constltutlng b6 pericentof his annual salary at retirement.

leew15e the chairof the board has the right tora life-long: pensmn constituting 66 per cent:of his. remuneratlon at retirement.

The chief executive also has an a!greement on reducmg his'workload between the ages of 63 and 67; without cutting the.pension.

=« -entitlement outlined above, with.ja correspondmg reductncn in salary to: 66 per cent of his fmal salary at the -age of:67.

1" The chief execiitive'also has an agreement on severance pay which gives him the rlght to recelve 75 per cent of his.annual salary ‘
- fer 1B:months after he leaves the company as the resultof a ‘merger, substantial changes in ownershlp or'a decision by the board of
directors. Possible other income recelved durlng the perlcd wnll reduce this severance pay by 50 per cent Such areduction would

“rcomeinto force 6 months alter his departure l
Gl ¥ ‘
cont pextpage : i i i PRI
i %
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< Note'2.-Wageésiand rémunerition tantifar previons mages b : s o BT

'y""/LOEI"!ﬁ'a"d ygljléyran‘ti‘ek's ’ ‘,:"'," . : S ;‘ :f : . 'Employees w. Board: Executive " .. Chief
B e L : T ‘ S . T chair - Executive'
\,toan‘slNonoool ' » o R : T [ 0 e
: : 1 SRR N E ‘5 ; i N . s
iEmployees are charged 2, 5 per c *nt‘inter ‘
“No securlty has been provnded for the loa
. Audit [NOK 1 000) :
» ;- Statutory au‘dit feet: «
Agreed upon procedures audltol‘ :
Tax services - auditors’ associates.
Other consultancy fees - audltors 3 :
Total' il S fi E
: v‘Sh:ares owned"or controlled by “epresen;tatives of Wllh. Withetmsen ASA as of 31.12.05
. : : i & Per cent of . Per cent of
“Navn ‘A'shares; ' B'shares i = Total i total shares voting stock |
_ BOARD OF DIRECTORS: F o o - ‘o
‘j'Wilhelm Wilhelmsen (chair] . 20295940 1122.679.084 4569 % i 55T
"Leif-T'Leddesal (deputy chair . o 1 152’ 1152 . e * :
: Odd Rune Austgulen . 136 400136, ., !
"leettlna Banoun o j"wzoo - 2000
“Helen Juell 20188 - 120188
DiderikS‘chniﬂtler’ 20004 o 2000
! o L Outstandihg stock
ST S i e B 1" options at 31:12,06°
,Execunves e e e | L S
~Ingar Skaug [chlef executlve/alternate dlrec tor} 115044 UressA : 20.000:
Sjur Galtung (deputy chief executlve/alternate dlrectorl J T B3 382: W 778603 - 5000
Arild B lversen-{senior vice president) ‘ TN 184; .. 10:050 12284 _ . 10000
Cecilie Stray [vice president corporate communications] T N 0 7500
Dag SchjervenLlPresident;Wilhlem:s"en"Mariti_me Services AS) ; IR R TR » ‘ 10000
.'Optlon programme for senior executlves . ey b L D

The. Board of Dlrectors ofiWilh: erhelmsen ASA lWWl resolved in a Board Meetlng held'on 28 October. 2004 to renew the Stock Optlon
Programme for employees at management level in the company, and in:its assocnated subsndtarles Thls*prograrnme was originally
'mtroduced in February 2000:and explred in 31 December 2004 . s

Sk At the same time;: the Board: deuded to allocate 335 000 shares of. Class A sharesiin WW currently owned by the company. to the -
CE programme, and authorssed the group chlef executwe to decide who should be offered an opt|on tolpurchase shares-under the
programme. THe group chlef executive has decnded to'lse the althority granted and in aletter 3 l‘ecember 2004, offered a select
group of employees the opportunlty to partICIpate |n‘ the programme - e
The options must be exerclsed in the perlod from l January 2005:- 31 December 2007. The: strlke prlce will-be. the average market price
k for;shares of Class-Aon the Oslo Stock Exchange in'the month of December 2004 wh|ch Wwas NOK 148 per. share. A new average market

“lprice closer to'the option grant date will be establlshed for personnel who Jom the programme at a later date
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Note 2 Wages and remuneration - cont from

previsusinane

’ Movements in'the number of share optuons autstandlng and oy
© their related we|ghted average exermse prlces are as follows

?Outstandlng opllons 3142,

z 3

.. Average exercise

. 2008

Number

s share y:eld is based ona stanstucal analysts of the average daily share prlce over the nextithree years

- NOK mill

2004 . 2003
Other operating expenses : !
lntercorhbany expenses:’ | 2 ik 1
Bad debts : 0 i B N
Sales-and administration: expenses . X 89 Gk 1604 105
" Total-other operating expenses : 91 L I - 104
i . p
Financial income _ e o et EanE
“Dlwdend from subsndlarles angd group contrlbufien . 313 3 Y121 385,
-+ Dividend : ! i £ 5 12 ; 13 7
i idnterest i incorne. . L i 17 10 10
“Interest | mcome from sub51d|ar|es : i1 , 360 310
:‘)Nel currency. gain . ! 115 L i L
E ‘Return 6n short:-tefm fmanCIal mvestments 130 94 88

- "'Total flnanmallncome : B 634 274 840"
fFlnancxal expenses ! o
Interest, expenses ( f +.133) (23)

: ‘:lnterest expenses to substdlarles i 8 Loy m
"Net currency loss o 5 ey (5}
Other financial itemis, b )' o fRliE 12)
Total'finan‘cial expenses (88) (203). {31]
Fmanual |nstruments : o
-“Change-in‘'market value financial ins rume‘nls (258) 112 {119):-
< Total financial instruments : (258):: 112 1119) .

288 183

The.cost w1ll be allocated over the earnlng perlod Sinceithe optlons granted canibe exermsed from day one, NOK 12.2 mtlllon has been

recogmsed dnrectly in the accounts as'the total cost:

;Ne‘te’ 3 C'omb'in‘ed’jlitems;ﬂin\'cembe efat‘ﬁe,r’nent l

2005 .

i 'price in.NOK ,
o pe'r share of options
Ae01.01 ‘ L ‘ ‘
Granted 1 G 1320 000
Exercised ? 2035 (81000)
. 239000

‘ The real'valye of the ophons granted durlng the, peruod has been calculated with a|d of the Black Scholes optton pr:cmg model. ThIS
g calculation assurnes ‘that'the optlons will'be exerctsed after.12 months Volatxllty measured byithe standard'deviation:for. the expected

A provnsnon of NOK 4 8 m|ll|on has béen made at 31 December for payroll tax on the dlfference between the faxr value and the str|ke price

‘Net financial items
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Note '/l“"\ Taxes

,Noxhﬁu i e ,i}'

! 'D|str|but|on of tax‘expenses for the: year ;
Payable taxes . : .
'Change in‘deferred'tax .-""

- 2004

2003

26 -
14

Total taxes.

Tax‘effect of temporary dlfferences N R
*.Fixtures N e )

Cufrentastets™ ' . S
'"Long term llabllulles/provusuons for llabllmes: g

“Tax losses ‘carried forward

(21)
1951,
(u0)

[98) s

(47)

40,

35

gl -

’ Total deferred tax (deferred tax assetl

: ; Composmon of deferred tax and changes m deferred tax
“Deferred tax.31. 12 {ast year : S

"’)Deferred tax.01.01 implementation effect .
,‘Change in deferred tax credited:to the income statement

11146l;“:>>

e

s

9

(88)

~59)

@

(46)
14

i

Defered tax (Deferred tax assets) 31.12. ©

L

"\ Basis for tax computation ,
Incofhe before taxes
28% tax i

Tax effectfrom =0 o nd g
Perianent differences ' /
Non-taxable‘income

A

1307
3

oo e

(59) =

358

100

(61)

Calculated tax

Effective tax rate’’: g g

o
i,
e
i
i
i
. .
¥
:.«V'i‘ 4,
b
; :
:
i
‘
i
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‘Note'5 “Intangible and fixed asséts’

NOK mill

" Cost-price 0101
Additions i
Disposals
Cost price 31,12,

Accumulated ordinary“dfep"re’ciatiqnvf0(1.01RE' L
Accumulated ordinary depreciation-31.12 "%,

“Intangible '

“~Fixtures "
assets o ioih

L2
F / S ' 7
: 14)
19

13
40,

Bookvalue 31.12

Current year's depreciation

L Economic lifetime
Dépreciation'schedute

5’ AR

s s Uptei3 yearé o ! £ 3-10 years

Straighttine. =~ i | SHL Straight line
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¥ o ’ ;
s : ¥ i :
i
’})i’ i b ‘
. Note's Investments;in‘subsidia"r;ie)s : : . vy
b ;

"‘Investments |n sub5|d|ar|es are recorded at rost Where a: reductlon in the value of shares in subsxdlarles
.les consrdered to be permanent and 5|gn|f|cart a-write:down £ net realisable value is recorded R

[

‘Busmessofflce L Votlng share Bookva‘lue’ ‘

"Comoa'ny 5 L : : Country Ownershlp share 1. (NOK 1 000)

NjOl‘d Insurance Company Ltd Gt g e i Berm'uda"‘f L
Strandveien 20 ANS Ly Norway

. Unitor A% 2 (I NI : Norway 1% . 16215

_ Wilh: Wllhelrnsen ASIa] Sdn’ Bhd. i e e Malay5|a v 100'% 1875

 Wilh. Wilhelmsen (Hong Kongl. Ltd. : o i ~ Hong Kong L 100 % 50

“Wilh. Wilhelmsen Netherlands BV, .~ e Netherlands “““ 100% "~ + 310273

- Wilhelmsen Forbes Energy Logr s Ltdinne S R Maurmus 2100 % o 75

"'Wllhelmsen Insurance Services'AS' ' - 3 sl Norway 00%: 7 50

: Wllhelmsen Lines'AS, Sy . : ] 650 050

"',Wllhelmsen Lmes Shtpownlng Holdmg AS. <100 % 2252686

uWilhelmsen Maritime Services AS +. , 52100 % TN 293 440
Wilhelmsen Offshore & Chartering AS i Norway 75330
WilService A~ 1 L Norway A 7613
“Deferred income mtragroup transaction:’: e Norway: . ~w {1792 837)
Sum datterselskap - e B LR R ST 1958019

\1‘0"‘0%‘ ! 3611
99% ©. 139 587

L
o
: s. .
=)
B

- N,wy

* At 31 December 2005; Unitor AS'is ownéd Hyfth_réé‘;‘c‘o‘mpanies in:the Wilh; Wilhelmsen ASA grouo e

o
3
i ’
; S
z
i
i
g i
b
¥ i
v
i . : i
i iy ; i
i i s
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the 7 anes}tﬁ"\e‘r-ts in'joint v

kInvestments in ]om ventures are recorded at
58 ) be permanent and s:gmfucant 4.\write dow

' i
¥ i
el

Combahy e
Joint ventures = "isis
EUKGR Car.Carriers: Inc

EUKOR Car Carr;ers Singapore Pte. Ltd ! j ‘ e
‘EUKOR Shnpownmg Smgapore Pteiltd: o

“Associates [
Glovis Co: Ltd. o il et

cost Where areductioni in the: value of shares IS consudered

n:to net reallsable valueis recorded : t
2
LTy ;
Gl Bu;ihess’office «,_‘,J_;,\llotllng share

Lamm “Country’ ‘Qwnership share

"Republie of Korea:: : 40,0%

Singapores . 40.0%

ot Singapore ‘40.0.%

R‘ep'ubli"c‘ of Karéa = 20.0.%

Book \ralue
:(NOK 1000}

959 892
178
1025

610620 1

" ‘Total investments in joint.ventures and assc

P
Lidice’

NOTES TO'THE ACCOUNTS WILH

1570792

. WILHELMSEN ASA ™76 '

vy

B



«.. i0ther current receivables

<7 Dther financial.instruments:i

: .17+ Total'short-term financialiinvestments

No»t;e:':Bﬂ."Combined items, balance she

ARy

~NOK.mil

. Other lpng-ter;ﬁ\assets ;
Loans to subsidi}ejk"ies :
Other long-term;assets

11196
30

- 2004

999 ¢
27

2003

859 -
2%

Total long-term assets

Of which lohg-term debtors falling due for payment:later thantphe year::

i

:Loans to‘:subsidiari‘e‘s'_ L j
" Other long-term assets ' o

1226

1160
36

1026

990

885

849

-~ 25

“Total long-term assets due.after oné_yeér ;

"«Other‘cukly"ljgnt aséefts‘r o
Short-terin ir’u’(ercom’p)any receivable.:

1.196

1.015

86
33

874

511
19

‘Total other current assets .

B Other longy-terjm liabilities
Loans from subsidiariés..-
Other long-term liabilities -

19

155
21

1530

Total other long-term liabilities

-, .Other cujy'rentv,l'iabilities ;
"Dividend - ,
) lntercompény payéble E

Other current liabilitiés

176

192
28,

50

50
65
37

Total other current liabilities”

Financial instruments
Cash:flow hedging

ass
720
21 :
93

364

(28]

270 o

154

©152

52"

" Total financial in‘étrumentsf.: :

i

‘Note 9 SH‘urit-kte,rym'firiancial investments

NOK: milt

‘Nérwegian:listed stocks

Bonds NOK .

Bonds USD, : : R

" Structured-products NOK: =
- Structured products:USD

28} "

154

o Market vatue
-2005

i 141

ST
L30T

<174
36

226
S0
90 .7
43T
105, -

42

2004

21
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Note 10 ,Re‘:str‘i‘c,t\ed bank deposits;and undrawn commit)te,d drawing rightsi | : Ll ‘

i

M'W,NOKmil‘l"' : 2005 2003 -
Payroll lax wnthholdmg account h, = : ‘25:, E = " ’7 s 7
..Undrawn commltted drawmg r|ghts “ T S v ""y' 80 i : 716
o Notell1 Equity
NOK'milli ..Share capital .. Own shares : etamed Lt V'I"otal" it
ey , e : earnlngs ’ '
Equity 31.12.2003 + g B T e Joornmes 2707
Net equity effects of pension obligations, v, v, T U e 5k SN R k) L “(117)
Recognlsed deferred'i income’ mtragroup transacllon : S o v B ‘ : 762 L1762
_EqU|ty01 012004 . o Foan e O Cfaap L2393 0 3382
Current yearschange in equnty S : : : ‘ )
" Purchase of own shares, et A R o A5k et (18] {21)
“ Options employees sl ‘ S AN s s 10
Grotip. contribution” T ‘ B St SR T (2) (2)
Proposed dividend - Ve o e L : L0192 ) {192}
Dividend paid - October: =~ /<0 . " R T B et  (eg) (198)
Net income': e . i : 1 onm N [ 29 , 29
Equit)"”31.k12,.2‘006,. : ; e D993 (330 o 2019 .29
Currentyearschange in equrty ‘ : - R T
fOptnons employees: L b O o S S L {12)
Wlthholdmgtax_ g L R e i - ‘l i coe (70 {7)
Group contribution’ - : " o AN (19" ... . 119)
Proposed dividend:. ' o g : ' T (248) o (248)
- Dividend paid,- November ' 10 = L . Bl e (198 (198)
"'Net income’ . : . 1 ; et - SVl : ' 121
Eqmty 31.12.2005 : , : e 1993 . ‘(32] : 501656 2617

Deferred income |ntragroup transactlons relatmg to restructurlng of companies! in the group has been stated on the basis of a

settlement’in cash and-shares. This has meant an equnty correction of NOK 762.millicn:at 31 December 2003, which refers to
the reallsatlon of shares i in subscdlan‘es L !

A total of 81 000A shares were utlllsed in 2005 for optlons exercised by employees: The slrlke price for these optlons is between -
NOK 148 and NOK 164; # E : : : :

“At 31 December, 2005 Wllhelmsen Lines Shvpownlng AS-owned:1 281 476 Class A shares and;241 700 Class B shares, while "=
Wilh.-Wilhelmsen'ASA owned 55:000 Class A shares and:10:000 Class B shares The total purchase pr|ce of these shares is about

NOK 867 mllllon LR
The companys Share Capltal comprcses 36 856 468Class A shares and. 12 781 032 Class B shares totalling 49 637, 500 shares with
a nominal value of NOK 20 each Class B shares do not carry a vote at the general meetmg 0therwnse ‘each share confers the same’
Tights in the company ‘ i l : - ~ ; ; l :

D|V|dend paid:in' 2004 was NOK 1 per share m May and NOK'4 perishare in 0ctober The 2005 payments were NOK 4 per share in.:
May and‘NOK'4-per:share in November The proposed dividend for fiscal 2005 is NOK 5 per share payable in May Ac-decision on this

N proposal will be: taken by the annual general meetlng on 4 May 2006

L e i - » G ’
k - |
F . |
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pr i s : S Jf :
Note 11 Equity:“eontifron

.. The larges'x shareholders in WILH. WILHELMSEN ASA - : L
' : Ly \ ) Total number .~ .Percentof -  Percentof
Sharehnlder S 7 A shares 7. B-shares: i-of shares ' .. totalshares: - voting stock”

CASWWILHELMSEN . eage7sy 795992, 7602 T4k : 15.32. L 84T
AS ORION INVEST .« e WTB 504 544436 5299940 T 110,68 12,90«
SKIPS AS TUDOR CuE ;4‘066-556 C0 200000 . 4086556 S Teaa o103
ODINWNORDEN . 11 o i 2546600 . 2546600 IS e -

’ yFOLKETRYGDFONDET' T TR Ry : 1053000 . 2435950 e 491 o 3.75

- UASTRES" ‘ o 0esans .m0 239048 L usy 5.66° ..

G AS KASSIOPEIA ,;¢  * 1971886 252448 'i:, 2224032 N 448535

1
4

ODINNORGE, = i Lol 18044000 1804 400 R TN _
- WILHELMSEN LINES SHIPOWNING AS 1281476 - 241,700 1523176 . 3.07 ST V't A
. PARETO'AKSJENORGE 1732 045 - 403800 1135845 229 e 199 ;
' SKANDINAVISKA ENSKILDA BANKEN 125467 ei28000 108827 0 295 034
- SKAGEN VEKST ' 100000007 50 S iD00000 2ot S 271
STATE STREET.BANK & TRUST GO, 803316 978 804294 . 1.62 : 218
. JPMORGAN CHASE BANK = 1. 1224005 | 385350 . 609355 1.23 - , 0.61
STIFTELSEN TOMWILHELMSEN '~ .~ 370400 12260000 596400 i 1200 1.00
51S SEGAINTERSETTLEAGSPCT NOM 551800 . .o 551800 ) 1:50
PARETO'AKTIV. s LY 409800 00007 o 5195000 v a5 U
VITAL FORSiKRlNG ASA [OMLGP) 269522 : 2871100 1506622 ; 02 b 0937
"'/, VERDIPAPIRFONDET AVANSE NORGE; NOR 400376 St 4003760 08T 09
- VERDIPAPIRFONDET DNB NOR NORGE (IV]: 329 900 38200 38100 074 Ui Tgo
‘STOREBRAND LIVSFORSIKRING AS. .. 268770 56958 325728 . 066 ' 0. 73
ODINMARITIMA o sif e it kg 00+ © 250000 0.0 v
.+ JPMORGAN CHASE BANK 2495000 B 249500, 050 0 048
 DFA-INTL SMLCAPVALPORT ' 245200 - = .. U200 049 0.67
' SVENSKA‘HANDELSBANKEN DEPOT /. '1117700 109800 221500 045 0.30
- 'NORDEA BANK PLC.EINLAND NIFC ' 161:250 152.400 ‘ L2130650.0 0 0:43 017
CREDIT SUISSE FIRST BOSTON - 207350 Go2o73s0t e o042 0.56
.+ TUDOR SHIPHOLDINGAS, . o' 7w i o 1200000 200060 0400 :
. NORDEA AVKASTNING " ' o5 o 0 L oaessa . U iigge 0.53
Andre 0 7950427 . 2100398 10051025 20250 21.57
Totalt : 136856468 12781032~ . 49 637500 100,00 + 100,00

LAY 31 December 2005 3 226 863 [8 76 per: centl of. the A shares and 17711437 [13 86 pericent] of the B shares were owned by :
#foreigners. The correspondmg flgures for 2004 werei3 226 863 [8.76 per cent] A shares and ] ‘?07 0‘|1 {14 92 per cent] B shares.
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i NOK mill,

: "Notre'; 12 /Pensions

i Spemflcatlon ofpenswn cost :

2005 2004

: : . -t L Funded i Unfunded
.;Number of people in pension plans at 31.12 : 12005 2004 2003 2005:2004 2003,
g Employees [mcludmg dlsabled} 70 T8 7[2 249° 270 - 306
“"Retired employees 1229 11122542248 ; 6647 635 627

Total . t 2997303 320' 913" 905 933

e ; i : SR
, g L ii
Financial :e'ssumptione for the)bensiﬂen calculations: e e »
S don TR e 2005 2004 2003

Expected rate of return on assets in pensnon plans : ,}5;0«'% (5.5‘% :47'.0 %,

Dlscount rate h0% 65 % 16:0:%

Annual pay: regulatlon : 3.0% 3.0%: 3 0‘%

Annual regulatlon of Natlonal Insurance bas= amount L 30.% 30 % 2.5%. ;

Annual regulatlon of pensnons Ch f 120% 20 % 2 0 % |

Interest expenses'relatedito service expens'efw 11 ’ 7 "7
Return.on assets in pension plans : 25 27 o 2;\9 i
Avkastning pa penSJonsmldlene , s 1 N2 [13] s 15)
Recognlsed changes in estimates and varlances i S 1200 9120
Costsiof defined.contribution plan; : 5 ) K
Netpension expense : +26 36 33

s Kt % b

‘ Specmcatlon of net pensmn llablllhes reflected in the balance sheet at 31, 12 e

"NOKmlll i o

i

j* . 2005 :;200’11”«"2&)6%‘
s Ll DR i
Present value:of funded obligations: {225} (220) llB'A]
Fair:value ofplan assets.. "™ ‘ 26 il
Net (4) {4} 24
Present value of unfunded obl|gat|ons (350} 355} :.{329)
\Unrecogmsed actuarlal losses SRl Jehi 59 4
Accrued pay-roll tax : 1250 1 [26) " (21)
“Netrecognised pension liabilities 13201 (326)+"(322)
2 ki
L
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‘Note 13 Long=-term interesl-bear«ing' debt:

2005 2006

=the 15 :Eventis«'a‘fte‘r“th‘eubal‘ance sheet date{

No events occurred between the balance sheet date

.about:conditions-prevailingioni the’ balance

sheet d ite.

MSEN ASA

2003
Long -term interest- bearlng debt .
i 304 167
; " 17409 588
Certificate loans f 85 230 -+
Total long lerm lnlerest bearmg debl LT8G 985
2 e ,'f": ) Bl H';’: 50 iy a
Book value of mortgaged assets
Shares 576
Repayment schedule for long term lnterestfheaning debt o e
Dug inyear 1+ i : i) 215
Due myear2 I 3130k 216 m
 Dueinyear3 : oy 359 352
Duein year 4 ; i ! 43 3o 545
Duein year, 5 ‘and‘laterk; RN Sy SRR SR 770 ; YK R
Decomposed cash flow hedging: 1 A8 4255
‘Total long-term interest-bearing debt 2546 e 1798 : 985
Guarantee commitments :
Guarantees-for: group companles i 35
"-Guarantees forassociates C 100
Total guarantees 0. 0 135
s kN‘ote':M E'ndrin‘g*av rebs’kapsp"»nsipper ;
Flnanclal instuments :
iThe effect of this:.change fdr. 2005 |s shown below together w1th
ccmparatlve figures’ restated from the publtshed flgures for 2004 and 2003
2008 2004 2003
Charnige in value 6f financiatl instruments (258] 0 e el 112 {149}

.and the date when the accounts were presented whlch provide new information




“We have audlted the annual flnanual statements of With, W‘ilh'elmsen
/ASA as of ‘Decemnber 31,2005, showing a profit'of NOK 121 mllhon for-:.
'the parent company:and‘a‘profit'of USD. 191 mtlllon for:the-group: We
have also audlted the: |ntormat|on in the d|rectors report concernlng
the fmanmal statements the gomg concern’ assumptlon and the .

k'r“proposal for the allocatron of the'profit:‘The annual financiat state- ~( »

‘ments comprise the financiat statements of the parent company and:
““the/group.. Thel fmanclal statements of.the parent compa) Y comprise
the balance sheet; the statements «ofincome and cash: flows and the

-accompanying notes. The financial statements of the group compr|se !

the balance sheet! the staterént;of i income‘and ‘Cagh flows, the, state-
-..ment of changes in quity. and the accompanymg rictes. - The regulatrons
oof the Norweglan accountlng act and accountnng standards; prmcrples ;
and practlces generally accepted.i m Norway have been appliedin the
preparation of the financial statements of the parent company. |FRSs:
“-as-adopted-by the EU have beén applied ifthe preparation of the »
financial statements of the group. These flnancral statementsiare'the |
responstblllty of the Companys ‘Board of: Dlrectors :and Managmg
Director. Our respon5|brl|ty is to/eéxpress.an optnlon onithese flnanual :
. statements and'on other information' according ta.the reqmrements
‘ of the Norweglan Act on Audltnng and-Auditor:

“We Conducted our-audit in accordance with laws regulatlons and o

auditing standards and:practices generally accepted in Norway, e
’fglncludlng ‘Standards on audmng adopted by The Norweglan ingtitute of e

‘Public Accountants These audrtlng standardsirequire that we plan and
perform the audlt t6 ‘obtain reasonable’assurance about whether the
hnancnal statements are free of material misstatement, An audit |nclu-
des examlnlng on a test basis, evndence supportlng the:amounts-and

: gdlsclosures in‘the financial: statements An audit alsc mcludes asses-ii:’

:sing the accountlng principles used and stgnlﬂcant estlmates made

~'by management as well as evaluating. the overall financial statement
presentation. To theextent: requnred by-taw’ and audltmg standards’ an‘ :
-audit also comprlses a review of the management of the Company [

" financial.-affairs and its accountlng and |nternal control systems

We believe:that our audit provides'a reasonable basls foriour oplmon.
: a0

Y

In:out oplnlon v Ci
+1ithé inancial statements of: the parent company have" been
prepared’in accordance with:the:law: and regulatlons and glve a
“true.and fair view of the financial posmon of the company. as of

" Decembet 31, 2005 an}d the restilts of its operatlons and |ts cashj

L

flows landithe changes in equity) for the yéar then ended,’ in
accordarnice with accountlng standards prlncrples and practlces
L generally accepted:in Norway o .
o the: fmancral statements of it e group have been prepared in
accordance.withithe law and regulatlons and give a true and fair
“view.0f the financial posmon of the grotip-as.of December-31,
112005, and the results af its .aperations’and: |ts cash flows and'the
changes in equity for. the year then ended, in accordance with -
(IERSs as adopted by:the'EU

fleiithe company's marnagement has fulfilled its duty to produce a

proper:and clearly set out reglstratlon and documentation of
accountlng mformatlon in accordance w:th the taw and good
,[bookkeeplng practice’ |n Norway “ )

3 thelnformatlon nnthe dlrectors report concernmgtheflnanmal

statements the going: concern assumptxon and the proposal for"
“the-allocation of the profit are consnstent with the financial $tate:
: ments and comply W|th the lawiand regulatlons

i

b v S i,
3r FH St . N

Oslo Marchi13, 2006 o §
PrlcewaterhouseCoopers AS

i

" ,Erlnng Elsrud
;:State Authorlsed Publlc Accountant [Norwayl

Note: Th|s translatlon from Norweg:an

/ has been prepared for, mfolrmatlon purposes only

!
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S COMMENTS

A FRONT RUNNER WITH EXPERTISE,
CAPITAL AND A GLOBAL NETWORK

Wilh. Wilhelmsen (WW) is among the front
runners in each of our three segments, Through
a solid and systematic commitment over

many years, we have built up an international
maritime group which will win a leading
position in the future by concentrating

on expertise development combined with
purposeful use of capital and exploitation of a
global organisation.

We are a world leader in shipping cars,
high and heavy cargo and certain types of
non-containerised cargo. Acquiring Den
norske Amerikalinje (NAL) in 1995 gave us the
necessary size and weight to meet developments
in a car industry characterised by ever fewer and
larger players. At the same time, we were able to
realise substantial synergies by integrating the
NAL fleet with our own vessels. Through our
collaboration with Sweden's Wallenius Lines,
we also became a co-owner in American Roll-on
Roll-off Carrier.

The partnership with Wallenius Lines was
expanded in 1999 through the creation of
Wallenjus Wilhelmsen Lines (now Wallenius
Wilhelmsen Logistics). This gave us additional
market weight, greater flexibility between cargo
categories and full global coverage for our
services.

WW wants to maintain a high standard for its fleet, and

docks the vessels every 2.5 years - more oflen than required.

Tamerlane was docked in January 2006,

Creating Korean company EUKOR together
with Wallenius Lines and car manufacturers
Hyundai and Kia in 2002 helped to strengthen
our position even further. The EUKOR
collaboration builds on a long-term contract with
Hyundai and Kia for maritime transport of all
their exports from Korea.

In a rapidly-changing world, the struggle
in our segment of the international shipping
business will primarily be over defending our
share of established markets and meeting
an expected expansion in demand from new
sectors. Through our global coverage, we
are well placed to meet this challenge. Our
organisation today is efficient and flexible, and
thereby able to tackle the job. It is nevertheless
important to focus on continuous improvement
and constant development of our employees,
our organisation and our systems. We also need
to secure sufficient tonnage in order to have
the capacity to meet requirements in new and
established markets. Together with our partners
in Wallenius Lines and EUKOR, we have
accordingly launched a substantial newbuilding
programme for 2006-09, with 43 modern car
carriers on order. Eleven of these vessels are for
our account.

We are also making a strategic and long-
term commitment to logistics, primarily to
support our shipping activities but with a
requirement for independent profitability.
Today, we are involved directly or indirectly

Ingar Skaug

in a number of logistics companies, vehicle
processing centres and port terminals in many
parts of the world. The logistics companies
create optimum solutions for moving
products from manufacturer to end user. This
commitment will continue, particularly in
areas of rapid growth such as Asia and eastern
Europe.

Our logistics involvement began through
the former Wilhelmsen Lines, which initiated a
collaboration in this area with DaimlerChrysler
in Australia. Further cooperation agreements
were eventually established for high and heavy
cargo with customers, who included Case New
Holland and John Deere.

Wallenius Lines began to offer logistics
services at the same time in connection with its
US operations. This commitment was stepped
up with the acquisition of the Richard Lawson
transport company, which had activities in the
UK and Germany.

In addition to our holding in France’s
Compagnie d'Affrétement et de Transport, with
Renault as the principal customer, we secured
a substantial stake in Glovis. This Korean
company has close ties with the Hyundai/Kia
system. Acquiring Nissan’s North American
logistics company, Distribution and Auto
Services (owned 50% by WWL), in 2005 and
building up organisations in Australia, Thailand
and China complement the creation of a global
logistics system. Taken together, our activities
already rank as the world’s largest independent
logistics operation for car and ro-ro transport.
We are now well under way in tying the various
units and activities together in order to achieve
further efficiency improvements and synergies.

Logistics will play an even more important

ok on sy 38
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role in the future. Faced with heavy cost

and efficiency pressures, the world's car
manufacturers will increasingly focus on their
core business. Supporting our customers with
optimum solutions for their logistics needs will
strengthen our relations with them by making
us an integrated part of their value chain.

Maritime services have a long history as
a priority area for our group. Established on
I January 2005, Wilhelmsen Marine Services
(WMS) can build on the impressive organic
growth of the Barwil ship agency chain and
on Barber International’s market position in
crewing and technical/operational management
of ships. Barwil ranks today as the world’s
largest in its field, while Barber is also among
the biggest worldwide. The acquisition of ship’s
equipment specialist Unitor in 2005 gave us
further breadth, an enhanced product range and
even broader geographic coverage. This opens
completely new opportunities for our businesses
in the sale of products and services, in line with
our strategy of continuing to develop WMS into
the leading global player for maritime services.
Unitor complements the range of services
offered by WMS and substantially expands the
potential customer base.

WMS now has the world’s largest maritime
network. Its companies handled 175 coo
deliveries to 16 400 ships as well as 51 000 ship
calls in 2005. These activities were pursued
through a network covering more than 2 200
ports in 116 countries. WMS aims to be an
innovator and pioneer in the maritime service
sector. We will realise synergies and become
more efficient, not least by making better use
of the global network and by integrating IT and
accounting systems.

The market for maritime services is
characterised by solid growth, but is also an
immature sector with a large number of small
players. Some of these have already merged, and
further consolidation is expected.

At the same time, both the world fleet and
demand for maritime services are expanding.
But competition is stiff and margins are under
pressure. We see this particularly in ship
management, with a big demand for qualified
seafarers who are in short supply. Customers are
simultaneously looking for cost-efficient long-
term frame agreements to safeguard against
frequent changes of management. Attention
is also focused on expertise development in

response to a number of demands by the
industry and the authorities.

We want to ensure that our seagoing
employees feel an attachment to the company,
partly by facilitating individual career
opportunities, in order to meet the strong
demand for maritime personnel. Barber's
international training centre at Mumbai in India
offers further education and certification for
both in-house and external crew.

Taken together, our three priority areas
represent a unique and complete international
maritime expertise cluster. We exploit our
network and develop competence across all three
segments.

Within our own ranks, we possess leading-
edge expertise throughout the chain from
development and design of new vessel types,
via construction and operational/commercial
management to logistics - as well as a network
of services and products with a presence in all
the world’s most important ports.

People and their experience and knowledge
provide the bedrock for all our activities. Only by
caring for and further developing our personnel
can we ensure that we retain our leading
market positions. We do this by living up to
our established values base, and by offering
responsibility and scope in a customer-oriented
organisation founded on cooperation, innovation
and expertise.

The WW Academy is an important tool
in this process. We believe that motivated
employees in an innovative and developing
organisation represent our most important
competitive edge in meeting the wishes and
needs of our customers. The academy is
dedicated to helping develop expertise and
build networks and brand. With its aid, we
develop culture and identity. We achieve a
shared business platform which supports a
multicultural organisation.

Our investment in building culture and
expertise is very important for reaching the

objectives we have set for ourselves. We have

a goal of being among the three largest in our
core areas. That demands a balance between
capital and competence, with the emphasis

on developing expertise. We cannot run our
international company from Lysaker on the basis
of administrative routines. We recognise that
the business is local and must be run locally,
but our values can be communicated from head
office. These values provide a putty, a glue and a
common direction for the things we emphasise
and the way we want the business to be run out
there.

We are well equipped to meet the future and
its new demands. Demands will certainly be
made — not only by the market but also by the
community in which we operate. Expectations
change. Value creation and jobs have always
been in focus. Companies are now also expected
to accept a responsibility for the way they
achieve their goals. Growing attention is being
paid to our social responsibility. That challenge
is one we face with confidence. We have long
traditions in WW for being concerned with good
working conditions, the natural environment
and our social responsibility.

With all this solid ballast and an awareness
of the need for continued development, we
will grow and become more robust in the
future. We will retain and take market share
in a dynamically growing shipping sector, and
expanding in logistics and maritime services.
We will adapt to customer needs - not only
today, but also tomorrow,

Inspector Asle Roar Olsen from Barber Ship Management
checks maintenance work on Tamerlane's bow thrusier
during the docking in January 2006,
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HANS HERMANN BENN

PORT SALES REPRESENTATIVE
BARWIL UNITGR SHIPS SERVICE
WILHELMSEN MARITIME SERVICES

Hans Hermann Benn lives in the German port of Hamburg and is a port sales representative in Baruil Unitor Ships
Service. His responsibilities include visiting ships and yards to offer goods and services from this business area, Fducated
as o mechunical engineer, he served for 12 years as a chicf engincer on various ships before joining Unitor in 1992.

Unitor was acquired by WW in the summer of 2005 and its operations were
included in Withelmsen Maritime Services (WMS, wholly owned by WW) and
the Barwil Unitor Ships Service business area. This acquisition accards with
WW's strategy of developing WMS into a teading global player in the maritime
service sector.

“| personally take a very positive view of our inclusion in WW,” says Hans
Hermann Benn, “it's an exciting glohal company with broad and extensive
shipping expertise. As a Unitor representative, I've had much contact and
good relations with the WW fleet and its ship’s inspectors over a long period.
That makes it all the more pleasing to become part of this group.”

Unitor can offer a very broad range of products and services, which
include maintenance products, cleaning chemicals, water and fuel treatment,
fire and safety systems, refrigeration equipment and refrigerants, welding
gear and gases, and spare parts. The company made 175 000 deliveries to
16 400 ships in more than 1 700 ports during 2005,

Benn explains that the customers are very pleased with the integration.
“Like Unitor, WW has a positive image in the market. Now that we're part of
WW and the extensive network represented by WMS, customers see prospects
for important benefits — such as fewer suppliers, better choice, increased
access and better service overall. With us, WW and WMS have 389 offices in
72 countries, but WMS's services are available through a network covering
more than 2 200 ports in 116 countries.”

The integration process now under way in WMS will realise substantial
synergy gains. In addition to a more streamlined organisation, plans cali
for an increased focus on customer needs. That will mean higher sales and
hetter utilisation of the global network.

"We'll be continuing to work on positioning WMS as a glebal maritime
superstore with a big range of products and services which can be bought
individually or in packages tailored to customer needs,” says Benn,




MAKING VALUE GREATION VISIBLE

The Wilh. Wilhelmsen (WW) group’s vision is to

be a leading global supplier of maritime services.

We want to be a substantial player and
among the market leaders in our main
segments;

« car, ro-ro and project cargo
« logistics for rolling and project cargoes
» maritime services.

We believe that empowered employees in an
innovative and learning organisation represent
our most important competitive advantage in
meeting customer wishes and needs.

This year, we focus once again on how we
as a group create value now and in the future.
In our annual report for 2002, we began to
describe the long-term activities we pursue —in
addition to the operational business - to create
value over time, and how we measure this.
Combined with normal accounting details, we
believe that such supplementary information
will provide a better insight into the way we
work to achieve long-term value creation.

This section of the annual report describes
the major activities and areas of focus which
will be particularly relevant in future, both

as in-house milestones and as fundamental
indicators of our external position. Much of the
work being done is already having an impact on
our figures, but we strongly believe that an even
more positive development will be visible in the
longer term,

These focus areas are measured and
illustrated from four business perspectives
which accord with balanced performance
management. Priority activities within these
four focus areas are mutually interdependent,
and each represents a critical factor for
continuous improvement and development in
our group. We are also continuing to develop
additional performance targets for the principal
activities covered here. These are followed
up on a quarterly basis and linked with our
performance-related bonus system.

FINANCE

Profit alone is not the principal motive for our
operations. Profitability is essential, but we
must also take care of traditions extending back
almost 150 years and pass on a viable business
to future generations. This is achieved in part
through a sound rate of return. Our 2005 result
was the best ever. The figures are presented in
detail in this report, but we want to take a closer
look at one particular indicator:
» ROCE - return on capital employed {adjusted,
for unrealised financial instruments}

Our ROCE for the year was 13.4%. One
of our aims has been to maintain an ROCE of
8-9% over time in accordance with the equity
method, and we exceeded this target by a very
good margin.

CUSTGMERS

The customer perspective is also termed
relationship and customer capital, where
relationships indicate the strength of the
external network and brand. Our quality and
customer surveys are conducted continuously
and regularly in all business units, where
everyone is clearly committed to adapting to a
changing market.

We have an extensive collaboration with
our partners, particularly Wallenius Lines and
Hyundai Motor Group. Wallenius Lines and
we still have a long-term intention that all our
joint ventures will be on a 50-50 basis, and that
a balance will be maintained in our investments
and assets.

The creation of EUKOR was important for
our fleet optimisation, where our companies are
registering substantial synergies. Collaborating
through joint ownership of EUKOR gives us a
growing understanding of both immediate and
long-term challenges facing car manufacturers.

As part of the Barwil Unitor Ships Service business area, Unitor can offer a broad range of products and services. These include maintenance griicles, chemicals for cleaning as well
as water or fuel treatment, fire ond safety sysiems, refrigerating equipment and refrigerants, welding gear and gases, and spare parts.
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iN-HOUSE PROCGESSES

Our corporate management involves itself

actively with strategic issues to ensure unified

and precise management of our business and

to supervise our subsidiaries. These questions

embrace:

+ our strategic segnients, including
collaboration between them

«+ our corporate values, ethics and culture

+ developrent of shared working methods
and solutions

+ development of synergies across companies
in ow group.

We upgraded our strategy process in 2005,
and divided process and method into two main
phases.

During the first half of the calendar year, we
concentrate on long-term planning (five-seven
years) in order to understand how the business
landscape and customer demand will change
in a longer perspective. This allows us to adjust
our plans, investments and strategies in order
to be as well prepared as possible to meet the
future. We develop various scenarios to support
discussion on our long-term plans. Scenarios are
very suitable for looking ahead and evaluating
trends in the markets in which we operate
and combinations of these. That provides us
with a good basis for analysing the way our
surroundings will change and what long-term
demands this will make on us for achieving
success in our business.

The second half of the year is devoted
to planning for the next budget year. Our
corporate vision is broken directly down into
clear strategies, which in turn form the basis
for specific annual operating plans (AOPs) and

activity lists to support these. In addition, each
employee has a functional description tailored to
the AOPs.

To ensure focus and execution, each
department’s AOPs contain key figures for the
targets to be achieved. We have also developed
an incentive system which will generate a bonus
when performance targets are reached.

We use 10 key figures to monitor our
results at corporate level. Collectively, these say
something about how we are performing. The
key figures are followed up every quarter, and
their status is presented on our intranet.

CONTINUOUS LEARNING AND FOCUS ON VALUES

We regard learning and growth as a strategic
element for developing our business. In
today’s society, characterised by rapid changes,
customers who expect first-class service,
and new technical and creative solutions,
continuous learning, cooperation and
communication are key success factors. We
clearly see the relationship between a good
working environment, with motivated and
able employees, and satisfied customers. This
interaction is highly important for achieving our
vision.

Our managers have the greatest opportunity
to influence our working environment, and
we accordingly devote much time, effort and
resources to management training.

A good overview of workforce expertise
is increasingly important for us, both for
putting together teams of employees and for
identifying where development is needed in
the short and long terms. We have analysed the
expertise of all head office staff, providing us
with information about the competencies found
in this part of the organisation. The analysis
shows that all our overall expertise requirements
are well covered today in every area. It has also
indicated which requirements for expertise
development will emerge in the immediate and
more distant future, and which must be met
for our continued progress as a global maritime
knowledge-based company.

N
The 6o-strong Wallenins Wilhelmsen Logistics’ fleet
carries 1.5 million vehicles annually by sea, while three
miillion vehicles are transported on land.




DELPHINE ECHENIQUE
HEAD OF CUSTOMER CARE AND DOCUMENTATION
WALLENIUS WILHELMSEN LOGISTICS

Delphine Echenigue from Paris, France, is responsible for developing the highesl-guality customer care in Europe and
Jor securing systems and in-house processes which support the company’s vision and - not least — customer demands and
needs. She began as a trainee in 1996 at Motorships Paris, which later becawe Wallening Paris and then part of what is
now called Wallenius Withelmsen Logistics.

Wallenius Wilhelmsen Lines formally changed its name to Wallenius
Wilhelmsen Logistics on | January 2006.

“Given ingustry trends in recent years, this renaming was a naturs!
step,” maintains Delphine Echenique. She adds that it sends a clear signal
to customers and the industry in general about the direction Wallenius
Wilhelimsen Logistics wants to take.

While Wallenius Withelmsen Logistics focused earlier on providing
services from port to port, it is now commitied to delivering them from door to
door, from factory to dealer.

“Qur customers won't notice the change of name overnighl,” says
Echenique. “We'll develap the product continuously and custemers will
hopefully see with time thal we're adding value by being better able to offer
door-te-door services. We believe these offer financial savings as well as
representing a practical solution for the customer's commodity transports.

“My colleagues and | are in daily contact with Wallenius Wilheimsen
Logistics’ customers. It's important that we understand what the name
change involves, and help to ensure that our customers also appreciate
its significance. Knowledge of our new strategies will put us in a better

pasition to offer services to customers not only at sea but also across the fult
logistical range.”

Wallenius Wilhelmsen Logistics is one of the world's largest maritime
transporters of cars and heavy vehicles. With a fleet of roughly 60 vessels, it
carries some 1.5 million units 4 year by sea and roughly three million by land.
As well as cars, these include high and heavy carge such as canstruction
and agricultural machinery as well as non-containerised carge. The Jatter
includes mining machinery, railway cars and pleasure boats. The company's
scope spans from technical services to marine and land transport as welt as
management of the actual transport chain,

Echenigue explains that Wallenius Withelmsen Logistics has acquired
various companies around the world in recent years. All its subsidiaries have
begun marketing their services, hoth on fand and at sea, under the common
name of Wallenius Withelmsen Logistics from 1 January 2006.

The network of logistics companies will be expanded in coming years.
"Achieving broad geographical coverage is important when you're offering
global services,” says Echenigue.
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WW ACADEMY

Expertise development is highly significant for
attaining our future long-term objectives. We

are accordingly pursuing further development
in several areas to ensure that we also have

the expertise required for tomorrow. The WW
Academy is our strategic expertise centre, and
tailors learning and development programmes
which help to ensure that our employees can
reach our commercial goals and satisfy customer
requirements.

We invest through the WW Academy in
human capital - which we define as our most
important asset. This reflects our conviction
that companies and businesses with the ablest
people are those which will succeed in future,

Courses offered to employees by the WW
Academy vary by a person’s length of service
with us, where they are in their career and
what they are working on. Programmes cover
such topics as shipping, sales, project and
process management, safety and management.
Several of the courses involve building a virtual
community through a web-based portal, where
participants carry out assignments, hold
discussions and receive coaching before, during
and after the modules. The WW Academy also
makes use of e-learning programmes, where
internet technology is utilised to enhance the
learning process. Such programmes give more
people access to standardised education, with
the same message being communicated in the
same way to everyone.

Since the WW Academy’s launch in 1999,
several hundred personnel from our parent
company and the wholly-owned subsidiaries
have been through its programmes. The aim
for 2000 is to provide courses for about 500
employees and to expand the target audience to
include other companies in our group.

Lectures on subjects specific to our work are
given by key in-house personnel, while external
lecturers are usually hired to cover more generic
subjects — such as strategy and communication.

The WW Academy helps to enhance the

multicultural expertise of employees. Its global
scope and cultural diversity make this a unique
institution. Courses are held in such locations

as Singapore, Dubai, Kuala Lumpur, Mumbai,
Sweden and Norway. Many of them attract
participants from 10-20 nations. The educational
part of programmes is supplemented by

social events intended to build relationship
across national borders, develop multicultural
understanding and - not least ~ boost knowledge
of different business areas in the group.

Course in the WW Academy enhance cultural
understanding while simultaneously developing
a shared cultural diversity in-house.

We also see the WW Academy as an
important tool for integrating the recently-
acquired Unitor organisation. This is currently
being consolidated in the Wilhelmsen Maritime
Services (WMS) subsidiary, which aims to be an
innovator in the maritime service sector. The
integration process is being promoted in the
WW Academy’s courses by learning within a
new community while simultaneously becoming
acquainted with other people’s culture and
contributing to the development of a common
corporate culture.

Once personnel are back at work after
completing a WW Academy course, we want
to see specific behavioural changes and
results from this education. The managers
of such participants will play a key role by
demanding such changes, and by supporting the
development of new learning through providing
suitable jobs in relation to customers and
through projects.

Development of the WW Academy is closely
monitored by senior management. The WW
Academy’s management committee is chaired
by chief executive Ingar Skaug. New courses
are developed by project teams which include
both specialists and managers, who ensure that
programmes satisfy our learning requirements.
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ROBIN RAGNAR TRULSSEN

SHIP'S MASTER

BARBER SHiP MANAGEMENT
WILHELMSEN MARITIME SERVICES

experience in the Nonveg

Robin Ragnar Trulssen from Lenvik in Norway is one of roughly 50 ship's masters in WW. With almost 30 years of
sian merchant fleet, e has sailed on inany different vessels since becoming an officer cadet
in 1973, Capt Trulssen has been with WW since 1989, and is currently master of Texas.

WW's wholly-owned companies have about 13 500 employess, including 8 700
seagoing personnel from 31 nations.

“Without qualified crew, we'd have nobody to operate our vessels,”
observes ship's master Robin Ragnar Trulssen. He adds that the need fo
educate and recruit new crew will increase in future as the WW group invests
in a growing number of newbuildings. Compstition over maritime personnel is
already strong.

“W's important to make a commitment to education and to think long-
term on recruitment,” Capt Trulssen maintains. “I also believe it's important
to focus on career planning and cuitivating an attachment to the WW
grganisation. A plan can shew what use the company intends to make of the
individual, what that person can reach for, and what they can expect in ferms
of education and courses. It'll provide a sense of security.”

Demand for seafarers with the right expertise is high. Ner is the expertise
needed necessarily available in the market. That makes it important to be
able to offer educational programmes in order to build loyalty and retain the
right people in the WW crew poal.

“An important element in carger development for seagoing personnel
is to ensure further education,” Capt Trulssen explains.

Barber Ship Management (BSM) has its own international maritime
training centre at Mumbai in india. Since its creation in 2000, this facility
has issued 3 600 certificates and edusated some 4 500 students. BSM also
has training centres in the Philippines and Poland.

*As a ship's master, it's important for me to ensure motivated crew,” Capt
Trulssen comments. “Personnel whe're well informed, well looked after, and
secure about what the future will bring net only do a much better job but also
reduce the likelihood of undesirable incidents.”

BSM is responsible for all seagoing personnel, including recruitment. The
goal is to have the right person in the right place at the right time and at the
right cost. To achieve that, BSM has its own crewing offices or cooperation
agreements with crewing agents in Norway, Poland, Russia, Romania, India,
Sri Lanka, Bangladesh, Myanmar, Thailand, Indonesia, the Philippines, China
and Malaysia.




From top left: chief engineer Rolando V Combenido, third
engineer Kenneth A Sigtong, master Euclydes C Ladings,

the “three musketeers™ (second officer Ave Vincesni D
Ruiz, administrative officer Joel S Juanich and third
officer Joshua § Nemenzo), chief engineer Eduardo

C Merza and motorman Joseph M Dimabayo, all on
Tolede. Above: catering officer Gabricl Bernardo Afonsa
on Tamerlane,
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VALUES-BASED LEADERSHIP

Our organisational culture has developed
throughout the WW group’s history, and forms
a common foundation for the way we conduct
our business. This base comprises values which
provide guidelines for our daily work, helping
us to prioritise and take decisions. Our values
are customer centred, empowerment, learning
and innovation, stewardship, and teaming and
collaboration.

The extent to which we observe these values
is crudial for our working environment, the
satisfaction of our customers, and our success in
reaching our targets.

We continued the global implementation
of our values during 2005. Most of our senior
executives took part in an extensive values
survey as part of this process. These managers
subsequently received a personal report which
related their personal value priorities to various
management styles and to our corporate values.
Each executive was also coached in relation
to the identified results and areas requiring
development.

Climate surveys and in-house seminars are
other instruments we use to develop the group
in relation to our basic values. The measurement
process relates all the questions in the survey to
these corporate values,

We will be implementing an extensive
climate survey at all our offices in Norway
during 2006 as part of the process of integrating
Unitor. This will highlight factors affecting
the group’s ability to perform, and its results
will make our managers better equipped to
identify and focus on areas with a potential for
improvement,

The survey, which covers all the
departments, will be supplemented by a 360-
degree performance assessment of the most
important executives. Each manager will receive
feedback about their management style through
professional coaching, The next step is then
collective coaching for all the teams, where

each person discusses the results with their
superior. The latter then produces an action plan
in consultation with the subordinate. This will
form part of the AOP which each department is
measured against.

In addition to the above-mentioned surveys,
a working group has been set up to focus on
values in the group. Including personnel with
varying periods of service, its aim is to continue
the implementation of our values in the global
organisation, and to create an understanding of
how important it is that we are a values-driven
commercial organisation with a common values
base.

No less than eight of our largest offices
outside Norway will implement a climate
survey in 20006, followed by in-house climate
seminars. Understanding of the values will be
an important element.

SUMMARY

We gave emphasis in 2005 to a number of
activities which influence forward-looking value
creation. The following summarises some of
these activities during the year:

» Our ROCE target was reached with a good
margin.

«  Our relationship and customer capital was
given the highest priority.

«  We have upgraded our strategy process and
divided it into two phases.

« Ten key figures which collectively say
something about how the group is
performing are being followed up on a
quarterly basis.

» We have a satisfactory overview of future
expertise needs.

«  We are focusing on our coniinuous
development.

Al] these aspects are reflected in the results
for the year as well as in the day-to-day life of our
gIOU.P. 2
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

GENERAL

A Norwegian code of practice for corporate
governance was issued in December 2004. A
revised code was published in December 2005,
but involves only minor changes.

The nine organisations responsible for the
code have established the Norwegian Committee
for Corporate Governance (NUES), which aims
to update the code and promote it in Norway and
abroad. Divided into 14 points, the code builds
on an “observe or explain” principle. This means
that the grounds for possible departures from
the code must be given.

WW observes the code. However, a
shareholder structure in which a majority
owner controls more than 50% of the votes at
the general meeting means that it would be
inappropriate to implement all the points in full.

VALUES BASE

As part of its corporate culture, WW has
developed and adopted a set of core values which
incorporate ethical guidelines. These values

are customer centred, empowerment, learning
and innovation, stewardship, and teaming and
collaboration. The group’s ethical guidelines are
openness and honesty, loyalty, cooperation and
responsibility.

THE BUSINESS

According to WW'’s articles of association,

its object is to engage in shipping, maritime
services, aviation, industry, commerce, finance
business, brokerage, agencies and forwarding,
to own or manage real estate, and to run
business related thereto or associated therewith.
Within this object, the business concept is to

be a leading international supplier of maritime
transport services, based on expertise and with
the focus on customer requirements.

EQUITY AND DIVIDEND

WW has an equity which is tailored to its
objectives, strategy and risk profile, and which
totalled USD 834 million at 31 December 2005.
That corresponded to 37% of total capital.

The company has a dividend policy which
states that the shareholders will be given a
high return over time through a combination
of rising value for the company’s shares and
payment of dividend. Subject to the results
achieved and future investment requirements,
one objective is a steady rise in dividend over
time.

The board is authorised to buy back up to
10% of the company’s own shares. A renewal
of this authorisation for 12 months will be
considered by the annual general meeting on
4 May 2006.

EQUAL TREATMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS AND
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS

The company has a total of 49 637 500 shares
in two classes - 36 856 468 A shares and 12 781
032 B shares. Converting to a single share class
is not regarded as appropriate in the present
circumstances.

The group buys its own shares over the stock
exchange.

Transactions conducted between the
principal shareholder and the company take
place on market terms.

Directors and senior executives are required
to inform the board if they have a direct or
indirect interest in contracts concluded by WW.

NEGOTIABILITY

WW's shares are freely transferable.

GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting is normally held at
the beginning of May. Shareholders with known
addresses are notified by mail, and the meeting
is advertised in the press and on the company’s
web site at least 14 days before it takes place.

Shareholders wishing to attend the general
meeting must notify the company at least two
working days before it takes place. Shareholders
can appoint a proxy to vote for their shares. The
board chair is present at the general meeting
and chairs it as specified in the articles of
association. All shareholders have the right to
submit motions to and to speak at the general
meeting, but only A shares carry voting rights.
The group is not aware of any shareholder
agreements.

Barwil is the world's largest port agent, delivering ewerything a ship might need in port ~ including cargo handling, fuel,
crew changes, fresh water, provisions, pilots, custom dearance, post and spare parts.




RENATO BRYANT

OPERATIONS ASSISTANT MANAGER
BARWIL UNITOR SHIPS SERVICE
WILHELMSEN MARITIME SERVICES

Renato Bryant from Panama is an operations assistant manager in Barwil Unitor Ships Service, and joined Barwil
in 1995, He is responsible for the Panama office’s activities, which include ensuring that ships pass through the Canal
and berth in port as efficiently as possible, The office is part of Barwil Port Service, which belongs in turn to the Barwil
Unitor Ships Service business area.

The Barber, Barwil and Unitor companies were all integrated during 2005
in Withelmsen Maritime Services (WMS), which ranks today as the world's
largest maritime service network.

“| see the creation of Wilhelmsen Maritime Services in 2005, with the
inclusion first of Barber and Barwil and subsequently of Unitor, as a step in
the right direction,” says Renato Bryant. He emphasises that, even though
these companies were doing well on their own, they will perform even better
as part of a single organisation since they support and complement each
other in a positive way.

Bryant reports that customer reactions have been positive, “They see
that we're large and global. After all, WW and WMS have 389 offices in
72 countries as well as an extensive additional network of cooperating
companies and agents. This offers our customers a number of benefits,
including a reduced number of sub-contractors.”

As the world's largest port agency, Barwil hancled 51 000 ship calls in
2005 through a network with 2 presence in 2 200 ports in 116 countries. The
WW group’s operating companies, Wallenius Withelmsen Logistics, EUKOR

and American Roll-on Roll-off Carrier, are only three of Barwil's roughly 2 500
customers.

The Barwil office in Panama deals with about 100 vessels per month,
including 80 passing through the Canal.

“We go through the list of ships due to call in our port on a daily basis,
and prepare what they've requested,” explains Bryant. “Bunkering, crew
changes, fresh water, provisioning, pilots, customs clearance, post and spare
parts are alt part of the support we provide when a vessel berths. We also
assist with cargo handling.”

The WMS vision is to be an innovator and a pioneering company in the
maritime service industry. It aims to provide services from the design stage
of a vessel until it is in full operation at sea or needs various products and
services while in port.

“Since WMS has an ambition of being the leader in its sector, one of our
goals at the Panama office is to be the best at what we do,” says Bryant.

“So we continucusly seek to improve our work processes and look for new
business opportunities to help achieve the vision.”
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Maintenance work o Tamerlane has been completed,
and waier is admitted to the dock. The vessel continued ils
voyage on 19 fanuary afier being docked for eight days.
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ELECTION COMMITYEE

An election committee is not considered
appropriate with the present shareholder
structure.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AND
BOARD OF DIRECTORS —~ COMPGSITION
AND INDEPENDENCE

The company has an executive committee for
industrial democracy in foreign trade shipping
which comprises six members, four from the
management and two from the workforce. It
meets four times a year. Issues submitted for
consideration include a draft of the accounts
and budget as well as matters of major financial
significance for the company or of special
importance for the workforce.

The company’s board comprises six directors
elected by the general meeting for two years at a
time. Two of the directors are women. Both the
chief executive and the deputy chief executive
are alternate members of the board.

Information on the background and
experience of the directors can be found on
the company’s internet site. Note 2 to the
accounts provides a specification of shares in the
company owned by directors. See page 72.

WORK OF THE BGARD

The board determines an annual plan for its
work. Eight regular meetings are held every
year, and the board otherwise meets as and
when required. Two day-long strategy meetings
are held. The directors are also kept regularly
informed about the group’s development
between board meetings.

Instructions have been drawn up for day-
to-day management of the company and for the
board itself. The board works continuously on
internal control in the company in accordance
with prevailing statutory provisions.

In the absence of the chair, the deputy chair
acts as chair.

The board regularly assesses its mode of
working.

The board does not consider it appropriate

to establish sub-committees. These would
undermine the board’s work and authority. Nor
do the size of the board and the frequency of
its meetings indicate that such committees are
required.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Directors’ fees are determined by the
general meeting and are not dependent on
the company'’s results. The fees reflect the
responsibilities of the board, its expertise, the
amount of time devoted to it, and the complexity
of the business.

No share options have been awarded to
directors.

Directors perform no tasks for the company
other than serving on the board or on the boards
of associates.

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR EXECUTIVES

The board determines the chief executive’s
remuneration. Other elements in the chief
executive’s remuneration are detailed in the
notes to the accounts. See page 71.

Remuneration of senior executives is
determined administratively within limits set
by the board. A broadly-based comparison is
drawn with pay conditions in other Norwegian
shipping companies.

The board has instituted a bonus scheme
for group employees in Norway. Intended to
reinforce the focus on performance and results,
this scheme is based on the annual return
on capital employed by the group and three
predefined key performance indicators, with
a requirement that at least 60% of the target
defined for each team must be met. The board
determines the annual norm for the bonus
scheme.

An option scheme for leading personnel
in the group was introduced in 2001 with the
board's approval. This gave senior executives the
option to buy an individually-specified number
of shares in the company within a three-year
period. The shares can be purchased at a
predetermined strike price which is defined as
an average final price over the 14 days before the

person concerned enters the programme. The
company’s general meeting has been informed
of the scheme.

INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATIGR

WW gives weight to informing the market about
the development of its results, and reports to
the stock market through annual and interim
reports, quarterly presentations, a Capital
Market Day, press releases and so forth. The
financial calendar, with the dates for quarterly
presentations and the annual general meeting,
can be found on page 1 and on the WW web site.

The quarterly and annual results are
presented to invited analysts and business
journalists at the same time as the accounts are
made public on the Oslo Stock Exchange. Two
of these presentations each year are transmitted
directly by webcast. Results are also posted to
the company’s web site. The company fulfils the
requirements set by the stock exchange for its
Information and English symbols.

Extensive information about the company is
provided on its web site, including an overview
of share price developments, the 20 largest
shareholders, dividend paid over the past five
years and cash flow per share.

WW staged a Statoil Hydro Aker Market's
in 2005 for analysts, journalists and financial
institutions, where certain aspects of its
operations were reviewed in greater detail than
is possible in the quarterly presentations. A
similar event was held on 3 April 2006.

AUBITOR

The company’s auditor attends board meetings
as required, and is always present when the
annual accounts are under consideration. The
auditor provides the board with a review of work
on the annual accounts, and explains changes in
the accounting principles and other significant
aspects. Should either side find it appropriate,
the board can meet the auditor without the
administration being present.

The auditor’s fee, broken down by audit
work and other consultancy services, is specified
in note 2 to the accounts. See pages 34 and 72,
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

DIVIDEND POLICY

WW’s goal is to provide shareholders with a
high return over time through a combination of
rising value for the company’s shares and pay-
ment of dividend. Subject to the results achieved
and future investment requirements, one objec-
tive is a steady rise in dividend over time.

A total dividend of NOK 8 per share was
paid by WW in 2005. The company’s intention
is to pay dividend twice a year, and this was
achieved in 2005,

CGRREGY MARKET PRICE

The company gives weight to keeping the

stock market regularly informed about the
development of its results. This will primarily
be done through the annual reports, interim
reports, quarterly presentations, Capital Market
Days and press releases. The aim is that at
least two of the quarterly presentations will be
transmitted by webcast. WW’s investor relations
team also holds exclusive meetings with

major financial market players in Norway and
internationally.

By helping to enhance knowledge of
the industry in general and the company
in particular, WW wants the information it
provides to the market to contribute to a pricing
of the company’s shares which is as correct as
possible.

WW has received the Information and
English symbols from the Oslo Stock Exchange.
These are awarded to companies which satisfy
the exchange’s requirements for financial
information on their web sites. This part of
the site will be updated and further developed
during 2006.

The WW web site also provides all its reports
and other information about the company,
including an overview of some
of the analysts who monitor it.

SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE

WW is listed on the Oslo Stock Exchange. At 31
December 2005, the company had a total share
capital of NOK 99.3 million, divided between
just under 37 million A shares and just under 13
million B shares.

The company had 2 854 shareholders
at 31 December 2005, of whom 2 640 were
Norwegian.

In recent years, the company has bought its
own shares and amortised part of these (5% in
2000, 2001 and 2002). The management has
been authorised to buy up to 10% of the compa-
ny’s own issued shares. Part of this authority has
been utilised. WW owned 1 336 476 A shares
and 251 700 B shares at 31 December. The
company has no plans for new share issues.

BASIS FOR VALUING THE COMPANY

The management’s judgement is that a valuation
of WW must be based on a combination of
discounted net cash flows and net asset value.

In the shipping and logistics segments,
significant investments have been undertaken
in vessels and other fixed assets. WW takes the
view that the value of these segments is higher
than the sum of the value of the various tangible
fixed assets. The value of the business over time
will depend primarily on the net income which
the company manages to generate from the
total transport and service systems which have
been developed within these segments. That
encompasses both vessels and other tangible
fixed assets, the established transport system,
land-based activities, employee knowledge and
experience, established market positions, brands
and goodwill.

An initial public offering was implemented
by Glovis {owned 20% by WW) on 23 December
2005, when its shares were also listed on the
stock exchange in Seoul, Korea.

Net income is crucial for a valuation of
the activities concentrated in Wilhelmsen
Maritime Services. The capital commitment
in these companies is relatively moderate,
although fairly large sums have been invested in
company acquisitions, human resources and the
development of system infrastructures.

Dockwise (owned 21% by WW) pursues
a specialised niche business. No established
market exists for its tangible fixed assets. WW’s
involvement should therefore be valued on the
basis of discounted net cash flows.

The value of real property is continuously
subject to the valuations made by the market at
any given time, A valuation based on net asset
value would therefore be the most relevant
approach for the company’s office premises at
Lysaker.

Development of the WW A share versus
the Oslo Stock-Exchange
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A total valuation of the parent company
must accordingly be based on the considerations
outlined above, supplemented with the parent
company’s other assets less group liabilities and
pension commitments.

Information on the hedging strategy for
bunkers, currency and interest rates, and on
sensitivity analyses, is provided in note 15 on
page 49.

For information on debt repayment,
see note 13 on page 40.

REMUNERATION OF THE GROUP’S EMPLOYEES

The remuneration system is under continuous
assessment, and several new schemes have
been put in place over recent years. A primary
objective has been to highlight the shared
financial interests of owners and employees.

A bonus scheme was introduced for head
office employees in 2002. The financial basis of
this scheme is tied to the realised annual return
on capital employed (ROCE) for the group.
Return above an annually specified norm will
be shared between employees and owners in
accordance with an approved formula.

A new option programme for leading
personnel was introduced in 2004 and came
into effect on 1 January 2005. It strengthens the
relationship between remuneration for leading
personnel and the return to the owners over
time.

All employees in Norway are offered an
annual opportunity to acquire shares in WW
at a discount.

The basis for dividend payments to
shareholders is the value creation achieved in
the group’s business areas.
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Earnings per share

Dividend per share
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2001 2002 2003° 2004 2004 2005 20000 2002+ 2003 2004* 2004 2005
&
2005 2004 2004* 2003* 2002* 2001*
Face value NOK 20 20 20 20 20 20
Number of shares 31 Dec [thousand) 49 638 49 638 49 638 49 638 49 638 52250
Average number of shares outstanding  (thousand) 47996 47 930 47 930 47 819 47 650 48 898
Earnings per share (1) uso 3.91 3.51 3.23 1.62 113 0.51
Diluted earnings per share (2) usb 3.91 3.51 3.23 1.62 1.13 0.51
Cash flow per share (3] usD 7.52 6.66 4.51 3.30 292 2.20
Dividend per share (4] NOK 8.00 5.00 8.00 4.00 2.75 2.13
RISK per share at 1 Jan NOK (8.35) 2.04 2.04 {1.28} 1.06 (0.75)
Market price 31 Dec A shares NOK 249 157 157 11 52 33
Market price 31 Dec B shares NOK 219 145 145 105 48 32
Market price high A shares NOK 249 158 158 13 52 45
Market price high B shares NOK 219 145 145 105 50 43
Market price low A shares NOK 162 82 82 47 32 27
Market price low B shares NOK 135 85 85 44 31 25

* Figures in accordance with Norwegian accounting standards [not restated)

Definitions

1) Profit after minority interests, divided by average number of shares.

2) Earnings per share taking into consideration the number of potential outstanding shares in the period.

3) Profit for the periode adjusted for change in deferred tax, depreciation and write-down on assets, divided by average numbers of shares.
4) Payout date under the IFRS and at date of provision under NGAAP.
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COMPANY STUCTURE AT 9 FEBRUARY 2006
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. MARITIME SERVICES

Willielmsen Maritime Services AS

Barber International Ltd Barwil Agencies AS Ul:ingys
Hong Kong Norway 0%
EUROPE i ASIA-AND OCEANIA MEDITERRANEAN; SOUTHERN EUROPE, AMERICAS
Belgium | Australia | MIDDLEEAST, AFRICA, BLACK SEA | Asgentina
Denmirk ' Bangladesh Algeria : Brazil
Finland - China: Armers i Canada
i enia : .
France i -Hong Kong Bahrain i Chile
Germany India : Bulgart Colombia
y . garia .
Gibraltar indonesia Cuba
Greece Japan Cyprus Ecuador
s Egypt
Ialy Malaysia Georgia Panama
Latvia New Zealand iran Peru
Netherlands " Philippines Iraq Puerto Rico
Norway Singapore Jordin USA
Poland South Korea Kenya Venezuela
Portugal Sri Lanks Kirvait
Spain Taiwan
Sweden Thailand povanon
UK . Vietnam Oman
Pakistan
‘Qatar )
; Romania '
‘: Russia g I
1§ Satidi Arabia |
i South Africa |
Sudan
" ; Syria
i | Tanzania
; Turkey
UAE
Ulkzaine
Yemen

* Qwned through Abeer (49.3%), Wilhelmsen Lines
AS (47.4%) and Wilh. Wilhelmsen ASA (3.3%)

'
1

Strandyeien 50 ANS Wilh. Wilhelmsen Netherlands BV Wilhelmsen Offshore and
The Netherlands Chartering AS
99% Norway
I
i Dockwise Transport NV
Wilservice AS po: L AS
Norway The Netherlands ‘ ‘ AbeeNomy

213%

Norway

Strandveien 20 ANS
1%

Njord Insurance Company Ltd
Bermu

1__

]

Wilhelmsen Insurance Services AS
Norway

Wilh. Withelmsen (Asia) 5dn Bhd ||
Malaysia

With. Wilhelmsen (Hong Kong) Ld
Hong Kong

)

Wilhelmsen Forbes Energy
Logistics Ltd —
Mauritius

tformer Abeer Marine Services Pte Lid)

Express Offshore Transport Pte Ltd
50%, Singapare
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EMBER 2005

Vessel name Ownership % Year built Flag Dwt Capacity*

Ro-10 vessels

Tamerlane 100 2001 NIS 39 400 5496
Tamesis 100 2000 NIS 39 400 5496
Talisman 100 2000 NIS 39 400 5496
Tarago 100 2000 NIS 39 400 5496
Taronga 100 1996 NIS 47 144 4923
Taiko 100 1984 NIS 41 000 4 474
Tampa 100 1984 NIS 41 000 4 474
Texas 100 1984 NIS 41 000 4 474
Talabot 50 1979 SIN 34 Gos 3 823
Tampere 50 1979 SIN 35098 3 823
Toba 50 1979 SIN 34 310 3823
Tapiola 50 1978 SIN 33 702 3823
Tourcoing 50 1978 SIN 33 719 3823

Pure car carriers (PCC)/pure car and truck carriers (PCTC)

Freedom 50 1997 uUs 19 844 5728
Honor 50 1996 uUs 19 844 5728
Resolve 50 1994 us 20 082 5 741
Integrity 50 1992 us 29 152 5 905
Courage 50 1991 uUs 29 213 5869
Patriot 50 1987 Us 15 681 5 453
Tagus 100 1985 NIS 21 900 5 409
Tasco 100 1985 NIS 21 900 5 409
Liberty 50 1985 us 28 509 5 432
Takayama 100 1983 NIS 10 599 3 087
Terrier 100 1982 NIS 17 863 5537
Independence 50 1978 uUs 17 406 5 460
Chartered vessels

Toronto Bareboat 2005 UK 19 628 G350
Toledo Bareboat 2005 UK 19 628 6 350
Torrens Bareboat 2004 UK 19 628 61350
Tancred Bareboat 1987 NIS 5 571 5720
Trianon Bareboat 1987 NIS 15 528 5828
Trinidad Bareboat 1987 NIS 15 528 5 828
Tai Shan Bareboat 1986 NIS 15 577 5720
Takara Bareboat 1986 NIS 15 546 5720
EUKOR Number of vessels

Own vessels I

Bareboat 8

Time charter 66

Total 8s

On order 23




Vessel name Ownership %

Newbuilding programme

Talia Time charter
Taipan Time charter
Tarifa Time charter
Morning Concert 100
Topeka 100
Tortugas 100
Tombarra 100
Mitsubishi hull no 2237 100
Mitsubishi hull no 2238 100
Daewoo hull no 4451 100
Daewoo hull no 4452 100
Crew vessels Ownership %
Abeer 1 vessel 100
Abeer 3 vessels 100
Abeer 14 vessels 100
Abeer I vessel 100
Abeer 10 vessels 100
Abeer 5 vessels 100
Abeer 1 vessel 100
Dockwise - heavy lifters Ownership %
Mighty Servant 1 21
Mighty Servant 3 21
Transshelf 21
Black Marlin 21
Blue Marlin 21
Swan 21
Tern 21
Swift 21
Teal 21
Dock Express 10 21
Enterprise 21
Super Servant 3 21
Super Servant 4 21
Dock Express 12 21
Explorer 21

1 vessel on order

Year built

2006
2006
2006
2006
2006
2006
2007
2008
2008
2009
2009

Year built
2002
2004-2005
1985-1991
1993
1983-2002
1988-1991
1993

* RT43 equals a car which is 4.125 m long, 1.550 m wide and 1.420 m high, or occupies 6.4 sq.m.

Flag

BAH
BAH
BAH

UK

Dwt Capacity*

21 000 6 400
21 000 6 400
21 000 6 400
20 Goo 6 500
19 628 6 350
19 628 6 350
19 628 6 350
19 628 6 350
19 628 6 350

8 oco

8 oco

Size

6o feet
70 feet
8s feet
100 feet
110 feet
120 feet
135 feet

Dwt
40 190
27 720
34 030
57 021
26 061
32 650
32 650
32 187
32 187
12 928

8 727
14 138
17 oo

10 763
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Wilh. Wilhelmsen

Wilh. Wilhelmsen ASA

P O Box 33, NO-1324 Lysaker, Norway

Telephone: +47 67 58 40 0o, Telefax: +47 67 58 40 80
WWW.WW-GIoup.com
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